
  
 

1 
 

 
 

Arthur Lawson  
Interim County Administrator 

 

David J. Weiss 
County Attorney 

 

Suzanne Lex 
Growth Management Director 

 
 

  

COMMISSIONERS: 
ERIC HINSON 

District 1 
ANTHONY 0. VIEGBESIE, PhD 

District 2 
GENE MORGAN 

District 3  
BRENDA A. HOLT 

District 4 
SHERRIE TAYLOR 

District 5 

  

  GADSDEN COUNTY 
                        BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

  EDWARD J. BUTLER 
  GADSDEN COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL COMPLEX 

 

GADSDEN COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION  

Thursday, August 22, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 

Board of County Commissioners Chambers 
1B East Jefferson Street 
Quincy, Florida 32351 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. INTRODUCTION OF MEMBERS –  Roll call   
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –   January 17, February 14 and March 14, 2019 and  
     July 11, 2019 if available. 

 
5. DISCLOSURES AND DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

6. MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK FINAL PLAT (Quasi-Judicial) (FP 2019-01) – Consideration 

of the Final Plan for the Midway Business Park Subdivision. 

 

7. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT AND SCHEDULE (Legislative) (LSPA 2019-02) 

– Consideration of transmittal of amendments to the Capital Improvements Element and 

adoption of the Capital Improvements Schedule of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

8. SIGNS (Legislative) (LDR 2019-05) – Consideration of amendments to Section 5700, 

Signs of the Land Development Code. 

 

9. CITIZEN’S GROWTH MANAGEMENT AND PLANNING BILL OF RIGHTS (LDR 2019-

04) – Consideration of an amendment to Section 7001.1, The Citizens Growth 



  
 

2 
 

Management and Planning Bill of Rights and moving it to Chapter 1, Administration and 

Enforcement of the Land Development Code.  

 

WORKSHOPS 

10. CHAPTER 4, LAND USE CATEGORIES (Legislative) (LDR 2018-05) – Consideration of 

amendments to Chapter 4, Land Use Categories of the Land Development Code 

focusing on residential future land use/zoning categories and referring development 

review levels to Chapter 7, Development Orders, Development Permits and 

Development Agreements.   

 

11. CHAPTER 2, DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Legislative) (LDR 2018-06) – 

Discussion of amendments to Chapter 2, Definitions and Interpretations of the Land 

Development Code.  This discussion includes new definitions as well as definitions 

previously recommended for approval but not adopted (September, 2018). 

 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

 

11. PLANNING COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

12.  DIRECTOR’S /PLANNER COMMENTS   

 

13. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 

The next regularly scheduled meeting is September 19th, 2019 at 6:00 pm.   
 
Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, the County hereby advises the public that: If a 
person decides to appeal any decision made by this Board, agency, or meeting or hearing, 
he/she will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose, affected persons may 
need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  This notice does not constitute 
consent by the County for the introduction or admission into evidence of otherwise inadmissible 
or irrelevant evidence, nor does it authorize challenges or appeals not otherwise allowed by law. 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, 
persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in this meeting should 
call the Planning & Community Development Department at 875-8663, no later than 5:00 p.m. 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Page 1 of 62 
 

AT A REGULAR MEETING AND WORKSHOP OF 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION HELD IN AND 

FOR GADSDEN COUNTY, FLORIDA ON 

JANUARY 17, 2019, THE FOLLOWING 

PROCEEDING WAS HAD, VIZ: 

 

Commissioners Present : 
 
Libby Henderson, Vice-Chair  
Gail Bridges-Bright 
John Youman 
Marion Lasley, District 5  
Doug Nunamaker 
Lorie Bouie  
Steve Scott, School Board Representative 
 

Commissioners Absent:  
 
Edward J. Dixon, Chair  
Regina Davis, At-Large  
William Chucks  
Antwon McNeil  
Gerald McSwain  
 

Staff Present:  
 
David Weiss, County Attorney  
Suzanne Lex, Community and Planning Director  
Allara Gutcher, Planning Consultant  
Beryl H. Wood,  Deputy Clerk  
 

Staff Absent: 
  
Jill Jeglie, Senior Planner (absence excused – family 
death) 
 
 

 

1.  Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  to the U.S. Flag  
 
In the absence of the Chairman, Vice-Chair Henderson called the meeting to order.   
She then led in pledging allegiance to the U.S. flag.  
 
 

2.  Roll Call  
 
The deputy clerk called the roll and recorded the attendance as listed above.  
 

3.  Approval of the Agenda  
 
UPON MOTION BY COMMISSIONER YOUMAN AND SECOND BY COMMISSIONER 
BRIDGES-BRIGHT, THE BOARD VOTED 7 – 0 TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS 
WRITTEN.  
 

4.  Approval of Minutes – September 20, 2018 
 
The following corrections were made to the minutes:  

 Page 3 – scrivener’s error – “solor” should be “solar” 

jillj
Typewritten Text
#4 - A



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 2 of 62 
 

 Page 5 – scrivener’s error – the word “in” should be added  in front of the 
word “compliance”  

 
UPON MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BRIDGES-BRIGHT AND SECOND BY 
COMMISSIONER BOUIE, THE BOARD VOTED 7 – 0 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2018 AS CORRECTED.  
 

5.  Disclosures and Declarations of Conflict 
 
Vice-Chair Henderson asked members to disclose any communications they may 
have had with their constituents or parties regarding issues before the board at this 
meeting.  
 
No communication disclosures or conflicts of interest were reported.  
 

6.  Bradwell Future Land Use Map Amendment (FLUM)   Small Scale Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment  SSPA 2019-01 
 
Applicant:  Joe Bradwell, owner  

Applicant’s Representative:  Elva Peppers, Florida Environmental and Land Services, 
Inc.  

Location of the property:  West  Side of McCall Bridge Road  

Parcel ID:  4-25-1N-4W-0000-00241-0500 

Size of Parcel:  5 Acres  

Present Use:  Vacant 

Proposed Use:  Residential – Single family dwelling unit 

Current Land Use Designation:  Agriculture 3 (1 dwelling per 20 acres) 

Proposed Change Land Use Designation:  Agriculture 1 (1 dwelling per 5 acres) 

Staff Recommendation:  Approve the application upon the condition that the 
property owner apply for a lot split as required by the Land Development Code.   
 
Ms. Alexander Lex introduced SSPA 2019-01 citing facts listed in the agenda packet 
then called for questions from the Commissioners. 
 

 Lasley: So, the original lot that this came from – how many acres was that?   The Ag 3 
portion? 
 

 Lex:  Elva, do you know the size of it? 
 
I am sorry, I do not have that information.  I can research that, of course, but I am 
not able to get that information for you right now. 
 

 Lasley:  I guess my question is – how does this leave the rest of the whole parcel and can an 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 3 of 62 
 

individual just decide that they want to carve out a five (5) acre lot and sell it to 
somebody even though it doesn’t conform to the land use on the main parcrel? 
 

 Lex:  Under property rights, a person can do what they would like to do.   They can carve 
out a 5 acre parcel or 10 acre, whatever they would like.  That is apparently what 
happened some ten (10) years ago with this parcel.   
 
No, it is not the process we would want them to follow.  Of course, you could go 
through the land use change first, then the parcel split.  For the purposes of this 
parcel,  it has been  a five acre lot for 10 years.  Therefore, the individual  is trying to 
make it a conforming lot.   
 
I can’t say that we want to reward somebody that may have done something wrong.  
I don’t know the history of this property.  I don’t know if he bought it as such and 
not knowing.  All I can say is that it will be compatible with the surrounding land 
uses - the residential and agricultural uses.     
 
For the purposes of being compliant with the Code, the applicant has requested this 
small scale amendment.   
 

 Lasley: You were also requesting that they do a lot split and it appears that something is not 
on the “up and up” there.   
 

 Lex: That is correct.  This was done without benefit of prior approval.  
 

 Lasley: And you don’t know what the parent parcel was?  
 

 Lex:  I do not have that information, Ma’am.  I am sorry.   
 

 Lasley: O.K.   Because there is another lot on the other side of it that is not even five (5) 
acres.  On the north side of that one.   
 

 Lex:  The parent parcel would appear to  meet the minimum requirements.  Again, I have 
not done an analysis.  If you would like an analysis of the parent parcel, what the 
uses are, what the density is and what is conforming with the parent parcel in 
relation to this parcel, that is something that we would have to go back and do for 
you and then bring it back to you so you would have that information at the next 
meeting.  
 

 Lasley: And, if you look at the current and the future land use maps in this agenda packet 
(attachment 4) I can’t really tell what is Ag 3 and what is Ag2 and I don’t know what 
the yellow is.   Can  you tell me what land use categories are all around this parcel? 
 

 Lex: If you go to the analysis, it indicates that to the north, it is Agricultural 3.   It is a 
vacant piece of property.  It is 5 acres in size.   It is another abutting, nonconforming 
lot.    
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 4 of 62 
 

To the east, we have Agricultural 3.  We have eight (8) dwelling units in one 
homestead.  It is six (6) one-acre lots and two (2) on half acre parcels on a 23 acre 
portion of a 75 acre tract . 
 
To the south, it is Agricultural 3.  It is vacant.  It is 18.5 acres of a 75 acre tract.    
 
To the west is Agricultural 1.  Timber and it is vacant.  It is 6.4 acres.  That would be 
an abutting conforming use if they want to develop a single family home on that 
parcel.    
 

 Nunamaker:  If I may.  It abuts up to an Ag 1 to the west.   Everything west of that is all rural 
residential.  
 
Non-conforming lots are to the north and south as far as Ag3 goes, but it does 
currently abut up to one Ag1. 
 

 Lex:  There is one adjacent parcel that is conforming regarding density, not of use.  
 
 

 Nunamaker:  Another quick question.   
 
Did I understand that he wants to further divide this?   Cut this in half? 
 

 Lex:  No.  He needed to do the lot split for this parcel so it would be a lot of record.  
Again, to do the lot split, he wants to make sure that he is creating a conforming lot, 
therefore, he has asked for the land use change to take place through the small 
scale amendment prior to formally coming in to make an application to do the lot 
split.  
 

 Lasley: Even though he has been paying property taxes on some parcel that has already 
been designated as that. 
 

 Nunamaker: And, it has been going on for eleven years.  
 

 Lasley:  Yes, so, I don’t understand why his legal numbers don’t go with his taxes? 
 

 Lex: I can’t comment on what the tax assessor has done on this parcel.  
 

 Lasley: It looks to me like we are allowing somebody to create a lot split in a subdivision 
without going through the proper process.   
 
The original owner could have done that when he wanted to sell this to the man.  Is 
that correct?  
 

 Lex: I can’t speak to what I have in front of me.   Yes, the previous owner could have 
approached the county under the regulations that were in place at that time and 
requested to divide and subdivide this property pursuant to those regulations and 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 5 of 62 
 

under those guidelines.  
 
Again, I don’t want to speak to something that I am not informed about.   This is the 
information that I have in front of me.   Therefore, I can only recognize the request 
to try to make this lot conforming.  I understand that you are saying this is an “after 
the fact” approval in essence.   O.K.  Therefore, it was done without the benefit of 
approval from the county on the front end.  Without the lot split being done in 
accordance with the county regulations that were in effect at that time.  I cannot 
address those things.   I can only address what we have here in front of us.  
 

 Lasley: Having been at these meetings since 1990 or maybe 1991, what is to stop everybody 
in the county from doing that and coming in here? 
 

 Lex: I  can only address what I have in front of me.  What people do with their private 
property, I can’t talk to that – What is to stop them.  All I can do is move forward to 
try to get people to work within the boundaries of the Code and do things right on 
the front end.  I take a very proactive approach in trying to educate the public.   
 
Again, what is to stop them?  There is nothing to stop a private property owner from 
doing what he would want to do with his property.  To that question, that is all I can 
say.   
 

 Lasley:  There is  water on McCall Bridge Road, right?  Talquin water?  
 

 Lex:  Yes, there is water and electric.  Those would be provided by Talquin.   
 

 Lasley: So, they will hook up to that.  I am assuming that he will need three acres that are 
upland to have a mounded septic tank in case the property does need a mounded 
septic tank? 
 

 Lex:  I cannot speak to the requirements of the health department and what they will 
want for the septic tank.  They will be doing that permitting.   
 

 Henderson: Forgive me if I am incorrect, but, I understood the paperwork to indicate that since 
the split was already there, there is a septic tank already in place.  
 

 Nunamaker: Was that after he bought it or before? 
 

 Henderson: I don’t know, I thought  that is what it listed.  
 

 Bouie: Yes, a private on-site system.  
 

 Lex: Forgive me, I missed that.  
 

 Henderson: I saw it somewhere in here.  The way it was phrased made me believe it was already 
on site.  I don’t know if I can find it.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 6 of 62 
 

 Lasley: On page 5 it states that the septic system must be set back 100 feet from the well. 
  

 Lex: We would look for compliance with the current  regulations in place or any 
permitting that takes place.  If there was a variance to be granted by the health 
department, again, I cannot speak to that.   
 
Respectfully, I understand your concern with an “after the fact” approval to creating 
a nonconformity and then coming in to try to get approval for it afterwards.  That is 
not the way that we would want to operate in the county, but, I can only speak to 
this property owner wanting to bring this into compliance through this process so 
that he may further develop the property in accordance with Gadsden County land 
development regulations.  
 

  Do we have any further questions of  the staff?  Is there anyone from the public who 
wants to speak to this issue?  
 

  Elva Peppers,  Florida Environmental and Land Services, Inc., 221-4 Delta Court, 
Tallahassee, FL.  
 
I am here to answer any of those questions.  I did provide a map that shows the 
buffer for the construction for the home site and also for the septic.   There is space 
for that.  I just wanted to point that out.   
 
Mr. Bradwell wants to build one home on this property and there is not currently a 
septic tank there.  So, if that was in the report, I don’t think that is correct.   
  

  There is currently not one – is that what you are saying?  
 

  No, there is not a septic tank.  
 

  I apologize about that.   
 

  I do have a map that shows the adjacent  land uses which should answer your 
questions about that.   
 

  Your wetland map is the one we are talking about that has things marked off on.  I 
can’t really read it.   So, but, I am assuming that this parcel out by the road in the 
very, very front outside of the orange line is the area that he can work in except for 
the buffers.  Is that right?  
 

  Right.  It is closer to the road.  The wetlands  are in the rear of the property.  
 

  So, he won’t be able to build in them or put a septic tank in there.  So, it will have to 
be built in whatever buildable area is on the southeast corner.  
 

  Right.  There are about  2.5 acres that is not wet.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 7 of 62 
 

  2.5 acres instead of 5? 
 

  Yeah.  
 

  I don’t know about that.  
 

  Does anyone else have any questions?  
 
No?  
 
Do I hear a motion to approve or to take action on this public hearing.  Do I have a 
motion to take any of the options presented on the last page of the memo, which is 
on page 5.   There are three options listed there.  Do I have a motion to take action 
on any of those options?  
 

  I just want to make sure that there is nobody else from the public that wants to 
speak – just to confirm.  
 

  Is there any other comments from the public?  (no response) 
 
That being the case,  may I have an motion made on one of the three options 
presented to us by the staff?  
 

  I OFFER A MOTION TO ACCEPT OPTION ONE:  APPROVE THE JOE BRADWELL SMALL 
SCALE COMPREHENSIVE PAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT FROM 
AGRICULTURE 3 TO AGRICULTURE 1 (SSPA-2019-01 WITH THE CONDITION THAT 
THE PROPERTY OWNER WILL APPLY FOR A LOT SPLIT TO CREATE THE FIVE ACRE 
PARCEL AS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO THE GADSDEN COUNTY LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE, SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS.   
 

  SECOND.  
 
 

  ALL IN FAVOR? 
 

 Henderson 
 Bridges-
Bright 
Nunamaker 
Bouie  
Scott 
 

AYE  

 Youman 
Lasley 
 

NO 

 Henderson THAT IS A VOTE OF 5 – 2.  THE MOTION PASSED.  
   
7.  Allen’s Excavation Future Land Use Map Amendment  LSPA-2019-1 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 8 of 62 
 

 
Applicant:  Allen’s  Excavation, Inc.  Heath Weldon, owner  

Applicant’s Representative:  Elva Peppers, Florida Environmental and Land Services, 
Inc.  221-4 Delta Court, Tallahassee, FL 32303  

Location of the property:  Robert’s Sand Company  

Parcel ID:  5-0L-0R-0S-0000-59330-0000 

Size of Parcel:  42.95 Acres 

Present Use:  No Ag Acreage 

Proposed Use:  Mining of sand  

Current Land Use Designation:  Agriculture 3  

Proposed Change Land Use Designation:  Mining  

Staff Recommendation:  Approval of the Allen’s Excavation Large Scale 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment from AG-3 to Mining LSPA-
2019-01.  
 
Ms. Lex  addressed the commission noting the following facts: 

 There is an active mining permit issued by FDEP associated with the 
property.  

 FDEP issued a letter in May 2018 Change of mining notice which extended 
the permit mining on the property until 2044. 

 It is nonconforming in use, but, has been permitted by FDEP.  

 Applicant desires to make the use conforming under the current land uses.  

 Less than 1 acre is wetland and wetland habitat 

 Less than 3 acres of the parcel is in the Flood Zone.  

 There is an on-site septic system and well.  

 The surrounding land uses are all Agriculture 3  (designated Future Land 
Use) 

 The existing uses are mining petroleum  on the north side; timber on the 
east and south side; to the west there is another mining parcel.  

 Access to the property would be from Roberts Sand Road (Crowder Road) 
used primarily for mine access.  It leads to Sadberry Road.  

 The property is vested  for mining since 1994 when permitted by FDEP 

 The property was found to be in compliance in 1989, 1994 and again in 
2018. 

 The compatibility analysis was done and no impacts are anticipated.   

 The ingress and egress has been established.  

 The nearest mining property is located  less than one mile from the parcel to 
the west.  

 The application indicates that it complies with the 50 ft. setback from the 
wetlands  

 The mining is permitted and monitored by the FDEP.   

 When the mining permit is closed out, there will be a full reclamation plan 
which will also be monitored by FDEP.   



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 9 of 62 
 

 The applicant did hold a Citizen’s Bill of Rights meeting.  There were no 
attendees,  therefore no objections were raised in the meeting.  No notices 
of objection were received from the property owners who were sent notices 
of the meeting.   

 Staff recommended approval to transmit the proposed FLUM amendment 
to the Department of Economic Opportunity for review and comment with 
the special condition to maintain a 50 ft. setback from the natural area 
adjacent to the wetlands.   

 
 Nunamaker:  They have been mining this for years.  What is the benefit of changing this to mining 

now?  They mine everyday.  
 

 Lex: They can mine without doing this, that is correct.   
 

 Nunamaker:  So, what is the benefit then? 
 

 Lex:  I think the benefit is for them.  It will create a conforming use and should they want 
to sell the parcel for anybody else to use, they would be selling it with an approval of 
the mining use on the site.  Instead of selling a nonconforming use – there again, 
they have vested rights and they can continue to operate with their DEP permits. 
 

 Youman: I have a question.  You said that there was no one to object knowing that it is going 
to be mined.   Was this property advertised in the paper so that people could 
actually know what was going on?   Now, a lot of times, they will have a hearing 
right at the property and no one is notified and no one shows up and they are still in 
compliance.  But, was it put in the newspaper so people would know? 
 

 Lex: As part of our ad, there was also a sign posted on the property indicating that this 
would be public  hearing tonight on this.  It was also noticed on our website.   
 

 Henderson:  In terms of him talking about the actual meeting where nobody showed up, those 
are done even better, I believe, than a newspaper advertisement.  Notices are 
actually mailed directly to people’s houses that live within 1,000 ft.  
  

 Lex:  Are you referring to the Citizens Bill of Rights  meeting?   They were noticed as well.  
We did receive one call from a person asking if this parcel was part of the hearing 
tonight.  I said, “Yes,” and informed them of where the meeting was, where they 
could find the information and told them that if they had any questions, they could 
call back.  We heard  nothing else.  
 

 Lasley:  I have questions.  The letters that are sent out, they generally say that we should be 
able to see a list of the parcels where those letters were sent to so that we know 
that the people within a quarter mile or half mile were mailed and noticed about the 
land use change.  That is not in here.  All I have is copies of items.  So, in the future, 
that would be helpful and it would be nice to know that all of them heard about it 
and all the  “I”s are dotted and the “t”s are crossed.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 10 of 62 
 

I am a little concerned about the residential homes that are there.  There is a rural 
residential section that is approximately .11 mile northeast across Crowder Road.    
Again, we are going through all these papers, Chapter 4 and Chapter 5 and talking 
about compatibility.  Now we’ve got a rural residential house and that is not the 
only one, there are more that I can see on the map.  I am a little worried about 
compatibility for them from the noise from the trucks.  
 

 Lex: The use is there.   You are not creating a new incompatibility.  The mining is there.  
The trucks are there.  For compatibility purposes, again, there is a distance.    
 
So, I look at compatibility when you are introducing something new.  The adjacent 
uses are not residential right next to it.   
 
I understand your concern, but, I think that if there was a compatibility issue with 
those residences, we are not aware that any of the homeowners have any concerns.  
That use – those trucks and that impact is existing.   
 

 Henderson: The county attorney can correct me if I am wrong, but, their use is vested.  I don’t 
think you could take it away from them now if you wanted to.   
 

 Lasley:  Well,  another one of my questions is:  They are currently mining the property and 
what is it – 20 trucks a day going out?   
 

 Lex:  `I do not have a traffic analysis.   
 
Elva, can you speak to this ? 
 

 Peppers:  Yeah.   As far as the trucks in this particular property and how it is being used, I think 
I can probably build a better picture as far as what is happening out there.  As Ms. 
Lex said, this has been an existing mine since before the Comprehensive Plan was 
adopted.   
 
The first point I would like to make is when the Comprehensive Plan was adopted, 
this was designated as Ag-3.  In the Ag-3 at that time was where you would put 
mining.  So, this has been conforming land use until the Comprehensive Plan was 
changed to add a mining category.   
 
It is not the case where was done, it is just that it wasn’t change along the way to 
keep up with the Joneses, so to speak.  We are trying to do that now and trying to 
do he right thing.  We are trying to strike it in stone that this is what it is and that is 
what the county has assigned.  We are trying to make it right.   
 
Years ago, we had previously discussed with the county planning department about  
doing this as an overall fix where all these mines would automatically be placed in 
the mining category rather than in the Ag-3 designation.   
 
This owner wants to do it now on his own dime.  So, that is what we are asking you 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 11 of 62 
 

to  do.   
 
The mailing addresses were presented and it is on one of these maps right here.  All 
the parcel ID numbers are there.  The map shows which one of these parcels were 
notified.  That includes the three small lots that you are referring to over here.  
 

 Lasley:  I don’t have that in my packet.  
 

 Lex:  It wasn’t  included in the packet.  
 

 Peppers:  You were asking about the traffic.  There are two extremely large  mines to the 
north of this within 300 feet that are very active.  Both of them come down Sadberry 
Road and Crowder Road and Roberts Sand Road.  This particular site is owned by 
Allen’s Excavation.      They don’t sell sand commercially.  They do road work, so 
when they need material for their jobs, they may come here and get it.  They also 
have a mine in Leon County.  That is where they get the majority of their material.   
 
Right now, this is not a very active mine.  For example, they got the Quincy by-pass 
job and they got material for that project from here.  It saved them money, I am 
sure.  
 
As far as the number of trucks – they own 5 trucks.  So, however many times those 
trucks can go back in one day is the maximum number.  So it is probably not that 
many.  It is market driven and also distance to dump those trucks.  
 
Any other questions?  
  

 Henderson:  Do we have any comments?  
 

 Youman: What about this company if they want to sell it in the future to someone else.  Is 
there a problem with them selling it?  
 

 Peppers: The owner is doing this with the other mine in Leon County.  They are going through 
all of the permits and everything and getting everything in order.  This is what you 
want from a property owner and a business person.  You want them to make sure 
that they take inventory and try to get everything done correctly.   
 
They could sell it now and still keep mining it.  Mr. Weldon’s son also works in the 
business, so, it may be passed down to the son.  I really don’t know what their 
future plans are.  They have not disclosed that.   
 

 Lasley:  I have a question about the roadways.  What roadway will this property access? 
 

 Peppers:  It comes out on Roberts Sand Road and then to Crowder Road and then to Sadberry.   
 

 Lasley: Which ones are paved?  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 12 of 62 
 

 Peppers:  Sadberry.  
 

 Lasley:  And who access to Roberts Sand Road and Crowder Road? 
 

- Peppers:  Both of those are private road owned by the other mining companies.  Crowder 
Road would go to the pit to the north, which is no longer owned by Crowder.  They 
sold it.  Roberts Sand still owns the pit that is to the west.    
 
The roads accessing this property is only used by trucks immediately other than 
Sadberry.  
 

 Lasley:  There are no residences that use these two roads? 
 

 Peppers:  That is correct.  
 

 Youman:  No.  
 

 Nunamaker:  There are quite a few residents that use Sadberry Road.  
 

 Youman: Yes, Sadberry, but not Roberts or Crowder.  
 

 Peppers:  Like I said, those are private roads.  
 

 Henderson: Do we have commissioners with any other questions?  
 
If not, do we have anybody in the public that would like to address the commission 
on this item?  
 
Seeing no member of the public requesting to address the commission, I would like 
to request whether we have a motion from any commissioner that would like to 
suggest which of the options as suggested on page 6 of Item 7 on the agenda – 
recommendations by staff to the commission.  Do we have a motion on those?  
 
 

 Bouie: So moved for Option one – approval of Allen’s Excavation Large Scale 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment changing the land use 
designation from  Ag-3 to Mining (LSPA-2019-01) with the condition that the Label 
on Exhibits A and B of the Environmental Analysis and maintain a fifty foot (50’) 
natural area setback to the wetlands as indicated in the Compatibility Analysis 
response to Policy 5.3.4 of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

 Bridges- 
Bright:  

Second  

  
Henderson:  

 
All in favor?  
 

 Nunamaker 
Youman 

Aye.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 13 of 62 
 

Henderson 
Bouie 
Scott 
Bridges-
Bright 
 
 

 Henderson:  Opposed?  
 

 Lasley:  No.  
 

 Henderson: The motion passes 6 – 1.   
 
That will take us to item No. 8.  
 

8.  Public Hearing:  Ordinance 2017-003  to update the capital improvements schedule 
of the Capital Improvements Element (LSPA-2018-11) 
 
 

 Lex:  Thank you for this opportunity to update you on the capital improvements schedule.  
I didn’t have a chance to look at this with Jill afterwards.  I wanted to make sure that 
we clarified first that this public hearing is for consideration of a recommendation to 
adopt  an ordinance  (there should not have been an ordinance number listed in 
that) to update the Capital Improvement Schedule.  The Board approved the Capital 
Improvement Schedule for FY 2019 thru FY 2023.  That is attachment #1.    
 
Having actually worked with capital improvement schedules for a number of years, I 
want to say first that any information that was included on this strike-thru from 
2017 and 2018 was really not relevant to this agenda item.  It was from the previous 
item when you adopted the Capital Improvement Schedule back in September.  
What we are looking at is change from that schedule that was approved and you 
adopted  a Capital Improvement Element with a budget for Fantana Trail.  We have 
now received notice that we need to add $200,000 into the FY 2018/19 for that 
project to be eligible for the FRDAP grant.  
 
Therefore, we are asking approval to transmit this to the Department of Economic 
Opportunity with this revised Capital Improvement Element with the additional 
funds for county parks in order to be in compliance with the request for the grant.  
 
We recommend Option 1 that the Board of County Commissioners adopt the Capital 
Improvements Schedule of the Capital Improvements Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Any questions? 
 
 

 Lasley:  In the FL Statutes 43(A)(4) it says (and this is what we are talking about tonight, the 
capital improvement schedule) “A schedule of capital improvements which includes 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 14 of 62 
 

any publicly funded projects of federal, state, or local government.”  So, my guess is 
that anything that we get funds from the state or that the county government 
decides to do or that the federal government helps us with and which may be 
privately funded for which the local government has no fiscal responsibility.  So, 
those are supposed to be included in the capital improvement schedule.   
  

 Lex:  If you meet the threshold of the definition of a capital improvement.  So, yes, it 
would be.  
 

 Lasley:  Right.  I got that.  Previously, we have had things like the hospital and courthouse 
grant money to improve the support infrastructure, expansion, interstate exchange, 
so I am just trying to verify that none of those exists.  Is that correct?  
 

 Lex: No, we are looking at -  pursuant to Florida Statute, the only requirement is that our 
capital improvement schedule that we include in our Comprehensive Plan reflect 
any funds that are from local, federal or state entities or from a private developer 
through a private agreement.  To insure that the adopted level of service are 
achieved.  So, if we have no adopted level of service on those other facilities, those 
funds and those projects are reflected in your county’s budget.  This is simply a 
subset of the projects that would insure that we meet the level of service required.   
 
In addition, we can include projects in the capital improvement schedule in the 
comprehensive plan if it is to our benefit when applying for a grant.  Sometimes they 
will carry favorably that we have included it in our capital improvement schedule as 
a part of our larger planning process.   
 
So, we are meeting the requirements for that and that is why you won’t see the 
hospital in here or ambulances or anything of that sort.  We have not adopted level 
of service pertaining to those.   
 

 Lasley: You are combining two different statements in Number 4.  The next sentence in 
number 4 states, “projects necessary to insure that any adopted level of service 
standards are achieved and maintained for a five year period must be identified as 
either funded or unfunded  and given a level of priority.   
 

 Lex: We don’t have an adopted level of service for some of those other projects that you 
referenced.   
 

 Lasley:  Right, but, to me, that does not reflect the first sentence.   That is my statement for 
the record.  
 

 Lex: Well, this is the way that FL Statute is written.  Again, our responsibility is through 
the Comprehensive Plan is to insure that we include the projects that will inform the 
public of what we are funding to achieve our level of service.  It also informs 
individuals that may want to develop whatever level of service are and planned 
projects that we may have that will benefit their future development.  So, regarding 
that statement, that is the way the Statute is written.   Maybe David will have a 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 15 of 62 
 

comment.  
 

 Lasley:  Thank you.  
 

 Lex:  You are welcome.  
 

 Henderson:  Any other commissioners have any questions?  
 
Do we have anybody from the public that would like to address the board with 
comments.  
 
Showing no comment or questions from the public, I would like to ask the 
commissioners  if anyone would like to make a motion.   Options in this case are on 
page 2 that are suggested by staff with the recommendation of Option 1.   
 

 Youman: I move that we recommend Option 1 – Recommend that the Board of County 
Commissioners adopt the Capital Improvements  Schedule (attached and labeled 
Attachment #1) of the Capital Improvement Element of the Comprehensive Plan.   
 

 Bright:  Second.  
 

 Henderson: All in favor? 
 

 All:  Aye.  
 

 Henderson:  O.K.  Motion passes 7-0. 
 
That takes us to Item 9 on the agenda.  
 

9.  Public Hearing (Legislative) – Amendment to add Chapter 9 to the Land 
Development Code (which includes previously reviewed Subsection 4202 from the 
September 20 Hearing) (LDC 2018-04) 
 

 Gutcher: Thank you, Madam Chair.  
 
This item has been before you as part of Chapter 4 previously.  I believe the last time 
that you looked at this, it may have been September.  You elected to create a new 
chapter in the Land Development Code to address accessory structures or uses and 
as such, the conversation that we had previously regarding equines in residential 
areas has been transferred into this chapter.  This chapter then addresses other 
accessory type uses and structures like home occupations, outdoor storage of 
materials, keeping of livestock and fences.  Some of this language was moved from 
other parts of the Land Development Code and some of it is new.    
 
I will draw your attention to a portion of the document on Page 9 – 3 that is 
highlighted.  In our previous discussion on the equine there was concern about the 
breeding issue on the parcel of residential uses.  So, we are attempting to rectify 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 16 of 62 
 

that with adding a clause – “for sale or other commercial purposes.”   
 
Since your last consideration of this, this clause has been added to help solve the 
concern of being able to reproduce the equine on your parcel and having a certain 
amount.  Other than that, the equine portion of this is pretty similar.   
 
We are also talking about in the first part of the Chapter accessory structures, which 
might be a shed in the back yard.  It could be a pole barn on a residential property or 
even a swimming pool would be considered an accessory structure.   
 
We have more clarity of what we expect when we are reviewing these for residents 
of Gadsden County.  When they are reviewing the Code, they can have a better 
understanding of what to expect when they are looking to permit accessory 
structures and uses.  
 
We are looking for a recommendation from you to move this forward to the County 
Commission as an ordinance to adopt a new chapter, Chapter 9, into the Land 
Development Code.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Question.   I had a call the other day, ladies and gentlemen, I meant to bring his 
name in, but, I left it at the office.  He had a concern about the size of a barn.  I 
didn’t see it in the language in any of my papers, but, he said that he saw or heard 
somewhere where the barns cannot be any bigger than your home site or a trailer 
or whatever.   Is there any kind of language in there that I am missing?  
 

 Gutcher:  I am wondering if he was looking at the first page 9002 part f – “No accessory 
structure shall be greater than 50% of the floor area of the primary structure unless 
the accessory structure is a barn. “  So, it is exempting barns.   
 
Maybe he is confusing that language.  
 

 Henderson:  What it would not accept in that situation would be if somebody has a shop on their 
property that is not constructed to house animals and they live in a trailer.  Then 
that would prevent them from having a machine shop or something on their 
property that was greater than 50% of the floor area of a trailer.  
 

 Gutcher:  Or a shed or something like that.  
 

 Nunamaker: For example:  It doesn’t apply to a barn, but, let’s say the guy is an artist and he did 
sculpting in a shop.  It can’t be any bigger that 50% of the square feet of his existing 
dwelling?  
 

 Gutcher:  That is correct.  If you had a tiny house, you might have a problem.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Even if he had in some cases,  
 

 Henderson:  You are going to see a lot of trailers that are going to be smaller than 50% of 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 17 of 62 
 

somebody’s  pole barn.  
 

 Lasley:   That is not going to work.  
 

 Gutcher:  If you had an 1800 sq ft. house, your accessory structure could not be larger than 
900 sq. ft.   
 

 Nunamaker:  If you had an 1800 sq ft. home.  Yeah.  
 

 Henderson:  I imagine that is going to make a lot of rural residential properties nonconforming 
from the get go.   
 

 Nunamaker:  It sure is.   
 

 Youman:  It is going to upset a lot of people, too.  
 

 Bouie:  How did that calculation come about?  
 

 Gutcher:  Well, 25% is more standard, but we recognize that Gadsden County is more rural in 
nature, so we increased it to 50% in this draft.  
 

 Lasley:  What I have written down is a workshop, a multi-car garage, storage, barn and then 
a mobile home would certainly be penalized for being a mobile home and not a site 
built structure if it is not larger than most site built structures.  
 

 Henderson: I am trying to follow.  So, the mobile home would be a storage unit?  
 

 Lasley:  No, a mobile home on a lot – let’s just say a single wide mobile home would be 
disadvantaged tremendously from a site built home.   
 

 Gutcher:  It depends on the size of the site built home.  
 

 Lasley:  Certainly , but,  let’s just say a 5,000 sq ft site built home.  I just can see that this is 
not going to work.  
 

 Bright:  Why is the accessory structure dependent on the primary structure?  
 

 Gutcher:  It is a policy decision.  If you feel like that you want to delete that regulation, you 
certainly can.  It is intended to prevent a bunch of large accessory structures 
multiple buildings on a single lot with a small house.   
 

 Nunamaker:  Is that limited to zoning area?  
 

 Gutcher:  That is correct.  
 

 Nunamaker:  It doesn’t matter if you are Ag-3 or rural residential?   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 18 of 62 
 

 Gutcher:  That is correct.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Well, I don’t know that I agree with that.  
 

 Youman:  I have a problem with that, too.  
 

 Lasley:  I have another question in that same section.  
9002.b  “The accessory structure must be dependent on the primary use of the 
parcel and cannot constitute a different use.” 
 
To me, that doesn’t make any sense.  The primary use of the parcel is for residential 
and the accessory structures is certainly not going to be for housing, it is going to be 
for other stuff.   
 

 Gutcher:  For example, even your home occupation has to be located within the primary 
structure if you have a home occupation.   You can’t be in an accessory structure.  
 

 Lasley:  That is a whole different category and I am not talking about that.  
 

 Gutcher:  I am trying to follow what you are talking about.  Can you give me an example? 
 

 Lasley:  “The accessory structure must be dependent upon the primary use.”  I don’t 
understand what you are trying to accomplish.    
 

 Gutcher: If it is a residential home, the accessory use must be dependent on that residential 
home.  It can’t be a business.   
 

 Youman:  Like a garage, perhaps.  
 

 Gutcher:  Right.  A garage would house the car of the people that live in the house.  That 
would be an accessory structure.  
 

 Bouie:  I have friends that have three-car garage detached so that her husband can do his 
hobby working on the cars.  It is a hobby and it is probably as large as their house.  
 

 Gutcher:  A hobby is dependent on the people living in the house.  
 

 Henderson:  But the garage, which is as large as the house would be a nonconforming structure 
immediately upon adoption although they would be grandfathered because they are 
already there.  
 

 Youman:  So, is my tractor dependent on me living in my house?  It is for farming.  It is not for 
residential use.  
 

 Gutcher:  Are you on an Ag parcel?  
 

 Youman:  No, I am not on an Ag parcel.   



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 19 of 62 
 

 
 Gutcher:  Are you in rural residential?  

 
 Youman:  I am in rural residential.  

 
 Nunamaker: Apparently it doesn’t matter. 

 
 Gutcher:  I don’t want to get into too many specifics, but 

 
 Youman:  I am just asking.  So, what  if a person owned and sold tractors, would that be in 

compliance with what we are speaking about?  
  

 Gutcher:  Your tractor is not a structure or a use.  
 

 Youman: I mean, the structure that I built, I built for housing  my tractors, lawn mowers and 
those kinds of things.  Trailers.  So, it is not dependent on the residence unless you 
consider me who uses it.  In that case, I am in compliance. 
 

 Gutcher:  Are you using the tractor for a business? 
 

 Youman:  I use it for a farm.  
 

 Gutcher:  It is dependent on you.  If you are farming on a different parcel, but, you are not 
storing the equipment on the farm? 
 

 Youman: I am farming on a different parcel.   I store some equipment on the farm, but, not 
my tractor.  I have things that I need to do at my house and I transported one of my 
tractors to my house and I actually keep it there most of time.  It is much bigger than 
the other one.  
 

 Gutcher:  A tractor to me isn’t a structure or a use.  It is a vehicle.  So, the barn is the accessory 
structure.  You would be grandfathered if this were considered.  But, if you were to 
build one after this was adopted, it would be limited to 50% of the size of your 
house.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Does that include any structure at all?  Just a pole barn with a roof?  Is that the same 
as a structure?  
 

 Gutcher:  I think that pole barns are exempted in AG category.  That has been my 
understanding in Gadsden County because you are in an agriculture future land use 
category, you are an agriculture use.  
 

 Bouie:  I don’t see the need for measurements of accessory structures.   
 

 Gutcher:  That is certainly something that you can change if you would like to.  
 

 Henderson:  Based on the commissioners comments here tonight, do I hear a motion to strike 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 20 of 62 
 

subsection f from 9002.  9002(f)? 
 

 Bouie Yes.  
 

 Bright:  Second.  
 

 Henderson:  All in favor? 
 

 All:  Aye.   
 

 Nunamaker:  Public input? 
 

 Lex:  One point that I would like to make.  I don’t know whether you would want to 
consider any replacement language such as, “The total of all accessory uses may not 
exceed the primary use unless they would come in for a variance.”  Something like 
that.  Just wanted to put that out there.  
 

 Lasley:  Again, we are talking about numbers here.  You don’t have language in here that 
restricts a parcel to one accessory building.  Later on when we start talking about 
those other uses, they can have up to seven (7) accessory buildings on their 
property.  These are the new categories that you created for us.  So, people can 
have as many as they want as long as they comply with 7. 
 

 Gutcher:  Yeah, there is not a limit on this page about how many you can have.   
 

 Henderson:  We are just dealing with the motion that we’ve got on Subsection (f).  We have a 
motion and a second for discussion.  
 
Do we have comments from the public on that particular portion? 
 
 

 Lex:  Yes, we do.  We have Miss Heather  Cave and here is her information.  102 Beaver 
Creek Road.  
 

 Heather  
Cave:  

Madam Chair, I have comments on this section as well as the entirety Chapter 9 that 
will be discussed.  Do you prefer that I make my comments now or hold off on it 
until the end.   
 

 Henderson:  My question was going to be – because I think we are probably going to have other 
discussion on the different parts of Chapter 9, so what is the will of the commission.  
Do we limit discussion now to our motion that is pending?  I think we have to do 
that.   
 
We have a motion pending on just subsection f.  
 

 Cave:  O.K.  I appreciate your time.  My name is Heather Cave.  I live in District 2 at 102 
Beaver Creek Road.  I work at FSU.  I am the director of the research foundation, so 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 21 of 62 
 

my business is not in my home.  I moved to Gadsden County because I work in 
Tallahassee and my husband works in Attapulgus.  I have anywhere from 3 – 4 
horses at a time and five cows and multiple dogs.  I have rescue dogs.  I live on 6 
acres in the Reston Community.  The reason I moved there was because we have the 
flexibility to do what we want on our own property.  That means the ability to breed 
a horse.  I know that is a different category, but, I have the ability to have cows on 
my property.  I have the ability to have a barn for those cows.  To have a barn for my 
tractor.  I have a workshop on my property.  Going through this Chapter 9, I am 
completely out of compliance.  Completely.   
 
It is un-fathomable to me that this would even be considered.  I appreciate all your 
anguish in reviewing this.  I am greatly concerned.  I have a variety of present 
neighbors who feel the same way who wanted to come tonight, but, they were not 
able to come.  I  think that if it came to a commission vote, there would be a packed 
room who would be very unhappy this specific item that we are talking about and 
Chapter 9, which I will speak to as well.  
 
I want to speak strongly against what we are talking about today – the limit on the 
accessory structures.  I would already be out of compliance.  We have a nice home.  
It is 1500 sq. ft.  the square foot total of all of our out buildings – horse barn, cow 
barn, workshop is in excess of the 1500 sq. ft.  I don’t care if you raise it to 50% from 
5%, that is not going to work.  That is not just me speaking for myself.  That is 
speaking for my neighbors.  You can drive through Reston and see numerous 
separate buildings that are garages, apartments, a lot of mother-in-law homes, 
workshops that would be out of compliance of this regulation.   
 
I know that we would be grandfathered in, but, I feel like that is not the feeling of 
the members of Gadsden County who like the right to do what they want on their 
own property.  This is not Leon County where we are dense and need strong 
regulations and rules about how you use your own property.  
 
Anyway, I thank this board for hearing me.  I appreciate the opportunity to speak 
again as we move forward.  
 

 Henderson:  Do we have anyone else from the public that would like to address their concerns? 
 

 Gutcher:  I would like to remind the commission that anyone who has a land use designation 
of agriculture doesn’t have any restriction on the farm animals.  It is only if you are 
in the yellow rural residential.  I know this is a subject that was confusing the last 
time we came forward.  
 

 Cave:  I will have additional comments when we get there.  
 

 Gutcher:  O.K.  
 

 Cave:  I have some concerns about that, too.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 22 of 62 
 

 Henderson:  We are only addressing  Subsection f.  
 
Are there any other comments?  
 
In the case that we have no other comments, we do have a motion and second on 
the table to strike the floor area restrictions.   
 
ALL IN FAVOR? 
 

 ALL:  AYE. 
 

 Henderson: Anybody against the motion? (no response)  
 
The vote is 7 – 0.  The motion to strike the  9002.F passes unanimously.  
 

9.  Public Hearing – Amendment to add Chapter 9 to the Land Development Code  
   

Moving on.  I actually do have comments on what we were just talking about.  Since 
we have brought up the keeping of livestock – When we addressed this the last 
time, I apologize that I don’t think I was as prepared as I needed to be.   
 
I think our current regulations are really bad.  The way the current regulation reads 
is that livestock shall be prohibited specifically in rural residential.  In residential 
areas where the keeping or use of livestock destroys or materially impairs the value 
of the adjacent premises, which includes unpleasant odor.  So, basically what we 
have right now is we do not have (as I believed in the past that we did) a situation 
where it (livestock) is currently prohibited.  It is not.  It is currently prohibited if any 
of your neighbors think you smell or that your pigs smell.  I think we can all agree 
that it is a terrible standard.  You are either in compliance or out of compliance 
depending on whether you neighbors think your livestock is smelling.   
 
So, I do think we need to fix it.   I think that jumping from that standard to where it 
is o.k. until somebody complains to a standard where we are going to ban it except 
for keeping of horses for personal use.  That is a pretty big jump.  I know that we 
have checked and we have adopted a definition that does allow chickens in rural 
residential areas.  I know we were working of definitions before and that and that is 
going to be fixed where people will not have to give up their chickens.  I think that is 
a big area.  
 
As she mentioned  earlier, she has cows.  I know somebody else that has cows on 10 
acres in rural residential in a different area down the road from you.  They were 
really concerned.  Again, you all are grandfathered, but, I think it is going to be a 
significant problem and I do think that we need to fix the current definition.  I am 
just now sure what is proposed is the best way to do it.  On the other hand, I don’t 
know that I know the magic language is.  So, I will throw that out to you guys for 
discussion.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 23 of 62 
 

Going from it is o.k. until somebody complains that you smell to a place where we 
are banning it all except for a few horses for noncommercial use. That is a pretty big 
jump.   
 

 Nunamaker:  Give us the exact subsection that you are speaking to.  
 

 Henderson:  Yes, absolutely.  It is going to be 9003.C.  The old one is  
 

 Lasley:  Can we start at A? 
 

 Henderson:  We can, but, that was my particular thing that I was concerned about.  I am happy to 
jump around after that.  But, I remember that the public had brought that up as a 
particular concern and I thought it appropriate to go that now.   
 
The current one is Subsection 4202 (A)(2).  That is what we are currently changing.  
Again, I was mistaken last time.  I thought it was currently prohibited except we 
were not enforcing that necessarily.  I was wrong.  The way it reads is that it is fine 
until it smells.   
 

 Lasley:  O.K. What page are you on?  
 

 Henderson : I am on page 9-2 at the bottom.   That is my concern.  I don’t know that I am o.k. 
with expressly prohibiting it if you are rural residential.  
 

 Gutcher:  May I?  I think I left my Code out in the car, but, it was my recollection that the 
current language also states that if you are going to have something that is not 
equine, you have to get permission from the county commission in rural residential.  
 

 Henderson:  It says that is only restricted to 5 acres or less.  But, what the actual provision 
currently says in 1 4202 (A)(2) “Livestock shall be prohibited in residential areas 
where the keeping or use of any livestock destroys or materially impairs  the value of 
the adjacent premises.  Materially impairs shall include, but, not limited to 
unpleasant odors.  Horses and other equine species or bred as pets may be 
permitted on properties of less than five acres as a special exception use only to be 
permitted by the commission and the board of county commissioners.”  
 
So, on her property where she has 6 acres, as long as she doesn’t have a neighbor 
currently that complains that she smells, it is permitted.  I understand what they 
were trying to build into this provision, but, I think the way it currently reads is very 
problematic.  I don’t know how to fix it.   The first time we discussed this in 
September, we had an absolutely packed room.  It is a concern.  People want to live 
here because they want to be able to have a hobby life.  We have so many strange 
places that until we can fix the land use map where we have so many odd places 
where it is rural residential in the middle of an agriculture area.  The property 
doesn’t look any different.  Nobody understands they are rural residential.  I think it 
is problematic.  I am curious to see how you guys would suggest fixing it.  I don’t 
know how to fix it.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 24 of 62 
 

 
 Bouie:  Madam Chair, on your minimum sized property, is there any way to have a fixed 

buffer?   That way the smell will not come into consideration if there is a buffer.  
 

 Henderson: I think there are buffer situations that are built into the new provisions.  
 

 Bouie:  For instance, if I have 4 acres, but, I was capable of maintaining 50 ft. for my 
livestock so as not to be near my neighbor’s home.   
 

 Henderson:  That is what you’ve got – a vegetative buffer within 15 feet of the property line has 
to be retained.  Then you’ve got down here like in Subsection 9 there is talk about 
controlling the equine waste.  It talks about water quality protection.  It has to be 
kept in this place where it does not impact sewage disposal or water supply.   
 
You’ve  got a minimum area of property regulation.  I think a lot of those things are 
really good that will address some of the issues we have now.   
 
My specific concern is from jumping from a situation in which various types of 
livestock are allowed to a piece of property 5 acres or bigger to where nothing is 
allowed, but, horses.  Since we have determined that chickens are not livestock. 
 

 Bouie:  Well, I guess I am trying to consider if a buffer  
 

 Nunamaker:  Smells don’t really care about a buffer.  
 

 Bouie:  I see number 7 – What I am trying to get at is a buffer between my horses and my 
neighbor who doesn’t want horses.  I am suggesting that if you have livestock, you 
can have whatever you want, just have this provisional buffer for the neighbor who 
may not have livestock.  That is all.  It could be 25 – 50 ft.  I am asking the people 
who have land and livestock if that is feasible for you?   Does that make sense?  So 
the neighbor who complains, they could say, “We put in this buffer. ” You would 
have at least 50 ft. free from livestock.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Did they complain about the smell?   Smell doesn’t care about buffers.   
 

 Bouie:  I understand.  I can move across I-10 and still smell it.   
 

 Nunamaker:  How about noise?   Noise doesn’t care about buffers either.  I have a neighbor who 
has too many dogs and it is very annoying, but, there is nothing I can do about it.  It 
is really bad.  
 

 Bouie:  I am just suggesting that may help.  It is unfair to the person who has or who wants 
to have the recreational farm if they can’t have what they want.  Likewise, it is just 
as it is unfair for those persons who are living next to it and must deal with the smell 
even though they have no animals.  I am just suggesting that a buffer is a way to the 
answer.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 25 of 62 
 

I asked the questions of those persons who have livestock.  We have a citizen who 
looks like she can answer that.  
  

 Cave: I think the whole intent of these regulations is for someone who has a certain 
expectation of living in a residential area and they are not living near farm animals.  
Then the expectation of somebody who is living in the green agriculture area does 
have the expectation of living near farm animals.  I think this is actually written to try 
and protect those who have a residential home in a residential area rather than 
trying to prevent something in an agriculture category.  
 

 Henderson:  I think the actual bigger problem is that we’ve got a lot of stuff designated rural 
residential in areas that probably should be agriculture.  
 

 Cave:  I agree.  In the reverse also.  
 

 Henderson:  I understand that we do have a situation where like in your situation, it is certainly 
possible for you to approach us and ask us to have your future land use map 
designation changed to agriculture.  That would make your nonconforming use then 
conforming.  That is an option for everybody and that would be the same if you got 
ready to buy property in a rural residential area.  You could approach the planning 
commission and ask to have as we have done tonight.  The first two things that we 
did tonight was to take action to make something a conforming use that was 
nonconforming.  So, it is a change that can be made.  It is an extra step.  Then the 
question is – I don’t know enough about vesting rights.  I probably should, but, law 
school was a long time ago.  If you have a vested use now, I don’t know how much 
of that travels with you when you sell the property.   
 

 Gutcher: Typically, 100%.  It stays with the land, not the owner.  
 

 Henderson:  That is my concern.  I think that I would love to see a situation where we took all of 
our rural residential pockets that are randomly stuck in agricultural areas and turn 
them back to agriculture.  If they were, in fact, a commercial use,  make them 
commercial.   
 

 Lasley:  May I make a comment on that? 
 

 Lasley: What we need is an existing land use map. I have been saying that since 1990.  
Everybody says, “Yeah, that would be great idea.”  But, it would actually address 
these issues that are coming up.  My whole neighborhood is zoned rural residential 
and there are no one acre lots in that thing.  So, somebody put a yellow blob on our 
neighborhood for some reason at some time.   
 

 Gutcher: Well, the difficulty with Gadsden and existing land use is that the existing land use 
relies on the property appraiser’s tax assessment.  If you have 20 acres and you are 
not using it for farming and you have one home, it will still be taxed as a single 
family residence and not an Ag use.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 26 of 62 
 

 Lasley:  If you are not doing agriculture, why wouldn’t you?   
 

 Gutcher: That is what I am saying.  Gadsden has always had this very fuzzy line between rural 
residential and agriculture uses.  
 

 Lasley: We could work on getting everybody on the same page because they are certainly 
not.  
 

 Bouie:  So any citizen has the right to apply for whatever category they want.  If a person 
has 20 acres and they are not aware that they could be agriculture, we can’t make 
someone .  
 

 Nunamaker:  There are substantial fees involved.  
 

 Youman: They are prerequisite, too.  I have property that I am not farming on and for me to 
get Ag, I had to plant trees on it.  There are other criteria for me to keep it there.  
 

 Henderson:  That has taken us down a rabbit trail for constitutional exemptions in taxes.  But, in 
dealing with what is in front of us today, I understand we can tell people, “Hey, you 
can come to us.”  I think the problem with that in saying, “You are welcome to apply 
to have your designation changed.”  No. 1 – a lot of people are not going to 
understand the difference.  No. 2 – that puts a couple of extra barriers to buying 
agricultural property or buying property in Gadsden County that you want to use for 
a hobby farm.  I know that we definitely want to continue to encourage people to 
want to live here for a slower lifestyle.   
 
That would be my question  with that Subsection C.  I don’t have concerns with a lot 
of the things that go on in subsection C to set up specifications on keeping equines.  
I just have a problem with jumping straight to banning livestock.  You also don’t 
want somebody with a herd of 40 cows on a six-acre parcel.  I have racked my brain 
with it since September.  I have the front Code on the ipad and it is highlighted in 
two different colors.  I have not been able to come up with definition by myself that 
works.  
 

 Bouie:  My concern is that I think that the original complaint that came before the county 
commission was a 2-acre residential neighborhood that suddenly sued horses.  They 
were riding them.   
 

 Henderson:  In that situation, they should have.  They were a nonconforming use and should not 
have been able to do it on 5 acres or less under the current regulations without 
coming to the commission to ask.  
 

 Bouie:  If we have the size requirement and the buffer requirements, then the typical things 
like smell and all that shouldn’t come into play.  If we do buffers and minimum lot 
size –  
 

 Henderson:  Would you allow though – What we are doing now (proposed) is we are looking at a 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 27 of 62 
 

situation where you can do horses, but, no other livestock.  But, we are coming from 
a situation where you can have livestock if it doesn’t smell.  How do you handle still 
allowing people to have livestock (goats, cows, potentially pigs,)  I suppose we could 
decide pigs are per se smelly.   
 

 Bouie:  But, I keep my pig inside. 
   

 Henderson:  I know somebody that does.   I Know that it is being species bigoted, but,  
 

 Bouie:  I am not so concerned about species as I am lot size and buffers.  
 

 Henderson:  What I am looking for is some ideas on how you can still allow a minimum or a 
“hobby farm” and that is where my problem is.  Help me out here, people.  
 

 Gutcher:  We still have the fundamental problem with the map.  I think you can have a hobby 
farm.  You just have to do your due diligence before you buy property to know that 
you can do on your property what you want to do on the property that you 
purchase.  
 

 Bouie:  O.K., but, we should still be able to tell them what that is.  Right? 
 

 Bright:  Madam Chair, is it possible to limit the number of particular animals since we are 
not trying to get them to get rid of their animals or their noises.  If we say, “3 goats, 
or 3 cows, or whatever” and be specific enough so that someone would know.  If I 
have this parcel of land, I can have this many cows, this many goats, and once I am 
over that limit, that is it.  They can’t have anymore.  
  

 Gutcher: We do have a density for animals.  It is No. 3 and it has to do with the maximum of 
eight (8) per property.  I thought at one time we had a ratio of equines per acre.   
 

 Henderson:  We do.  It is in there.  
 

 Bright:  I am not just talking about equines, I am talking about all of that stuff.  
 

 Henderson:  Can we change it to be any livestock or farm animal per acre?  In other words, you 
can’t do more than 8 total.  
 

 Gutcher:  I understand Gadsden’s unique situation.  As a land use planner, I am cringing 
because I feel like as a residential subdivision property owner, I bought into that 
subdivision not thinking that there will be two cows next to me.  That is just me as a 
planner.   
 

 Henderson:  If we do change it to where it says you can have in rural residential areas a certain 
number of livestock per acre, then if you have done your due diligence, you will 
know that there is a possibility that in that subdivision that is designated rural 
residential on that future land use map, you could have cows next to you.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 28 of 62 
 

 Gutcher:  There is nowhere in Gadsden County I could live without that nuisance next to me.  
Not out in the county.   
 

 Bright:  You could live in town.  
 

 Gutcher:  It is a decision that Gadsden County needs to make on how they want to be.  
 

 Henderson:  At this point, I have a problem with taking us from where we can currently do it to 
the place that is proposed here.  I think a lot of the other stuff in here is really good 
concerning the runoff requirements, concerning berms, keeping it out of the septic 
tank – I think all of that is really good.    
 
If we adopt it exactly as it is written tonight, there is nowhere in Gadsden County 
that you can live other than an acre.  If everybody around you is an acre, you are 
going to have a hard time meeting the rest of the requirements to have horses.  
 

 Gutcher:  No, you could live in the agriculture areas.  This does not apply to the green on that 
map.   
 

 Henderson:  If you wanted to live somewhere where there were  no horses, where you could not 
have horses next door, if you buy in a subdivision where your lot is one acre or 
smaller, you are probably going to be pretty safe from having horses next door.  By 
the time you get done with your surface requirements and your primary home and 
your set backs, you are not going to have room to put them there.  Not if it meets all 
the requirements.  
 
The way that it is currently written there are some places where you can do that.  If 
you buy a rural residential lot now, you are not safe from having horses next to you 
anywhere in the county unless you go and complain that they smell.  You now have 
the power to take away your neighbors livestock.  That would change.  You would 
not be able to make an arbitrary complaint.  I have a problem with that and the way 
it is written.  I also have a problem with the way we are doing it here.  
    

 Bouie:  What I am suggesting is an equation that acknowledges the minimum land 
requirements for safe keeping of the animals, for the waste removal, or care of the 
waste from the animal.  We did an indepth equation it could develop into one of the 
policies.  
 

 Nunamaker:  We should do that in any ag zone, though, or any zone.  
 

 Bouie:  This is what has been brought before us and I am saying that I am with Libbey.  We 
can’t have a rule that allows a citizen to come in say, “Oh, the odor.”   
I am trying to critique it so that  
 

 Henderson: I think we’ve got it here.  If you look at page 9-3 though, I think that  a lot of the 
things that you are talking about that you would like to see are there.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 29 of 62 
 

 Bouie:  It is.  
 

 Henderson:  I think we are there and you might want to add a set back.  All my suggestion is like   
right here, we’ve got the minimum area of the property (….inaudible).  We’ve got a 
maximum of eight (8) equines per property.  All I am suggesting is that we set it as a 
maximum of eight total livestock (members of the livestock family) 
 

 Nunamaker:  Is that per acre?  
 

 Henderson:  It says per property here. A maximum per property.  Anywhere in rural residential, 
you cannot have more than eight.  
 

 Nunamaker:  If you have ten (10) acres in rural residential or if you have one (1) acre in rural 
residential, it is a big difference.  
 

 Henderson: If you adopt this as it is written you can’t have more than eight (8).  If it is smaller 
than that, you’ve got some other requirements in here.  You can’t have more than 
two per acre. So, if you’ve got smaller than a 10 acre parcel.  
 

 Nunamaker:  I have a problem with this whole deal.  We have a future land use map.  It is actually 
a current land use map, which doesn’t  jive with the county’s designations.  We are 
doing all this stuff.  We need a current land use map and we need a future land use 
map that is going to fix all this stuff.  
 
Why are we doing all this arbitrary, well not necessarily arbitrary, but, being very 
specific about rural residential conditions when they don’t make any sense on the 
ground.  We need to fix our map.  
 

 Henderson:  The problem is what we have before us today, we have to decide today whether we 
toss this potential “re-do” out altogether and go back to the drawing board and do 
something different.  Or, we have to adopt this one with some amendments.   
 
What we have before us today doesn’t allow us to change the map.  
 

 Bouie:  I asked a question earlier and a citizen is begging to answer me.  Is there any way 
you can acknowledge her now?  
  

 Cave:  Thank you, ma’am, I didn’t have ants in my pants, I just have a few comments that I 
felt might benefit the board.  
 
I took a few notes here and I might just run down them if you don’t mind.  Obviously 
they deal with this issue.   
 
As far as the fence buffer, I like your comments and the way you are  thinking out of 
the box about what we can do to mitigate the smell.  But, still, you don’t have the 
independence and the ability of the home owner.  I do think having a barrier and 
fence outlined in number 7.  Maybe the solution that you are looking for that is 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 30 of 62 
 

affecting most land owners or smaller farm or hobby farm.  You have a small area, 
so you are trying to capture all of the free food you can such as the grass.  Most land 
owners do fence right on the property line.  I think you are going to get some feed 
back from that.   
 
I think Number 9 that you have outlined here – To avoid the breeding of 
rodents…and controlling the waste not within 100 feet of the property line.  That is 
definitely a solution that can be implemented.   I know that is something that I do 
personally at my house.  I keep all waste.  I shovel it up and move it to a place that is 
not anywhere near my house or my neighbors.  I think that is the best solution that I 
can think of.   
 
I like what you said, Mr. Nunamaker about the dog.  I have a neighbor whose dog 
fence runs right next to my house.  That dog barks all night and loud.  That noise 
isn’t mitigated.  So, how does that relate to my silent horse whose manure I just 
trucked off.  I feel I am punished for something.  There is a dog right there on his 
owner’s property, but, his barking is a nuisance to me similar to the way that the 
smell of horses and livestock is to others.  
 
As far as expectation of your neighbors, I mean if you are looking at rural residential 
zone as I am, I think your neighbors have expectation.  We are in a rural area.  We 
are in a rural county.  It is no surprise to anybody here.  We are a rural county and 
we have horses, cows, and a variety of livestock.   
 
I think a solution for smaller lots should be zoned to have no livestock.  That would 
make sense.  I appreciate this body moving toward regulating this so that the 
solution isn’t  “if you smell, get gone.”  I appreciate that.  I am not just complaining.  
I understand your willingness to make progress.   
 
As far as Ag zoning, I wouldn’t have a problem with moving my home to agriculture 
zoning.  Is there any tax implications that ag designation?  Does that mean you will 
be receiving less ad valorem taxes or is that not an issue?   That is just a question in 
my mind.  
 

 Bouie:  I think you have to have a minimum of 10 acres.  
 

 Henderson: And, the two things are not tied together.  The way you are classed with the 
property appraiser’s office is ag and entitled to the ag exemption, I believe, is 
independent of the land use designation. 
 

 Nunamaker:  It is very different.   
 

 Cave: That is just a question I wrote down because I wasn’t sure.  Thank you.  
 
As far as the recommendation of the maximum of 8 animals for the hobby farms.  I 
agree with what you are saying.   But,  if you have 10 – 20 acres, the eight maximum 
sounds unreasonable.  Perhaps  a solution would be 1.5 livestock per acre.  When I 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 31 of 62 
 

think about, I use my land very carefully.  I use grass, we seed, we (inaudible) so that 
we don’t overuse it and over graze it. I think a reasonable person could accept 1.5 
livestock animals per acre.  If you think about it, 6 goats on 3 acres is not very much.   
The same thing with horses.  I think one per acre is very conservative in my 
experience of 35 years of living on farms.  1.5 might be a better approach and better 
fit the Gadsden County lifestyle.  
  

 Nunamaker:  That half an animal is going to be very difficult to maintain.  
 

 Bouie:  So, you can always be expectant.   
 

 Cave: It is cheaper to feed, he eats less.   I think making it two would be a little more 
liberal, one is more conservative, which is what you want to be.  That is your 
decision because you are the decision makers.  
 

 Youman:  If you try to graze more than one cow on that acre of land, you have to have a good 
check book or you work at a job where you have a lot of  money in your hip pocket.  
 

 Cave:  Oh, yes, sir.  I have round bales of hay and cow licks out there so that they don’t 
overgraze the grass.   
 

 Youman:  I am a cow owner and you need a good acre of land to raise a cow and keep them 
fat.  You don’t want something that the wind is going to blow down.   So, a person 
that has one acre of land with a house on it, one cow is about all he can afford on 
that land.  
 

 Cave:  Is there a minimum number of acres on which you can have livestock in Gadsden 
County?  
 

 Henderson:  Right now if you are going to be under five acres, you are supposed to have to get 
permission and that is specific to equine.  You have to get a special exception use 
from the county commission.  I don’t think very many people do, but, you are 
supposed to.   
 
That takes us to a different part of this proposal in that subparagraph 3.   It reads, 
“For the purposes of calculating the number of equines, the property shall consist of 
all contiguous property subject to common ownership, regardless of the number of 
tax parcel identification numbers assigned to the entire property. “   
 
So, you could have 50 acres and still be restricted to 8 horses.   In that case, I am 
assuming that you would have to come here and ask to be changed to agricultural.  
That is ridiculous.    The longer we talk about it, and I know this is a lawyer thing, the 
more problems I do see with the way we have it proposed.  I do have concerns.  One 
of the things that I think most about  under the Statute under which I currently 
practice is that they adopted.  In this particular instance we have a land owner with 
a problem and then you end up revamping the whole section from that prospective 
and I don’t think that makes good law.   



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 32 of 62 
 

Now, I hate the places in my Statute where it has been done and if I have the ability 
to tear mine apart and fix it, I would.  I have some real concerns about this and I 
know the easy answer is to say, “Well, people need to come and have their use 
changed.”  For a lot of your citizens, that is going to be fairly routine answer for an 
insurmountable task.    
 
Right now, we have to change the  future land use map and it has to go through 
Florida Economic Opportunity.  It is no longer DCA.  I am so old, that is what I keep 
thinking.  You could start the process now and become agricultural and all of these 
restrictions pending would not apply to you.  But, I think that is a pretty big burden 
to put on people in this particular county.  
 
I have some concerns about just about everything under Subsection C.  I don’t know 
where that leads us.  
  

 Lasley:  I have a recommendation.  Subsection C – Keeping of Livestock.  That first sentence 
– “The keeping of livestock on property that is not designated as Silviculture or 
Agriculture on the Future Land Map is expressly prohibited. “ So, let’s  delete that in 
theory.  And then start that with “Livestock may be kept on property designated as 
rural residential subject to the following conditions:  1) was discussed earlier – “A 
parcel that is designated as Rural Residential and is not a part of a platted 
subdivision” – so, if you are not in a platted subdivision, then  you could look at how 
many acres you’ve got and see how you fit in there.   
 
If you are platted, which I am platted, I have 4.3 acres.  We also have covenants that 
allow for everything except for pigs.  That is my particular situation.   
 

 Henderson:  You could change “equine species” in that paragraph to “livestock.” 
That way, if any platted subdivision is welcome to ban it. 
 

 Nunamaker:  Within their covenants and restrictions.   
 

 Bouie:  Question.  If we don’t have any, could we (inaudible) it to get restrictions?   
 

 Henderson:  But if it is a platted subdivision that is not specifically for the keeping of livestock, in 
other words, it is not a subdivision that would be platted as an equine subdivision 
(there are several of those in Tallahassee)  or specifically a hobby farm subdivision, 
any other platted subdivision, if it is a basic subdivision, you can’t have it there.   
That would solve the problem I think that you have referenced tonight.   
 
Thank you, that is very good way to look at that.   
 
 

 Lasley:  So, that is one thing.  I personally would default on my homeowners association 
rather than be denied the ability to have it.  I would be taking my documents into 
the county and say, “I am allowed here because of my covenants and I would like to 
be protected for that because we don’t conform to the rural residential lot.”   



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 33 of 62 
 

 
 Henderson:  Then in paragraph 2,  “equine species” would be changed to livestock.  You would 

have the same thing.  What we have been talking about here is a hobby farm 
situation and not a commercial cow or pig farm.  
 
Wherever there is equine, let’s  change it to livestock.  
 
I am not necessarily comfortable in defining property of all contiguous pieces.  If I 
buy all the lots in a subdivision and they all belong to me, I don’t think I should be 
restricted to only 8 animals in that situation.   
 

 Nunamaker:  I think it should be acreage.  
 

 Henderson:  Per acre?  
 

 Lasley: What are the dimensions of an acre if it were square?  
 

 Nunamaker:  20875 roughly.  20871 
 

 Henderson:  He was saying that for cows, one acre is sufficient.  For horses, it is typically 
calculated as 2.  If it were goats, it would be a whole lot more.  So, does the 
commission have something to suggest as the maximum no of quote, unquote 
livestock units per acre?  
 

 Cave:  Just let me add one thing to my comments and then I will get out of your hair.  
I appreciate your consideration.   I will summarize just real quickly.   On number 2 – I 
do have concerns about limiting the breeding.  I know that some hobby farms do 
have cows and horses that they do like to breed.  Not, necessarily for commercial 
uses.  I just wanted to make sure that I made that comment.   
 
As far as the limits of animals.  To feed a cow, surely one acre is ideal.  But a lot of 
people do it more densely with hay and feed.   So, I just don’t want to get too close 
to that restriction of 1 per acre.  
 
My other comment would be as far as the fence being a certain distance from the 
property line.  That is a concern I had. 
 

  Mr. Youman stepped out of the meeting at 7:57  
 

 Henderson:  Just one minute.  We have lost our quorum.    
 

  Mr. Youman returned at 7:59 
 

 Henderson:  We have now gone back to having a quorum and the meeting can continue.  
We have had a suggestion down the way to consider, perhaps, having the staff 
rewrite this.  Do you mean just Subsection 9003?  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 34 of 62 
 

 Bouie:  Yes.  
 Henderson: We will address the other sections with which we have problems in just a moment.  

Are we talking about  throwing all of 9000 out until we feel better about it?  
I don’t know that any of us want to be here all night.  
 

 Lasley:  We made some changes in the first section.  I had some comments on the home 
occupation, which we haven’t gotten to.  Then we will have some changes in this.  
So, I would like to see the whole thing rewritten and presented again.  
 

 Henderson:  And she was going to have some comments on fences, which, is actually Subsection 
9004.   
 

 Bouie:  Question.  May we send our suggestions to staff?  
 

 Henderson:  There is a question.   How do you guys want to do that?  We have certainly had a 
problem getting us here to have a meeting where we actually take action on a 
noticed meeting.  So, we have not had a whole lot of success in getting to do 
workshop stuff.  Once it gets to past 8:30, we all get ready to go home.  It is 8:00 
p.m. now.   
 
What is the most efficient way for us to communicate with staff when we have 
comments like this so that staff can maybe consolidate them and then bring them 
back to us? 
 

 Lex:  Each of you individually may direct any of your comments to staff as long as it is 
independent of each other with no exparte communications.   
 
Secondly, I actually, in listening to all of this really would like to receive some input 
from stake holders in your community.  Let’s try to have a better understanding.  
This is only my third month here.  I very much hear what you are saying.   I prefer 
that we take a more comprehensive look at the whole section.  So, if you do have 
any comments that you want to finish up now or in writing to us, either way will be 
fine.  
 

 Henderson: I think that the minutes for the September meeting, I think the minutes do a pretty 
good job of summarizing.  We had a number of people from the public speak that 
night.  I think we had a lot of people scattered from around the county.  The room 
was pretty much full.  We had people from Reston.  We had people from north of 
Havana.  We had people from Sycamore and all these places where there are yellow 
blobs on the map.  I think there are a lot of little comments strung in there.  Mostly, 
it has been mostly as Ms. Cave has suggested her tonight.  They are saying, “We 
moved here for this reason.”  
 
One of the things that staff has included here that  I do really like is if you are part of 
a platted subdivision where it is stated in the covenants and restrictions that no 
livestock is allowed, you can be free from livestock.  I think that takes care of the 
questions and concerns that Ms. Gutcher brought up.  Otherwise, there would be no 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 35 of 62 
 

where in the county where you could buy land and expect to be free of livestock.  
That actually creates a good situation.  You can look at it and decide if that is the 
type of subdivision that you want to buy in or not.  That is a very good provision.   
 
I have stared at it and hashed it around and couldn’t come up with anything.   Ms. 
Lasley did a good job in getting me kick-started on some ideas.  I feel like now I can 
take my red pen and make some suggestions and send it to you.  
 
I would like to encourage everybody to do the same thing.  We cannot go to lunch 
and do this.  We cannot discuss over emails.   I have some concerns about it and it 
sounds like everybody else does, too.  I will say on the record, it does not necessarily 
apply to me.  Even though I live downtown in a municipality, I am within the city 
limits of Greensboro.  So, this is not necessarily going to affect me.  I am in an 
agriculture zone for Greensboro.  I can put up a shed that is bigger than my house, 
which is a good thing.  Almost every shed I would want to erect would be bigger 
than 50% of the square footage of my house.  
 
If I happen to live outside the city limits of Greensboro, we would have a great big 
round yellow blob right where the city limit ends past the railroad tracks.  That is a 
chunk of residential that for all intents and purposes is pretty agricultural.  I think 
that anybody who would erect something there would have a problem under this 
subsection.   
 
In any event, do I have a motion that we all take it home and mark it up with our red 
pens and get with staff individually?  
 
 

 Bouie: So moved.  
 

 Youman:  Second.  
 

 Lasley:  We have other parts of this to discuss.   
 

 Henderson: What I was looking for was a motion on was actually do tonight for the entire 
section is to make our comments on all of Section 9000.  That is what I was asking 
for a motion on.  For the entire thing.  That we mark it up with our red pens.  
 

 Youman:  Right.  
 Bouie:  Would you like for me to correct that, Madam Chair?  

 
 Henderson:  Sure.  

 
 Bouie:  Madam Chair, I am offering a motion that we, as commissioners, write our 

comments and suggestions for changes for Section 9000 and submit them to the 
staff so that we can move forward.  
 

 Henderson:  Do we have a second? 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 36 of 62 
 

 
 Bright:  Second.  

 
 Henderson:  All in favor? 

 
 All:  Aye.  

 
 Henderson:  Motion passes.  

 
 Lex:  I want to make sure of one thing.   As you consider your comments (and you like 

that section about the homeowners covenants and restrictions)  that the county 
does not enforce them.  They do not inform the public about them.  So, therefore, 
that responsibility is completely out of our hands.  I just want to make sure that it is 
very clear that burden would be on any property owner or purchaser.   
 

 Lasley:  That does go with the deed, is that correct? 
 

 Lex:  Again, I think that David would have to speak to that.  
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

It is not our jurisdiction.  We don’t have enforcement authority over the covenants.  
They are completely separate and apart from anything that the county does.  The 
county is not in that business. 
   

 Bouie:  They would have to take a civil action for anything to be enforced.  By another body, 
not the commission.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Ms. Lasley, you meant that it goes with the land and not the owner. 
 

 Lasley:  That is correct.  
 

 Nunamaker:  We have an affirmative on that.  
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

Covenants are on the plat.   
 

 Henderson:  Unless they expire.  But, that is a whole other issue.  
 

 Lex:  I know you like that section and I do, too.  But, I just want to make sure that it is very 
clear that the county has no role in that.  
 
Thank you.  
 

 Bright:  Madam Chair, I make a motion that we take a five minute recess.   
 

 Bouie:  Second.  
 

 Henderson:  All in favor?  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 37 of 62 
 

 All:  Aye.  
 

10.   Public Hearing  Chapter 5, Development Standards (LDR2018-8)   
   
 Gutcher:  Yes, this is an introduction to what we are changing in Chapter 5, a little bit in 6, and 

then 7 & 8.    7 & 8 are coming forward to you soon.  
 
This is just the first portion of Chapter 5.  It is not the entirety of Chapter 5.  In order 
to move things along, this is the first portion of chapter 5.  It is titled Development 
Standards.  My first goal in looking at this chapter is to try to stick to the topic of the 
title, which is Development Standards and move some of the issues that are not 
development standards out of the chapter.   You will see a lot of strike-thru in the 
beginning because there were some issues in here that are now going to be more of 
a zoning issue rather than something that will pertain to a development standard.  
 
As we are going forward, and if we can get to it tonight, Chapter 4 will have a lot of 
the particular standards as far as set backs and how you are going to develop inside 
a certain zoning category.  So, that language was stricken in here. There is some 
language about home occupation also.  As you know, that was just moved to 
Chapter 9 as far as accessory uses.  There is a lot of deletion here, not because it 
went away, but, because it went into a different chapter.   
 
We are trying to streamline to help make this more easy to understand.  That is the 
direction from the county commission.  We have some compatibility standards that 
we are introducing as far as what we are looking at when we mandate a 
compatibility analysis.  We have that requirement in the Comprehensive Plan.  We 
want to have standards that are consistent with what we expect and let the 
applicant profide to us when we are looking for those.  
 
The nonconforming uses and structures section is currently in place.  There are a 
few tweaks just to help clarify the language, but, not much really changing there.  In 
addition, The Condemnation Relief Section, which is on page 7 of 105.  The reason 
that it is 105 pages is because it is only the first portion of the chapter.   
 
We really don’t get into much of a change other than the deletions, which have just 
been moved around until we get into the recreational vehicle parks and 
campgrounds.  Actually, this was moved from Section 5900, which is at the end of 
the current chapter.  I am now on page 20.  Again, residential standards will be in 
the zoning Chapter 4 in addition to commercial standards and then intensities and 
densities.  
 
We are adding a portion on page 29 called community residential homes, which is 
essentially a reflection of what Statutes dictate in 419.  This is talking about (on page 
29 at the bottom) community residential homes, which is usually something that is 
six or fewer homes residents .  Certain types of licensees are granted permission to 
live in residential areas.  They have certain restrictions.  The Statute covers it pretty 
well.  This is mostly a reflection of what the Statutes say.  There is a density 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 38 of 62 
 

requirement there and they have to be a certain distance apart.  
 
David had recommended some language change just to clarify not really contextual 
in Part C on Page 30.   To rephrase the first sentence, but it essentially says the same 
thing.  I think that we will go with it.  It will say that “each licensed community 
residential home will occupy only one structure.”  Then “the house may have only 
six or fewer residents.” 
 
As another editorial note, Part E of that subsection  is a repeat of Part A, so we will 
delete Part E.   That is all we got to for this first portion.  
 
 

 Lasley: Madam chair, can we look at this page by page, please.  
 

 Gutcher:  5001 on the first page.   We wanted to reword that to state, “The purpose of this 
subsection is to provide standards (not guidance, but standards) and then scratching 
out “administrative and/or legislative evaluation” and inserting the word 
“consideration.”  So the purpose of this subsection is to provide standards for 
consideration of applications for new development. 
 

 Lasley:  How about guidance standards?  
 

 Gutcher:  I will let David answer that.  Guidance has a different meaning than standards.  
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

Yes. Guidance is “wishy- washy.” Standards are very clear.  These are your standards 
that you have to follow.  The purpose behind this striking of 
“administrative/legislative” is because you leave out the quasi-judicial by doing that.  
So, you need to either strike that  and say that it applies to everything or you need 
to add quasi-judicial somewhere.   It is really not a major change.  Those are the 
reasons for those changes.  It is just to have language that is very solid in terms of 
meaning.  If you start talking about guidance, I can sit here and argue about 
guidance all day and whether you actually have to do what it says or if it is just 
guidance.  
 

 Lasley:  My argument is with the word “consideration.”  I don’t have any problems with the 
word “standards.”  Is it standards for review or proposals.  It is standards for what 
we are going to consider.  We are either going to either think about doing it or we 
are not we are not going to do it.   It seems not definitive.  
   

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

I don’t have a real strong position on that.  My thought is that you are providing 
standards that you are going to consider when you are considering these 
applications.  But, if you would rather stick with “evaluations,” I don’t have a real 
strong preference on that.   
 

 Henderson: To address Commissioner Lasley’s  request that we go page by page, the chair does 
not have an issue with that, however, I think we have a lot of pages where things 
have been struck and moved and I don’t know that we need to go page by page on 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 39 of 62 
 

absolutely everything.  I think that if you have specific points that are in here, (I 
know none of us want to be here all night) and we have two workshops that follow.   
With that in mind, I certainly don’t think that we mind addressing issue by issue, but 
I don’t know that we want to take it page by page and dissect every line.   
I think we have a consensus on that.  These are great crackers, but, I think we all 
want to eventually eat dinner.  
 

 Lasley:  Shall we go.  
On page 4, Subsection 502 – the third line down.  The amendments with existing 
development shall be considered as required by this code.  Again “considered” 
seems subjective to me.   It seems to me that it allows for dismissal.   
 

 Gutcher:  I think that consideration is the application that is coming before you.  Just like the 
thing with the map amendments that you voted on earlier today.  You were 
“considering” them.  You made a recommendation to the County Commission.   
 

 Henderson:  Just before the commission’s edification, I will address the county attorney with 
that.  Is there any particular legal meaning to the word, “consideration,” that would 
allow for a different treatment than the word “addressed?”  
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

In this context, I don’t think so.  I think you are obligated to consider these things 
and address them.  I would think that they would be pretty synonymous in this 
context.   
 

 Lasley:  In “C” of that section, “residential densities and housing type” “type” needs an “s” 
In number “F”, again, we have this whole issue of tax codes.  So, “The future land 
use and zoning analysis shall be that which is listed in the tax code.”  What does that 
mean.  What is the tax code list for properties?  
 

 Gutcher:  The property appraiser, if you go to the county website for the property appraiser 
and you click on your parcel, it will tell you the tax code number and the name of 
the classification to which your property is being taxed as, whether it is a mobile 
home, single family residential, multi-family etc.   That is pretty standard in the 
planning profession; to use as your existing land use category.  That is the best 
available data other than somebody actually going out and doing a windshield 
survey.  That is pretty time consuming. It is possible, but, usually we rely on the 
property appraiser data because they do that.  It is part of their job to go out and 
inspect the homes and they know what the use is on the property.  
 

 Lasley:  So,  say a property is silviculture; yet there is a residence on that property.  What is 
that going to show?   
 

 Gutcher:  That is up to the property appraiser in how they are going to assign a category.  I 
don’t have any knowledge on how they determine it.  It is just our best available 
data and we are just trying to develop a methodology for the applicant to follow 
when they submit a compatibility analysis.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 40 of 62 
 

 Lasley;  So, you don’t know that every residence that is in the county is going to come up on 
the tax code?  
 

 Gutcher:  The property will come up on the tax code.  It is just that how the property appraiser 
assigns the category is up to the property appraiser.  
 

 Lasley:  O.K. but what I asked about was residences.  
I asked about who were living in homes.  That is what I am concerned about.  That is 
my deal.  
 

 Gutcher:  Well, if they have a ag exemption, then they might not show up as a single family 
residence on the tax code.   
 

 Lasley:  Again, the existing land use is going to be much more important information than 
anything up on the wall that somebody blobbed out there.  
 

 Gutcher:  I don’t know to solve that problem unless the county would like to send someone to 
do windshield surveys.   
 

 Lex: Excuse me.  To that point, if we were required to do that, we could not even with 
certainty say that we have assessed what is on that property.  You may not be able 
to see it.  There could be a six foot high fence.  I have no reason to go behind locked 
gates.  To use that as evaluation, it is not going to be consistent in any fashion.  I 
would say that it is not something that I would defend in a legal court.   
 

 Lasley: I agree with that.  I understand that it is not the planning department’s job.   My 
problem is that the information that you are getting from the tax appraiser, if you 
are going to be using the tax code for your database and your database doesn’t give 
you the information that you need in that we are looking to protect the citizens in 
the area.  “Oh, well, this house didn’t show up, sorry.”   There is something wrong 
with that whole way that you are operating. 
 

 Gutcher: It is the best available data accessible to us.   
 

 Bouie:  I think you are going to have to rely on that because your office would not have the 
staff to do what the property appraiser has already done.  Then you would be 
duplicating efforts.  Your issue is only when someone applies for something, so you 
wouldn’t maintain other properties who were dormant for application right now.  
You are doing the best thing available.   
 

 Lasley: Moving on. The next one is “G”.  It deals with offsite impacts that are going to occur 
from unlawful development or something.  Your statement is, “A statement as to 
whether the project will emit” and I would like to add, “for example; excessive 
noise, smoke, glare, odors” because you also have runoff, egress and ingress, safety 
and privacy” that have not been addressed.  There could very easily be issues.  What 
you listed here is not an inclusive list of all the impacts that the citizens can state as 
being problems that they might have with this development.  So, somehow, that 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 41 of 62 
 

paragraph needs to allow for things that are not listed there.  You can’t limit 
compatibility to just these five issues.  You have to include all the other ones that I 
listed plus whatever somebody may come up with during the course of the 
application.  
 

 Gutcher: I think that it is important to list what you want them to tell you.  I don’t think it is a 
good place to be that there is an arbitrary decision on who thinks what is a nuisance.  
I think ingress and egress is a good addition to part G.  We can certainly add that if 
that is something the Planning Commission would like to recommend.  Can you go 
through some of the other lists that you made.  
 

 Lasley:  Runoff.  
 

 Gutcher:  There shouldn’t be any.  It should be self-contained on the parcel.  
 

 Lasley:  Safety.  Privacy.  
 

 Gutcher:  What is private to me might not be private to you.  
 

 Lasley:  I would go for Ingress and Egress. 
 

 Nunamaker:  Are you talking about the number of vehicles coming in and out of a project?  
 

 Lasley:  Well,  
 Gutcher:  That would be traffic generation.   

 
 Lasley:  My thoughts are for example the mining that we just approved.  Not tonight, but, 

before on 267.  I personally think that they need a turning lane into their lot off of 
267 for the trucks.  Just to make it safe.  Maybe another lane when they turn left.  
They will all be turning to go north.  So, that kind of thing.  
 

 Bouie:  Those type of issues are considered by the Department of Transportation, I thought.  
 

 Gutcher:  Whether they need a turning lane? 
 

 Bouie:  Yes.  
 

 Gutcher:  It can a local standard, but, it usually depends on the amount of traffic and the type 
of traffic, too.  But, with a long semi, it takes longer to slow down.  But, generally, it 
is the number of trips.  
 

 Lasley:  If nobody has anything, I have something on Page 6.   
 
It is “E”  close to the bottom under “Conflict.” If you will, explain that section to me.  
“The provision in some other portion will prevail over this one.”   Why would you do 
that? 
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 42 of 62 
 

 Gutcher:  It could be an issue where you are trying to protect like an environmental future.  
That might take a precedence that would take hierarchy over this subsection.   
 

 Lasley: The other thing is that this is the Land Development Code we are talking about, 
right? 
 

 Gutcher:  Yes.  
 

 Lasley:  So, anybody can get a variance on anything.  
 

 Gutcher:  That is not how it is written.  I think it has to be a bulk regulation.  
 

 Lasley:  So, why write this if it doesn’t stand?  I mean, why not write something that 
addresses – why would you write this and then say It doesn’t apply? 
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

It was probably geared toward – there is something more specific some where else, 
right? If there is a specific regulation that addresses it rather than this more general 
regulation.  Maybe that it what it should say.  I assume that is the intent.   
 

 Bouie:  That does make sense.  Why did you put it in there?  You would assume you were 
making decisions based on your own standard, so why would you put that in there? 
 

 Gutcher: Yeah.  This isn’t language that I added.  This was already here and if you want me to  
delete it you can.  But, I am trying to think of a specific situation I can and historic 
preservation as an example would be a good one.  
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

When you are talking about nonconforming , you may have another section that is 
specific to a certain nonconformity.  This is your general application.  Anything that 
is nonconforming, this applies.  But, you may have something and I think we actually 
kicked this around a little bit when we were talking about the horses, the equine and 
the livestock stuff – about putting something specific as to legal nonconforming 
livestock uses.  So, that would apply.  That is the idea.  It may need to be reworded 
to say something more along the lines “In the event, there is a more specific 
provision in this code, that specific provision would govern rather than these general 
rule.  
  

 Lasley:  Yes, I am more comfortable with that. A more specific provision. 
Ya’ll jump in anytime.  
 
Page 8 – Subsection 5008 Number D  The numbers reflected there are 5004 A – is 
that correct?   
 
 

 Gutcher:  5004 A is Nonconforming Uses Public Hazard.  So, subsection  
 

 Lasley:  It basically doesn’t go in a round circle for me.  Then again, it could be a threat 
….”shall not apply.”  So, if they shall not apply, then it can be a threat to general 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 43 of 62 
 

health, safety and welfare and they can expand.   So do we need like a 1(a) or A(1) 
on Expansion and Extension so that we can signify that.  So, on page 5 
 

 Gutcher:  I think it should be A – Public Hazard;  B- Expansion or Extensions;  C- Modifications 
of Use  
 

 Lasley: Or you could do A(1) however you want to do that .   
 

 Gutcher:  I think the number just got separated.   
 

 Lasley:  Just renumber it.  So, we are going to change that to 5004 B and B will be the 
Expansion and Extensions  
O.K.  
 
The next page, page 9.    Number E   
You have “Proof of Use” and the other evidence is deemed relevant and reliable by 
the planning official.  Having gone through so many planning directors in my history, 
I feel that is too subjective.   
 

 Gutcher: The reason why this line (Part E) was added had to do with the topic earlier in the 
discussion tonight on the equine and how to accrue how that horse had been there 
for a certain amount of time to say that it was a grandfathered use.  In order to 
capture that, you can’t show a utility bill, you can’t show insurance damage.  There 
has to be a way for someone to show that the horse was there for a certain amount 
of time.  That is the reason for this part E.  Certain specific circumstances, the 
planning official can say that this is the type of evidence that we will take.  We can’t 
think of everything in every situation.  It is just to let there be a way for the planning 
official to take other types of evidence.   
  

 Lasley: O.K.  And that is applying to occupancy of a nonconforming use or structure? 
 

 Gutcher:  Yes.  You had to be there with the horse.  How are you going to show evidence of 
the horse?  
 

 Henderson:  If we are going to make some changes, do we want to include livestock, we will need 
to change that wording from  equine species or equine residency to livestock.   
It should be livestock anyway because you are going to have people now that have 
livestock that under the new thing would be a nonconforming use.  So even if we 
don’t change 9000 to include livestock going forward, it needs to say livestock here 
because they are saying it currently.  Does that make sense?  
 

 Lasley:  You are talking about F.  O.K.  
 

 Henderson:  That gives specifics about what the planning official can consider for vesting uses.  
 

 Bouie:  Is there anyone we can forward our suggestions to staff?   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 44 of 62 
 

 Henderson:  For the purposes of keeping livestock in rural residential zoning district may include 
history of residency or an established agriculture exemption.   
 

 Henderson:  I think what we just heard, to interrupt Commissioner Lasley as she is going through 
this, we just heard a suggestion that we treat this like we did 9000 and provide 
written information to staff instead of taking it apart tonight.  I am assuming 
speaking for you that it would be in the interest of getting done sooner and not be in 
here until 11 p.m.  
 

 Gutcher: If I can take some liberty to just suggest a change of equine species to livestock and 
remove the second equine word.  Proof of use for keeping of livestock in rural 
residential zoning may include history of residency or an established agriculture 
exemption as assigned by the Gadsden County Tax Collector.  
 

 Henderson:  That is the exact note that I had made.  I guess what we had happen here, which 
again is interrupting you as we are going through, is a suggestion, not in the form of 
a motion at this time.  That would essentially table this issue until our next meeting.  
And we will have provided these types of details and comments to staff.  Is that 
what you are suggesting?  
 
 

 Bouie:  Yes, Madam Chair.  
 
What is the will of the body? 
 

 Youman:  So moved.  
 

 Bouie:  Second.  
 

 Henderson:  All in favor? 
 

 Bouie 
Bright 
Youman 
Nunamaker 
Henderson 
Scott 
 

Aye 

 Henderson:  Opposed? 
 

 Lasley:  No.  
 

 Henderson:  The motion passes 6 – 1 
 

 Lasley: So, we will discuss this again next time? 
 

 Bouie:  We have asked that we each go through it as you have done and give our 
recommendations to staff.  When we come back, staff would have incorporated 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 45 of 62 
 

them into the document that we will see next time.  
 

 Lasley:  There are only two issues on here left.  
The one we probably discuss is the mobile home parks and the recreation vehicle 
parks.  
 

 Henderson:  We have voted to continue it to the next meeting.  But, at this point, I suppose what 
we’ve got is an option to go ahead and finish because we might not be here that 
much longer.  So.  
 

 Bouie:  Do we have workshops after it? Is there more?  
 

 Henderson:  Yeah, we had two workshops.  
 

 Bouie:  O.K.  I stand.   I have children to go home to.  No livestock.  
 

 Lasley:  I would rather finish this and then do something different with the workshops.  
We are not going to get through those either.  
 

 Henderson:  We have a motion to reconsider our motion to table this essentially.  
Is there a second on that? 
 

 Nunamaker:   Second.  
 

 Henderson:  I will call that to a vote.   
 

 Bright:  Discussion.  
On this particular motion that is being presented, I just want to make sure I am 
clear.  If we take the motion to continue this particular thing, does that mean we are 
going to table the workshops for another day and time?   
 

 Henderson:  That is the way that I understood Commissioner Lasley’s motion.  
 

 Nunamaker:  I don’t see why we combined it anyway.   
 

 Henderson:  Because we can’t get people here.  
 

 Lasley:  At a workshop, you don’t have to have a quorum.  
Whoever shows up, shows up.  
 

 Bright:  Yeah, you can’t really vote on anything, you just discuss it.  
 

 Nunamaker: We need to have a workshop in a couple of weeks or something.  
 

 Bright:  O.K. I am clear.  
 

 Henderson:  So, you are clear on that? 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 46 of 62 
 

 
 Youman:  I am clear.  
 Lasley:  I make a motion that we continue going through this chapter 5 and try to complete 

it tonight and then table the workshops for a separate meeting just to do workshop 
issues where the commissioners that can attend will attend and we don’t need a 
quorum.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Second.  
 

 Henderson:  All in favor?  
 

 All  Aye.  
 

 Henderson:  We have a unanimous motion.  
 

 Lasley:  On page 19.  We are dealing with manufactured and mobile home parks and 
recreation vehicle parks.  Currently and historically mobile home parks are rental 
units that were only allowed in commercial.  O.K.  that is where we are coming from.  
Recreation vehicle parks are in a new category.  They are going to be rental lots that 
somebody can be in for six months.   
 
Subsection 5101:  first section.   These parks are subject to administrative site plan 
review as a minor development order.  Does that mean that they will be approved in 
the office and there will be no public hearing?  
 
  

 Gutcher:  Yes.  
 

 Lasley:  I do not agree with that at all.  I think that will not work at all.   These are very 
intense situations where people need to know what is going on around them.  
 

 Henderson:  To that note, just out of curiosity, we dealt with the issue.  No, that was actually a 
change of usage where they were trying to put in a mobile home park down at Lake 
Talquin.  Would that have been different because that was actually a change of the 
Future Land Use Map change.  Would that have been a situation that would have 
allowed that to have been approved in office without a public hearing?  
 

 Gutcher:  Anytime you are changing a Map, it is required to be a public hearing and you go 
through the public hearing process.    
 
This would be a situation where if it was allowed by right in the Future Land Use or 
the zoning category (if that comes into play) then they would not have to go through 
a public hearing because it is a use by right.  They would just have to meet the 
criteria.  
 

 Henderson:  So, would that have affected that situation where he was trying to put one in next to 
a subdivision and he was not allowed by right on the Future Land Use Map.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 47 of 62 
 

 
 Gutcher: I am not familiar to the case, but, if they had to do a map amendment, then they 

would have had to come through the process of a map amendment.  
 

 Henderson: So, in other words, this doesn’t allow you to approve one if it is in the middle of 
somebody’s  subdivision.   
 

 Gutcher:  Unless they have the proper land use category or zoning district, then yes, they 
could.  I think we have that written in the zoning – that it has to be in general 
commercial.   It has to be in general commercial in Chapter 4.  
 

 Lasley:  We don’t know that right now.  
 

 Gutcher:  It is coming forward to you if we have a workshop.  
 

 Lasley: So, you are telling me that it has to be commercial? 
 

 Gutcher:  I am telling you that is how it is written in Chapter 4 right now.   
 

 Lasley: O.K. alright.   Now, I am o.k. with that.  I, personally, would like to see some more 
water and sewer restrictions on these things.  
 
On page 20, we do actually have them.  O.K.   
 
So, “G” states that the mobile home parks will be on central water and sanitary 
sewer systems – whatever they can come up with – whatever kind of sanitary sewer 
system they can come up with.  What are the chances that a variance could be 
approved for that? 
 

 Gutcher:  It is my recollection (and my Code is out in the car, I am sorry that I didn’t bring it in, 
but the variances that you are allowed to get in Gadsden County are only for bulk 
regulations – setbacks, height, impervious surface, and they have to have a reason.  
There has to be a hardship.    
 

 Lasley: There could very easily be a hardship.  “I can’t afford it.”  How many time have I 
heard that?   
 

 Gutcher:  The septic system wouldn’t be a variable request.   
 

 Lasley:  “M” is accessory structures, which is one house plus all the other structures that are 
around as long as it meets the setbacks – is that correct?  
 

 Gutcher: Correct.  
 

 Lasley: O.K.  The next section is 5102.  Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds.  
 
I would like to know why this got changed (inaudible) to two.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 48 of 62 
 

 
 

 Gutcher:  So that you could have an RV Park on a small size parcel.   
 

 Lasley:  What was the thinking behind that?  Did somebody ask for that specifically?  A 
developer or something?  
 

 Gutcher:  No.  
 

 Lasley:  So, you want to allow recreational vehicle parks in the zoning districts.  We don’t 
have that table yet, so, can you tell me where these are going to be allowed as a use 
by right and noboby will have any say-so about it?  
 

 Gutcher:  If you turn to Chapter 4 Item 12 – Commercial lists (This is number 12 section in your 
agenda packet) We have mobile home parks on page 4 of 13, which is “commercial 
zone.”  I think RVs are going to be allowed . 
  

 Lasley:  What bothers me is that if we approve this language, whatever zoning they have a 
dot on, they are going to appear there and the people next to that lot are not going 
to know it.   Is that correct?  
 

 Gutcher:  That is true for anything that is allowed within a category.  We are showing in the 
zoning in Chapter 4.  “Allowable uses for recreation include RV, improve any type of 
camping, really.”  Just so you know that recreation is an allowable zoning district for 
RV.   So, yes, anything that we have shown in Chapter 4 as an allowable use will be 
able to go in that category.  
 

 Lasley:  So, basically, see Chapter 4 is what you are saying.  
 

 Gutcher:  That is where the regulations are going to be housed to determined what you can 
put on a piece of property based on the zoning district assigned to that lot.  
 

 Lasley:  My question was, “Where are RV parks going to be allowed to exist?”  
 

 Gutcher: Recreation.   
 

 Lasley:  In commercial and Nature based?  
 

 Lex:  Yes.  In any category of a nature center.   
 
Just to comment on the two acres, we were thinking that you may have some area 
where you would want to preserve the natural setting and therefore only allow a 
smaller area for recreation vehicles.  
 

 Lasley:  Well, too, what are the standard here per acre?  Eight per acre?   So, you will have 
16 lots on two acres with one house on a well and septic.  Or is it restricted to 
central water and sewer?  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 49 of 62 
 

 
 Gutcher:  We are talking about an RV.  Yes, so, there would be no house, it would only be a 

park.   
 

 Lasley:  So it is central water and Sewer? 
 

 Gutcher:  It would have dump stations.  Pump out stations.   
 

 Lasley:  Yeah, but, you have to have a sewer system.   
 

 Lex:  You can have your service through a pump out service.  You do not have to have 
onsite sanitary sewer disposal for pump outs.  There are alternatives to that.  
 

 Lasley:  I think 16 lots on two acres too many, but, whatever.  
 
Number 8 – “Access to the RV park shall be to and from a paved arterial or collector 
road.  The Board of County Commissioners may grant a variance to allow access to 
local roads. “  I think that needs to be deleted because I don’t think that local roads 
are the place to locate these things.   
 

 Gutcher:  The local road is primarily where you are going to have camp grounds.  I don’t think 
most RV parks are going to be back in the woods, right, where they are camping.  So, 
arterial and collectors are the major roadways through Gadsden County.   
 

 Lasley:  O.K.  So, that would be a type 2 process for a variance,  if they need a local road.  
 

 Gutcher:  Yes, it would be a variance and it would be a quasi-judicial hearing.  
 

 Lasley:  O.K.  So, that would come before planning and zoning commission?  
 

 Gutcher:  Yes.  
 

 Lasley:  Alright, then I am o.k. with that.  
 
Here it says that all facilities within the recreational area will be served by central 
water and sewer.   I am o.k. with that.  Page 21, No. 11.  
 
Let me go on to the next page.  Then we have accessory uses.   So, again, these are 
going to be allowed on local roads.  So, on a recreation RV campground, you could 
have a pool, walking trails, rec room, courts, dock, gate hose, laundry facility, 
maintenance facility, administrative office, residential dwelling and a 50’ x 50’ 
convenience store.  So, you can have all that on a local road.  
 
 

 Gutcher:  It is restricted to use by the guests.   
 

 Henderson:  And, only if a variance is granted.  It is not automatic that it can be on a local road.  It 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 50 of 62 
 

says that they have to be collector or arterial unless there is a variance granted, 
which will not be automatic.   
 

 Lex:  And the access to all of that  will have to be internal.  
  

 Henderson:  I have ridden that ride.  Basically, when considering the variance, you have to 
consider the surrounding use and if it is inappropriate, a variance could be denied.  
 

 Lasley:  O.K.  You won’t believe it, but,  I am done with that.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Do we have areas already designated for recreation?  
 

 Gutcher:  Yes, some of them.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Some, but, not all.  Right? 
 

 Gutcher:  Do you mean on the map? 
 

 Nunamaker:  Yes.  
 

 Gutcher:  Yes.  
 

 Henderson:  In the blue. 
 

 Gutcher:  It is the very bottom category on the right.  
 

 Lasley: It is not a lot.  
 

 Gutcher:  The zoning map will mimic that Future Land Use Map except for the agriculture.  
What is going to happen is that this map is essentially going to turn into a zoning 
map.  Then, the Future Land Use Map is going to combine some categories like 
agriculture and industrial and such.  
 

 Nunamaker:  Are you going to fix a lot of stuff? 
 

 Gutcher: That is another job, but, I agree with you.  It does need to be fixed.  
 

 Henderson:  It will be much easier to fix zoning than it is to fix the way you’ve got the categories 
on the Future Land Use Map.  When you switch to zoning, you can do that at the 
local level.  You won’t have to go all the way through Economic Opportunity.   
  

 Lasley: O.K.  I am on page 29.  This is the Community Residential Homes.  In reading this, is 
this also going to be a sue by right application?  
 

 Gutcher:  We don’t actually review an application.  They just come in and sign the permit from 
the State.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 51 of 62 
 

 Lasley:  So, there is no regulation?  
 

 Gutcher: They have to be a certain distance from each other.  So, that would be like city issue.  
They can’t be closer either 1,000 or 1,200 feet to each other.  They have to supply a 
list from the State of where the others are located in the same vicinity.  But, other 
than that, if it is in an area that allows for residential uses, we just sign the permit.  
 

 Lasley:  So, can you define single family detached housing?  That is just a single house as in 
one house?  
 

 Gutcher:  Yes.  It is not attached to something else.  A duplex would be a single family 
attached dwelling.  Detached isn’t attached to anything else.  
 

 Lasley:  Isn’t all our lots zoned for that?  A  
 

 Gutcher:  I think what you are asking is – that is probably the primary dwelling type in 
Gadsden County.   
 

 Lasley: These can be anywhere where they are currently not allowed?  
 

 Gutcher:  No.  They are allowed.  They are currently allowed. Yes.  
 

 Bouie:  Question.  Under this description, is there no other size of community homes that 
could be allowed?  
 

 Lex:  Yes, there is.   But, not under this provision of FL Statutes.  So, if you wanted to 
provide one type of community residential facility, it would be a stand alone with no 
more than six people.  So, if you wanted to service 15 – 18, you would need to either 
develop it in commercial areas and you would need a larger facility to be able to do 
that.  They need to be considered all under one roof.  If you are going to serve a 
greater number of residents, FL Statutes requires it.  You can have two homes 
connected by a breeze way.  Regardless, you would have to be in a commercial 
zoning for anything number greater than six.  
 
We are working with some people trying to establish a similar type use.  
 

 Lasley:  I am assuming the regulations for all this are ruled by the State.  I would have a lot of 
questions as to how that would be run.  
 
It looks like “E” on page 30 in that same section, is a duplicate.  
 

 Gutcher:  Yes, it is.  
 

 Lasley:  That is all I have.  Do we need to  make a motion for all those changes?  
 

 Henderson:  What the chair would then ask Commissioner Lasley to do would be to put her 
changes into the form of a motion and run through them and suggest what she 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 52 of 62 
 

wants.  Not all of your questions would be things you would put in a motion because 
you asked questions and they were answered without making a change.   
 
So, if you will run through with us where you want to make changes in the form of a 
motion, then we will see if you can get a second and we can vote on that.  
 

 Gutcher:  If you don’t mind, include the editorial comments I made earlier as part of your 
motion.  
 

  Henderson:  Is there anyone in the public who wish to speak to this issue?  
 
We do.  Mr. Winchester.  
 

 Winchester:  Would you like to make your motion, then I will come back?  
 

 Bouie:  I would like to hear his concerns.  
 

 Henderson: O.K.  Let’s hear his concerns before we put a motion on the table because that is 
going to divide a complicated motion from a vote.  At this point, my brain is too tired 
to hold it in my head.  
 

 Winchester:  My name Daniel Winchester, 842 Rich Bay Road, Havana, FL  
 
I actually came for the workshops, but, after I sat through this since July waiting and 
trying to get the Land Development Code revised to address some of the concerns  
that I would have concerning the conservation communities.  Since you tabled the 
workshop item, I guess the point of order that I have in terms of a question would 
be, since this is a public hearing,  Item 10 is a public hearing.  So, I either need to say 
my peace now about Chapter 5 and get it into the record and have you all consider it 
or not consider it and pass it on to the County Commission.  True or False?  That is 
what this is for, right?  
 
The reason I am asking is what I am really here about includes both really.  It 
includes the workshop categories, but, Chapter 5 is implementation.  So, it is kind of 
like the chicken or the egg.  I don’t know  
 

 Henderson:  Keeping in mind that we are only addressing a portion of Chapter 5 tonight, is that 
right, Ms. Gutcher?  
 

 Gutcher:  I would also like to say that it won’t immediately go to the County Commission 
because it will go as a whole chapter.  It won’t go in fragments.  
 

 Henderson:  I don’t know exactly where your comments will go, but, but I don’t know that your 
particular issue is contained in what we are looking at in these 27-29 pages tonight.   
We are only looking at 29 of 105 of Section 5 tonight.   
 

 Winchester:  Only 29 pages.  That might help.  In terms of some of the language dealing with (I 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 53 of 62 
 

probably don’t have exactly what ya’ll have) page 4-10.  For example Table 4107.  
Ya’ll aren’t doing that tonight?  
 

 Henderson:  No.  
 

 Winchester:  So, it was just pretty much what I heard.    O.K.  
 

 Henderson:  I will say that Commissioner Lasley has done a good job of covering each.  What she 
talked about tonight is the only thing that is on the table tonight.   
 

 Winchester:  So, in other words, when you have the workshops, my concern is if I wait until 
another workshop and like somebody said, you don’t need a quorum for workshops, 
so who knows who will show up for the workshops.  Then maybe the conservation 
community concept that I wanted at least to have the workshop to be about, I want 
to make sure that at some point that the workshop is either voted up or down and 
included and transmitted to the County Commission to be considered when they 
consider the overall public hearing.  I don’t want to get snow balled with some legal 
– I have been there. 
 

 Henderson:  We understand.  We understand your concerns and we feel the same frustration 
that you do because we have been unable to get these things addressed.  Obviously, 
the hurricane was nobody’s fault and then we have had quorum issues.  That is why 
it is taking so long.   
 
But, let me say this. The things that we are going to workshop – those don’t get 
voted up or down at a workshop anyway.  They get workshopped and then they will 
be on as a public hearing and then we will vote up or down to transmit it to the 
County Commission.   So, basically,  on the issues that we are going to workshop, 
you will have two more chances.  You can show up at the public workshops and 
offer your input.  Commissioners can talk about it, but, there won’t be a vote taken 
under those circumstances anyway.  The vote to transmit to the County Commission 
won’t happen until it is on the agenda as a public hearing, which it would not have 
been tonight.  Neither will it be the next time we have a workshop on it.  
  
   

 Bouie:  Madam Chair?   So, what you are proposing is to somehow have your conservation 
community added to a land use recommendation?  
 

 Winchester:  No.  What I am falling  back on at this point – because the process is bifurcated the 
way it is and it is confusing.  I don’t want to be in a situation where it is postponed 
and postponed indefinitely.  
 

 Bouie:  O.K, Sir, what I am trying to ask you is – Are  you proposing  to bring a 
recommendation before the county to have your conservation community 
submitted to the county as a recommendation for use? 
  

 Winchester:  Yes, ma’am.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 54 of 62 
 

 
 Bouie:  So,  
 Winchester:  To include in the policy.  That is why I originally (I know you guys want to go home) 

but,  
 

 Bouie:  What is the best way for him to present that recommendation to the county? 
 
He has presented to us in the past or an outline of what a conservation community 
would be like.  There is one in Tallahassee.  He would like to make a 
recommendation to the county and the board to add it as a land use category.  
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

There are a couple of ways that you can amend your regulations.  One of which is 
kind of what we are doing here at the staff level and doing a major overhaul.  You 
can certainly take into consideration and should take into consideration public 
comment  through that process.  That is not necessarily driven by what any 
individual wants.   
 
The other process is individuals can at any point in time submit an application to 
amend the regulations.  There is no prohibition against that.  When that application 
is complete, it has to be considered.   
 

 Bouie:  But, what he is saying is in a broader sense.  I believe his suggestion is that 
Community Conservation be a portion of our land use development.  
 

 Henderson:  If I might, I would like to clarify.  I don’t want to speak for you, Mr. Winchester, but, 
the only reason in Gadsden County that you could not do that community today, as 
a developer, is because your lot sizes are smaller than an acre.  Is that correct?  
 

 Winchester:  That says it all.  The conservation community concept is all about developing more 
strategically in keeping with the rural lifestyle of Gadsden County and get away from 
the checker board style that currently you have right now.  
 

 Henderson:  I understand that.  Why can’t you do that development today?  Why can’t you, as a 
developer, develop a conservation community on land in north Havana or wherever.  
Why can’t you do one of those today? 
 
 

 Winchester:  I think it is a policy issue at this point.  There is no policy in the Comprehensive Plan 
that allows for the strategic type of clustering like I presented back in August to do.   
It is not just me.  
 

 Henderson:  That is what I am asking.   Those are lot sizes that cluster dwellings on smaller than 
one acre a piece.   
 

 Winchester:  That is not true. My answer to that question, what I would advocate would be a 
density range of from .5 acre up to 3 units per acre depending on the soil types, 
depending on the amount of environmental feature of the area so on and so forth.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 55 of 62 
 

  
 Henderson:  Which is a more intense development per acre than is allowed today.  Correct? 

Completed?  
 

 Winchester:  When you back up a one acre lot –  
 

 Weiss:  We are getting far off topic here, but, in terms of what is the specific subject matter, 
I think that one of the things we are considering in Chapter 4 is to have a new 
category for Planned Unit Development.  The category would allow for a lot of 
flexibility in what it would allow for these types of developments.  But, that again, is 
a Chapter 4 issue.  Right now, we are on Chapter 5.  I think we will  
  

 Henderson:  And we are only doing the first part of Chapter 5.   
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

Right.  And again, back to your point, once we have Chapter 4 workshops, then there 
is going to be a public hearing at Planning Commission level and then there will be a 
public hearing at the County Commission level.  So, these are all topics that are 
going to be addressed three more times.   
 

 Winchester:  I appreciate that, but, at the same time, the policy in Chapter 5 – all you would have 
to do is add a number 7 which states, “by such and such a date you will adopt a 
policy that allows for conservation community that meet the following criteria.”  
Boom, that is it.  You don’t draft an ordinance.  It is very simple.  I have already 
provided the language.  In fact, what I will do is go ahead and submit that as part of 
the record.  This is the conservation community information that I have presented.  
It is all in here.  I would like to make that a part of the legal record.   
 
I am confused right now.  It seems backward to me that part of Chapter 5 is being 
considered and then Chapter 4.  Then I am supposed to come back to another 
workshop, which may or may not happen.  It is just complicated.   I am a land 
planner.  This is what I do everyday.   
 
  

 Bouie:  May I complete my statement?  
 
I think where you are is that you are trying to make a recommendation to the 
County to have a particular type of subdivision.  There is no legislation against that, 
but, you are asking the county to adopt your concept.  Then again, you could very 
well go out and have a developer present your concept in an application and then it 
will go through the process.  Where I am confused, Mr. Attorney, is does the county 
adopt concepts?  Because this is a concept.   If we can’t adopt a concept,  
 

 Winchester:  I am proposing a policy, not a concept.   
 

 Attorney 
Weiss:  

The county does adopt policy, certainly.  But, I think  

 Bouie:  So, he won’t have to come back.  My thing is if there is a developer that has this in 
his application, then we would go forward.  But, to present this as a portion of our 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 56 of 62 
 

land use as a policy, that is where I hesitate.  I don’t think that the Planning and 
Zoning Commission is in a position like this.  I have never known a Planning 
Commission to take a policy from the general public per se.  
 

 Lex:  If I may, madam chair?  
 

 Henderson:  May I respond to that real quickly?  
 

 Bouie:  I am just trying to help you, sir.  I don’t want you to have to come  
 

 Winchester:  I am not proposing a development, I am proposing a policy.   
 

 Bouie:  I understand.  I am trying to get there.  
 

 Winchester:  I can’t propose any development, ma’am, without the policy that could guide it.  I 
don’t understand why that is hard to figure out.  
 

 Lex:  I want to say that I spoke with Mr. Winchester.  I met with him.  I explained to him 
that we are working on a more comprehensive plan, period.  I think your point 
regarding the planned unit development and does it offer these flexibilities that he 
is looking for in order to develop a conservation community – Is that an avenue and 
a tool that he can use.   So, if I can say,  I would request that we do not put a policy 
in that says “we will do this.”  We can’t do that.  We don’t know what “this” is.  But, 
we are working toward a planned unit development policy and I would respectfully 
suggest that Mr. Winchester look at those guidelines, think about what he wants 
and come back with some very constructive guidance for us to consider to put into 
that  that may help him achieve his end goal of conservation community.  Let’s 
continue to work with him at that level through what we already have.  Once we are 
done, I have told him that there is always an avenue to come by.  But, that was my 
recommendation to him previously.  
 

 Bouie:  At his last presentation, my closing comments were that the concept or the policy is 
well received.  It is appreciated, but, the county cannot mandate or adopt and 
expect citizens to adhere to that type of recommendation.  I don’t see where  
 

 Winchester:  Well, that is fair enough if that is how you feel about it.   
 

 Bouie:  If there is a developer that is presenting that community, then we would go forward.   
 

 Winchester:  Just to clarify, the PUD used to be in the Comp Plan of Gadsden County.  You are 
talking about the Master Planned Community that is proposed or  
 

 Gutcher: I have not known of a PUD to be a part of Gadsden County’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 

 Winchester:  When you are talking about the appropriate place for this would be under the 
Proposed Master Planned Community, is that the same thing? 
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 57 of 62 
 

 Gutcher:  We are trying to introduce that so as to enable someone to do something like you 
are talking about.  That is not something that Gadsden County has had in the past.    
It hasn’t allowed categories that would allow for innovative design layouts.   
 

 Lex:  So, think about that as a framework and come back and see how we can put some 
comments in that that will help you achieve your end, but, within the larger 
framework which would serve  
 

 Bouie:  My recommendation was for education and suggest that the county educate the 
community and those putting in applications, but, I can’t see how we can have 
policy.  
 

 Lex:  No.  Input to that policy that we already are trying to develop.  That is what I would 
request.  
 

 Winchester:  Alright, thank you.  I will take you up on that.  
 

 Lex:  Don’t forget, look at what we are writing, think about what you want and please 
come back with that kind of comment in terms of what you  have in front of you.   
 

 Winchester:  Let me just close, if you don’t  mind, by saying that I followed some of the comments 
that you did make in Chapter 5.   Page 8 under 105 when you talk about clustering 
community.  For example, commissioner, if you had a piece of property and you 
rezoned it as Master Planned Community – Let’s say 100 acre parcel or larger and 
you want to create a clustering community, similar to the one in Tallahassee, but a 
much smaller variety.  There is a big demand as you all know for clustering activity.  
With that languagethere, would it  prohibit a clustering community if you had say 
clustering and a common area, common riding trails, common barn and that sort of 
thing?  When I read this, I was concerned that it might prohibit any clustering 
community.  If it doesn’t, that is fine.  But, if does, then that is something I guess you 
could address in the Master Planned Community category somewhere.    
 
Have you dealt with that?  Does that makes sense?  
 

 Gutcher:  I am not sure that I am following you. …This is to show – these are examples of what 
you can provide to planning official to show that you are a vested use and you are 
grandfathered.   
 

 Winchester:  But, if you had a clustering community?  
 

 Gutcher:  That is new. That is not vested.  That is something that we are creating that is new.  
 

 Winchester:  So, would that be addressed under the Master Planned Community? 
 

 Gutcher:  Yes.  You would talk about that in your development plan that you would submit as 
part of your master plan.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 58 of 62 
 

 Winchester:  It wouldn’t be automatically prohibited because of that language?  
 

 Gutcher:  No, this has to do with proving your vested use.  
 

 Winchester:  Alright.  I think she answered it.  
 
It could be a farming community.  A conservation community could be a working 
farm community, which would be up my ally.  If you had a 100 acre farm and right in 
the center of that farm you grew sugar cane, tomatoes or whatever you grew in the 
center of that.   
 

 Bouie:  We need to find a developer and bring that on.  
Bring it on.  
 

 Henderson:  Bring a development plan.  
 

 Winchester:  They are watching, they are there.  Anyway, I hear what you are saying as far as the 
master plan.  The Master Planned Community talks about half acre lots are not 
allowed if you don’t have central water.  But, later in your plan, you do provide for 
half acre lots with central water.  But, in a Master Planned Community, you have 
sewer and water for anything under one acre.  So, that would have to be addressed.   
 

 Lex:  I think that comment to as we go through the workshop.  Read about the Master 
Planned Community, think about what you want, what your concerns are, what are 
your comments.  We welcome your input at the appropriate time.  We are here 
 

 Winchester:  I don’t really have a comment on this, but, I did have a thought when I heard it.  On 
the RV park situation that ya’ll talked about. When you said that RV parks allow  - do 
they include – you said alternative waste water technologies or treatments or 
whatever – so, could you have an RV park without having it on sewer, conventional 
sewer?   
 

 Lex:  You can have an RV park without central sewer if there is somebody that comes and 
pumps you out.  You do not have to have sewage facility on site.   
 

 Henderson:  It gets done by a portable truck.  At Red Hills, they come around and pump out the 
horse trailers.  
 

 Winchester:  But, you don’t have to have an expensive sewer line to run an RV park.  
I am saying this because of the ecotourism.  It would be of benefit to not have to run 
a sewage line.   
 

 Henderson:  Actually, Mr. Winchester, if you will look at that and the way that it played out – for 
any facilities, restrooms, buildings and what not, they are required to tie into sewer.  
What she is talking about is that to service each individual RV, those can be pumped 
out.  You know what the truck looks like that pumps out septic tanks?  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 59 of 62 
 

 Winchester:  Yes, ma’am.  
 

 Henderson:  Those can pump out RVs.  That is not any kind of installed system.   
 

 Winchester:  But, you can have an onsite septic tank to serve the bathroom? 
 

 Henderson:  No.  It says that it has to be connected to sewer for the bathrooms at the store, for 
any type of structure.  If it is a pool house, those bathrooms are required to be 
connected to sewer.  It does not provide for septic tanks  within that RV park at all.  
 

 Winchester:  I am just thinking out loud.  There really isn’t that much sewer in Gadsden County.  
 

 Henderson:  If you are going to do RV Parks, under those regulations adopted the way that they 
are, they are going to have to have it or they won’t have an RV park.  
 

 Bouie:  Madam Chair,  the time.  
 

 Winchester:  My last question.  Are RV parks aligned for example tiny homes on wheels?  Same 
thing.  They are both on wheels, right?  
 

 Henderson:  No.  I don’t think they are.  
 

 Lex:  RVs are licensed through the State a different way.   
 

 Gutcher:  They have a different legislative definition than an RV.  
 

 Lex:  There is no such definition for tiny homes.  
 

 Winchester:  In other words, if a tiny home had met the same legislative definition as an RV, it 
wouldn’t be discriminated against.  They would be treated equally.  
 

 Henderson:  Mr. Winchester, I don’t think that is a question that we can answer.  That is making 
me very uncomfortable into the legal advice situation.  As the attorney is in the 
room can agree, we try not to get into anything by which we are not protected by 
malpractice insurance.  At least, I do.  So, with that in mind,  and we appreciate your 
comments, but, in the interest of time, we would like to move on.   
 

 Youman:  Thank you, sir, Thank you.  
 

 Henderson:  That will take us back to Commissioner Lasley who was ready to make a motion on 
this first portion of Chapter 5 that we have talked about in detail.  She has a motion 
for us.  She is going to run through the changes that she is going to propose to be 
made to that.  Then we will take a vote on that.   
 

 Lasley:  Don’t let me forget anything if you see something, let me know.   
 
I would like to make a motion that we approve Chapter 5 with the following changes 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 60 of 62 
 

that we discussed:    
Page 4 – Subsection 502(c) – there is a typo.  We need to add an “s” to type.  
 
Page 4 – on the impacts, we are going to add “ingress and egress”  
 
Page 5 – Subsection 5004 – we are going to add “b” before expansions and 
extensions and renumber the others accordingly.  Modifications is “C”; 
Abandonment is “D”, etc.  
 
Page 6 – Subsection 5005 (E) – in conflict – add the words “more specific provisions”  
 It should read, “In the event there is a more specific provision in this Code conflicts 
with this section, the more specific provision shall control it.” 
 
Page 8 – Subsection 5008 –(D) and I believe we have changed that number there to 
5004 (B)  
 
Page 9 – in (F) we have changed the word “equine” in the first and second line to 
“livestock”   Change “equine species” to livestock as well.     
 
Delete the reference to equine and change the wording to read as follows: For the 
purposes of keeping livestock in rural residential zoning district may include history 
of livestock to establish residency or an established agriculture exemption.” 
 
Page 30:  delete the duplication. 
 
 
  
  
 

 Gutcher: May I ask you to include the editorial changes that I referenced earlier?  They are: 
 
Page 30:  Rephrase Part C to state, “Each licensed community residential home shall 
occupy only one structure” (first sentence)  
 
Page 1 Subsection 5001 – compatibility:  Rephrase the first sentence to read, “The 
purpose of this subsection is to provide standards for evaluations of applications for 
development, redevelopment, infill development and Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use.” 
 

 Lasley:  I amend my motion to include her changes also.  
 

 Henderson:  Do we have a second? 
 

 Bright:  Second.  
 

 Bouie:  You got it.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 61 of 62 
 

 Henderson:  Therefore, all in favor?  
 

 All:  Aye.  
 

 Henderson:  All opposed?   No response.  
 

  May we have a motion to adjourn?  
 

 Lex:  No, please.  Just one second, please.   
 
May I introduce our new planner?  
 
Ellen Andrews.  She comes to us from DEP.  She has a background in Parks and 
Recreation Planning.  She has experience with historic preservation, trails and she is 
going to be a great asset and compliment to our team.   
 
So, Miss Ellen, meet our Planning Commission.  This is the first quorum, so you bring 
good luck.  
 

 Henderson:  And she prevented us from getting hungry.  Thank you.  
 

 Lex:  Thank you for letting me take that moment.  
Thank you all for your hard work tonight.  It has been a great meeting.  
 

 Henderson:  So, you are adding her and Jill is stays with us, too? 
 

 Lex:  Jill stays with us, too.   
 
We are going to share her with Parks and we are really going to try to build some 
other parks.  She is a resident of Gadsden County.  She brings that with experience, 
too.   
 

 Henderson:  We are glad to have you.  With that I will entertain a motion to adjourn.  
 

 Youman: So moved.  
 

 Bright:  Second  
 

 Henderson:  All in favor?  
 

 All:  Aye.  
 

 Henderson:  We are adjourned    9:35 p.m. 
 

   
 

  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
January 17, 2019 Regular Meeting and Workshop Minutes  
 

Page 62 of 62 
 

 

 

             

        Regina Davis, Acting Chair  

Attest:  

 

 

    

Nicholas Thomas, Clerk  



AT A WORKSHOP OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION HELD IN AND FOR GADSDEN 
COUNTY, FLORIDA ON FEBRUARY 14, 2019 AT 
6:00 P.M., THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDING WAS 
HAD, VIZ: 

 
Present:  

Libby Henderson, Vice-Chair-  
Regina Davis, At-Large Member –  
Marion Lasley –  
Lori Bouie –  
Steve Scott, School Board Representative –  

 
Staff Present:  

Jill Jeglie, Senior Planner  
Suzanne Lex, Planning and Community Development Director  
David Weiss, County Attorney  
Marcella Blocker, Deputy Clerk 
 

Absent:  
Edward J. Dixon, Chair  
Gail Bridges-Bright  
John Youman  
Doug Nunamaker  
William Chukes  
Antwon McNeil  
Gerald McSwain  

 
 
1.  Pledge Of Allegiance 

 
Vice-Chair Henderson led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the U. S. Flag. 
 

2.  Introduction Of Members-Roll Call 
 
Deputy Clerk Marcella Blocker called the roll and recorded the attendance as stated above.  
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

4. Disclosures and Declarations of Conflict 
 

WORKSHOP 
 
5. Future Land Use Element (Legislative) (LSPA 2018-01)-Discussion of amendments to the Future 

Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan 
 
Allara Mills Gutcher, The Planning Collaborator, gave a brief description of the Amendment.  She 
said the Element was updated pretty heavily a few years ago and some of the changes were a 

jillj
Typewritten Text
#4-b



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 2 of 11 
 

result of lessons learned and tweaks that are need to be made.  She said some is a result of the 
zoning they anticipate adopting in the future.  Introducing different classes of utilities.  She 
explained the map on the wall was a Future Land Use Map and has several categories and it was 
also their Zoning Map.  She said it would introduce different classes of utilities that the Board 
voted on in September and the definitions will be in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code and 
will include Utility Classes I, II and III.  She reminded them Class I would be things like transmission 
lines, natural gas lines, water distribution lines, sewer gravity lines, etc.; Class II would be booster 
stations, pumping stations, switching facilities, substations, package plants, lift stations, and Class 
III would be production or treatment facilities such as sewage treatment plants, water treatment 
plants and elevated water storage towers, and other similar types of facilities and then the actual 
electrical production facilities are not considered in this class, it would be a different definition.  
She said they might see the solar power generation facilities that have been talked about prior.  
She said they need to discuss tonight the issue with Talquin and their desire to develop smaller 
solar power generation facilities, such as ones that might be on about five acres to help produce 
energy that would go to the substations.  She said if there was a desire for that type of facility to 
be an allowable use in the residential category or a commercial category, they need to insert that 
language in the draft. 
 
She said there were some new categories, one being the Nature-Based Activity area and the 
Master Planned Community, which was a type of category that would allow a mixture of uses and 
would be considered as a planned unit development or planning development by the County to 
have a balanced mix of efficient land uses in close proximity to each other to create a 
live/work/play environment.  She said those were the major changes. 
 
Commissioner Bouie stepped out at 6:11 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Lasley asked to go through the item page by page. 
 
Page 1 A. Historical –  
 
She said she did not think that the Class II utilities would fit into the Historical category and should 
be deleted. 
 
Commissioner Henderson asked if that was State law controlled and thought that was something 
they decided they could not determine to be there.  Ms. Gutcher said that category and the 
Conservation category were the only two categories they could regulate. 
 
Ms. Gutcher said there was not very much historical on the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Commissioner Bouie returned at 6:13 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Lasley said the intent of the category was to protect the historical qualities and 
areas and structures and also the word character was deleted and explains intent.   She read 7) 
“Development Restrictions – Anything that historically alters the character of the site or structure, 
other than routine maintenance or what is necessary to eradicate a public hazard, is strictly 
prohibited.” 
 
She then said on Page 2 Conservation number 6), she raised the question regarding hunting clubs.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 3 of 11 
 

She was concerned about the protection afforded to adjacent properties and they needed to make 
sure there was criteria there to ensure the bullets were not going places where they were not 
supposed to go.   
 
On Page 3-Recreation she said her concern was number 6 that dealt with RV parks.  She said to her 
it was a pretty intense use of the land and the number of units that could be had per acre.  She 
said she was also concerned about what the requirements were for them to be on central water 
and sewer. 
 
Ms. Gutcher said that would be something that was regulated in the Land Development Code and 
there was a statute in Chapter 5 that talked about RV parks and mobile home parks.  She also said 
that would change with the next item with the zoning categories.  She said Florida Statutes 513 for 
standards and showed the minimum land area was two acres, the maximum density for RV spaces, 
camp, and/or tent campsites shall not exceed eight per acre and a setback of 50 feet from the 
property line.  Travel trailers or similar vehicles have a minimum stay size of 1500 square feet with 
a minimum space width of 30 feet. 
 
Commissioner Lasley said the sites could be occupied 365 days a year by someone and only one-
half a year by one person and the other half year someone else could occupy it.  She said her 
concern was did they have to be located where there was central water and sewer. 
 
Ms. Jeglie said all utilities within the recreational facility shall be served by central water and 
approved sanitary sewage system.   
 
She asked if citizens would be notified of things happening around them. 
 
Ms. Gutcher said that would be coming to them in the future as revisions to Chapter 7 and will 
have an opportunity to discuss that then. 
 
Commissioner Bouie stepped out at 6:24 p.m. 

 
Ms. Gutcher said this was stating that RV’s were allowed in recreation.   
 
Commissioner Lasley asked if all the land use changes listed would be a 5-2 hearing where it would 
be noticed in the papers as a Land Use Change.  Ms. Gutcher said any comprehensive plan map 
amendment would have to go through public hearings. 
 
Commissioner Lasley’s next comment was in Public/Institutional Number 6) Allowable Uses She 
said they had Class 1, II & III utilities that include spray fields and things like that.  She said once the 
language was approved, a spray field or any sort of treatment facility could be located in any of the 
public land uses.  Ms. Gutcher said Public/Institutional yes and generally a Public/Institutional use 
was owned by a local government or an educational facility or hospital and not usually private 
ownership.  Commissioner Lasley said along with spray fields, they also had landfills.  She said she 
was not sure that both the uses Class III should not be in heavy industrial and not public. 
 
Commissioner Bouie returned at 6:27 p.m. 

 
Commissioner Lasley said the two allowed uses in number 6 that she questioned were Class III 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 4 of 11 
 

Utilities and Landfills as being allowed uses on Land Use.   
 
Commissioner Bouie left the workshop at 6:29 p.m. 

 
Her next comment was regarding F-Agriculture section.  She said they talked earlier on what the 
Zoning Map would look like basically what they had up now and would have an Ag I, Ag II and Ag III 
but when the other map is made, it would just be Agriculture.  Commissioner Lasley asked the 
point and Ms. Gutcher said future land use should be broader and when someone wants to change 
from Ag 2 to Ag 1, it would not be a State review any longer but would be a local decision.  
Commissioner Lasley asked when changing from Ag 3 to Ag 1, would the neighbors know someone 
was applying for the change and Ms. Gutcher said yes. 
 
Commissioner Lasley then asked about private aircraft facilities in Agriculture.  She said there was 
5, 10 and 20 acre lots in agriculture and asked the criteria for private aircraft and landing strips.  
Ms. Gutcher said she was unsure if Ms. Lex had any knowledge regarding a farmer that would 
want to spray their field and the intent would be to allow that farmer to be able to take off from 
his property.  She said anything of a certain size has to through FAA, there has to be certain 
clearance, certain depths for the airstrips, etc.  Ms. Jeglie said she did not know how many existed 
currently but do and have gotten calls from people that were interested in buying larger parcels 
and wanted to know if they were able to do that, especially crop dusting Commissioner Lasley 
asked what was to prevent them from not being involved in agricultural spraying and opening up a 
small private airport and was told the FAA.  Commissioner Lasley asked if it would prevent that and 
Ms. Gutcher said they could if they did not have enough size for their landing strip.  She said as far 
as functional operations, if something for crop dusting as opposed to a fly-in residential 
community, there would be no restriction on them from being able to do that as long as they meet 
the FAA requirements.  Commissioner Lasley said she was more concerned for people who allowed 
others to come in and out and then it would impact residents there because they would have to 
deal with air traffic.  She then asked if a hunting club would be allowed on 5 acres and said that did 
not work for her and did not see that as a safe enterprise.  She said she had four acres and could 
not shoot a gun without hitting a neighbor. 
 
Commissioner Davis said she saw her point because when looking at the allowable uses under 
density, the density is five acres for everything.  Ms. Gutcher said yes because you have to have 
the most dense category in the Future Land Use so when they get to Zoning, they would still have 
the 1-5, 1-10 and 1-20.  Commissioner Lasley asked if she would deal with the homeowners to 
come in and say they were zoned AG and they want to put 4 houses on 20 acres and then tell them 
your AG 3 and can only have one house.  Ms. Gutcher said the Zoning would mimic what they have 
today on the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Ms. Lex appeared and asked if they could put a range in.  Ms. Gutcher said she didn’t know why 
they would want to.  Ms. Lex said this is where the locals would have more say in what happens at 
the Zoning level and not to have to send to the State with an extra level of review. 
 
Commissioner Lasley said they were also offered more protection with the Comprehensive Plan 
because statement in the Plan cannot be waived and have to be followed.  She said anything 
written in the Land Development Code, people could apply for a variance.  Ms. Gutcher said she 
would correct her on that because the Code specifically said a variance could only be gotten for 
bulk regulation, not for density.   



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 5 of 11 
 

 
Commissioner Lasley said her next comments were on Page 4-Rural Residential.  She said they 
currently have on the Future Land Use Map was Residential and if she was suggesting three  
different grades of residential property, she had the same question as with AG, everything was 
being lumped into one.  She said in number 2-Designation Criteria, she says “Areas used primarily 
as single-family and multi-family residential housing units.”  She said according to the definition of 
multi-family residential housing unit could be an apartment complex.  Ms. Gutcher said a duplex 
could be multi-family; it depended on how they were defining it.  Commissioner Lasley said if they 
transferred out to rural areas where there was no water and sewer, would that not be able to be 
used there, the max would be one unit per acre. 
 
Ms. Gutcher said when they get to the Zoning District in the Land Development Code, they have 
the three Residential categories; Rural Residential, Suburban Residential and Urban Residential.  
She said Rural Residential remains at one dwelling unit per acre and because the other two are not 
mapped, they won’t exist on the map until someone applies for them.  Commissioner Lasley said 
both those categories require central water and sewer and Ms. Gutcher said yes.  She said again 
her concerns were she listed Residential and they have many acres in the County that was 
designated as Rural Residential.  She said they could not turn the County into six dwellings per acre 
in the County all on separate wells and separate septic tanks.  Ms. Gutcher said they were not; 
someone would have to apply for that category.  Commissioner Lasley said she would like to 
reserve the ability to come back to this language and change if she did not like what is in Chapter 
4.  She said previously in Chapter 4 there were statements about water and sewer would be 
required for these types of uses and sewer is not addressed and was the problem she had with the 
Comprehensive Plan was they take out things that were inconvenienced and in the long run would 
be a bad decision.  She said the August handout of this particular Future Land Use Element had in 
Number 3-Density, instead of six dwelling units per acre had two and asked why it was changed.  
Was there someone that wanted to put six units and Ms. Gutcher said not that she was aware of. 
 
She said in Number 6-Development Restrictions it said schools must be located on a collector or 
arterial roadway and according to the maps she looked at, they have major and minor collectors 
and major and minor arterial roads.  She said she assumed they could be on any of them as major 
or minor and Ms. Gutcher said correct.   
 
She then said in H-Neighborhood Commercial, water and sewer were not addressed and assumed 
that child care facilities, restaurants, professional office buildings and services, convenience stores, 
retail sales and services could all be in the County on septic tanks and Ms. Gutcher said yes.  She 
said they needed to move away from that type of development and was sorry to see those 
requirements and regulations were being ignored.  She said she had a problem with number 6, 
“and other similar uses” feels really vague.  Ms. Gutcher said other similar uses was as set forth in 
the Land Development Code and was listed in Chapter 4. 
 
Commissioner Lasley said in I Commercial, sewage was not addressed.  She said Mobile Home 
Parks in number 3-Density, it said there was no residential allowed except for mobile home parks, 
which was five units per acre “if all units are connected to a centralized water and waste water 
system”.  She said there were statements in the Comprehensive Plan that do require various things 
to be connected to water and sewer, this was an example and she personally would like to see a 
lot more. 
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 6 of 11 
 

She said in Number 4 Intensity, the floor area ratio shall not exceed 1.0 and asked if that meant the 
commercial building could cover the whole lot.  Ms. Gutcher said theoretically yes but practically 
no because they had to have storm water, open space and parking.  She said one would potentially 
mean a two story building that was the size of the lot so that 50% of the lot would be covered on 
the footprint but they had 2 stories and that would equal to 100% of the area.  She said since she 
mentioned water and sewer for mobile home parks; why not want this for the other allowed uses 
for Neighborhood Commercial on page 6.  She said adult day care and assisted living facilities, why 
the establishments on a well and septic tank.  She then said private clubs, shopping centers, 
medical facilities, mobile home parks, RV parks, light manufacturing office complexes; why not 
state that these need to be on central water and sewer?  Ms. Gutcher said the County did not 
provide that service and in order to get those services, they either have to connect to a City, if the 
city offered it or Talquin.  She said there was talk of trying to promote more economic 
development areas in the County and some of those areas might not have a provision and could be 
something they could develop with a well and package plant.   
 
Commissioner Henderson said where she lived, there was no sewer they could hook to and in 
town they had sewer. 
 
Ms. Lex appeared and said the Public Service Commission controls utilities and the County had no 
control over the utility area served.  She said they go to the Public Service Commission and request 
to extend their area and bring utilities to that area.  Ms. Lex said they could not assume that a 
utility company wanted to expand their territory.  Commissioner Henderson said a County could 
not require another municipality to require that.  Commissioner Lasley said historically, the County 
Commission approved a shopping center on west 90 and then got a grant to extend the sewer 
there.  Ms. Jeglie said they were located within ¼ mile and that was policy was still there and has 
not been changed.  Commissioner Henderson said the County could not require Gretna and 
Chattahoochee to serve the western part of the County and they could not make those utilities 
make it available to anyone or any development they might want to do; if they do not want to 
serve and the County does not have it and they make it required, they were shutting down any 
development that might want to be done in the whole western part of the County.   
 
Commissioner Lasley said in Commercial, outdoor equipment would be allowed and must be 
screened; junk yards and debris landfills were prohibited and she asked about trash landfills and 
trash transfer stations, were they equally prohibited?  Ms. Gutcher asked if she was asking if a 
landfill was an allowable use.  Commissioner Lasley said she was listing junk yards and construction 
and debris landfills so her question was by it not being mentioned, was a trash landfill or trash 
transfer station allowed in the category.  Ms. Gutcher said she would say it was not allowed and 
Commissioner Lasley suggested it be put back in the language.   
 
She said her next comments were in the Nature Based Activity Areas.  She said it was pretty 
intense development; water and sewer was not addressed and no natural resource protections.  
She said in number 3 Density, does the language state there could be one living quarters only or 
could the owner have a living quarter and could the grounds keeper have a living quarter and a 
living quarter for another person on the property.  Ms. Gutcher said any owner/operator, any 
grounds keeper or any person that worked on the property could live there.  Commissioner Lasley 
pointed out there was a typo in number 3 as the fourth word should be “of” instead of “to”.  She 
said there could be three homes, a lodge that could have three stories and 50 units, a retail store, 
an RV park with a maximum of x number of units per acre and all was sensitive to the environment 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 7 of 11 
 

and somehow would be nature-based.  She asked who would decide if the stores would be nature-
based.  Ms. Gutcher said they could sell fishing equipment, renting bicycles, kayaks and once 
submitted to staff, would be reviewed by staff and they would look at the Land Development Code 
after this with more of the regulation nitty-gritty was located.  Commissioner Lasley asked what 
would change it from being a commercial lodging establishment, a B & B establishment or a 
restaurant/café to a grocery store to being a nature-based application; would this be done in-
house and was it at the discretion of the Planning Director.  Ms. Gutcher said it was at the 
discretion of what they decide the Land Development Code would say as far as the regulation 
goes. 
 
Ms. Lex appeared before the Board and said these categories were new and do not exist and when 
they turn this into their Future Land Use Map, this will come back before them for a Future Land 
Use Map amendment first before being implemented in the Zoning districts.   
 
Ms. Gutcher said to answer her question as to why, was because the County Commission wanted 
some sort of category that would allow this type of activity without having to take a map 
amendment and zoning change to a full-fledged commercial category to allow these uses.   
 
Commissioner Lasley then said in number 7, ingress and egress shall not be provided through a 
residential subdivision and there was wording somewhere, if it was left vague, did it generally have 
to say platted and she was fine with residential subdivisions that were created and wanted to 
protect the residents that were there from intense traffic.  Ms. Gutcher said you could not go 
through a residential subdivision to get to it. 
 
She said in the Master Planned Community: number 1, the last line stated there has to be the 
provision of infrastructure and again she was making the point that she was requiring 
infrastructure and would like to see it defined in the other Land Use categories.  She asked if this 
required central water and sewer and Ms. Gutcher said no.  Commissioner Lasley said they were 
going to allow two units per acre up to twelve units per acre on a well and septic tank.  Ms. 
Gutcher said subject to the availability of centralized water and sewer services.  Commissioner 
Lasley said they were going to allow light industrial and Ms. Gutcher said that could include 
something that was fully contained in a building, such as a craft brewery or any type of 
manufacturing that they would not know outside the structure of what was going on inside.   
 
Ms. Gutcher said when they get into the Land Development Code; the Mixed Use Zone is used to 
implement the Master Plan Community that is in the Comprehensive Plan and the Urban Mixed 
Use in the Land Use category. 
 
In the Urban Mixed Use, the diverse choice of housing types, higher densities and intensities in 
areas that have central water and sewer, these areas are located next to the city limits according 
to Designation Criteria and will have water and sewer available within ¼ of a mile most likely and 
yet number 3 are saying no more than five dwelling units allowed.  She said it seemed to her if 
they wanted to pack people in, this is where it should be.  Ms. Gutcher said the density on the 
Master Plan Community was no less than two and no greater than twelve, subject to the 
availability of centralized water and sewer service and the density would depend on whether you 
could connect to central water and sewer on the Master Plan Community.  Ms. Gutcher asked if 
her recommendation was to increase the density in Urban Mixed Use and Commissioner Lasley 
responded absolutely.  Ms. Gutcher said she would make a note that Commissioner Lasley would 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 8 of 11 
 

like to see a higher density in Urban Mixed Use.  Commissioner Lasley said in number 3 Density, it 
states no more than two dwelling units per acre where only central sanitary sewer service is 
available and to her knowledge, there will never be only sanitary sewer available, there will always 
be water first and sewer last.  There was further discussion and Ms. Jeglie agreed with 
Commissioner Lasley that it probably should read central water service as opposed to central 
sanitary sewer.  Commissioner Lasley said that was the language that should be in place.  She said 
in number 6 Allowable Uses are Public/Institutional where they have allowed landfills and 
something was not right with that. 
 
She then said on Page 8 she did not like Class III utilities being in a residential application.  In 
number 7 they state that the developments must be located on paved roads, local, collector or 
arterial roads and thought it was too intense.  Commissioner Lasley said if it was on central water 
and sewer, OK, but if not, she was not OK with that. 
 
Her next comments were in Industrial, who labels the Light Industrial land as it is now and who 
does the Heavy Industrial.  Ms. Gutcher said anything Heavy Industrial would be Heavy Industrial 
on the Zoning map and anything Light Industrial would be light industrial on the map.  
Commissioner Lasley said she did not want someone to come in and every one to be noticed that 
someone was applying for a land use change for Industrial thinking it would be something that 
would impact them with odor, noise, etc. so how would they know what was going to go on there.  
Ms. Gutcher said they would not know for sure until they applied for a Development Order but 
they should give an idea when they are applying for the Zoning because they would have to be 
able to analyze the development.  Commissioner Lasley said she was not comfortable with 
approving just an Industrial category that was broken down before the Development Order and 
Ms. Gutcher said that would be a recommendation to be made to the County Commission.  
Commissioner Lasley said her recommendation was that the Residential, Agricultural and the 
Heavy Industrial Land Use Changes are done at the same time with the Zoning Application. 
 
Ms. Gutcher reminded them later in the Future Land Use Element, they did have Policy 1.4.5 that 
required a Compatibility Analysis be submitted by the applicant for any proposed land use change 
contiguous to existing land designated as Rural Residential on the Future Land Use Map.  
Commissioner Lasley said when they get there, her comment would be that AG 1 and AG II put 
there too because those people have homes also.  She added the County was rurally residential 
and she was concerned with protecting the people that have homesteads.  
 
Her next comment was on Page 9 Policy 1.1.3, number 2.  She said the numbers needed to be 
adjusted.  Ms. Gutcher said with this policy, in case a parcel had two future land use map 
categories assigned to it, it talks how to assign availability to parcels that have two future land use 
categories assigned to it.  Commissioner Lasley asked where the numbers came from.  Ms. Gutcher 
said they went through that at the Staff level and with the Attorney. 
 
Her next comments were on Page 10, Policy 1.1.7 and read that construction of Class I and II 
utilities shall be exempt from the lot coverage requirements and asked that they could have 
utilities that cover more space. Ms. Gutcher explained the reason behind this policy was there 
might be a substation that was only ½ an acre and they need to have impervious surface on it to 
support the structures of the substation so instead of having whatever the impervious surface 
requirement was for that category it is assigned, it would allow them to build that they need to 
build on the property they own.  She added if the total impervious surface of the development is 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 9 of 11 
 

5,000 square feet or less would be the only way this would work.  She said this was the threshold 
Water Management District uses for storm water.  Commissioner Lasley said Class I and II utilities 
were booster stations, pump stations in addition to the water distribution and basically they were 
increasing the impervious surface on the smaller lots and Ms. Gutcher said it was exempting those 
for this type of use as long as it was 5,000 square feet or less. 
 
Commissioner Lasley asked if Policy 1.2.4 that shows being deleted if it was moved somewhere 
and Ms. Jeglie said the Infrastructure Element was before them and explained it was included in 
the Infrastructure Element. 
 
Commissioner Lasley then asked on Page 11 Policy 1.2.5 if that was ¼ of a mile and Ms. Jeglie said 
water and sewer was ¼ of a mile in the adopted Infrastructure that they previously adopted. 
 
She said in Policy 1.2.6 it states that developments shall only be approved when the adopted levels 
of service standards meet or exceed the capacities and she wanted to verify the level of service 
standards that apply.  She wanted to verify that there were level of service standards that apply to 
other criteria and Ms. Gutcher explained the water and sewer would be dependent on the 
organization for which the service is.  She said the City of Quincy had adopted a level of service 
standards and was unsure if Talquin had.  Commissioner Lasley asked if anything that related to 
these categories would be in Capital Improvements and Ms. Gutcher said yes, that was part of the 
Concurrency Management she mentioned earlier.  Commissioner Lasley commented on the lack of 
solid waste collection that the County has and could not believe they did not require because 
people have trash. 
 
Her next comment was on Page 12 Policy 1.2.19 that was struck through.  It stated no large scale 
land use amendment shall be approved which converts lands from AG to Rural Residential unless 
an agreement was recorded prior to development which required to be served by dental water 
and sewer and asked if it was inserted somewhere else or struck.  Ms. Gutcher said she didn’t 
move it.  She added that the Development Agreement procedure is a Florida Statutory procedure 
which was in the Land Development Code for Procedure.  She said she removed it because it was 
something Gadsden County struggled with which was the difference between what an Agriculture 
Land Use category is used for and what a Residential Land use was.  Commissioner Lasley said she 
felt they were going in the wrong direction. 
 
Her next comment was on Page 14, Policy 1.3.6 If a parcel is reduced or bisected due to 
condemnation, then each parcel is allowed one residential dwelling, she asked what it meant.  Ms. 
Gutcher said if there was 20 acres and the State has elected to extend a road or create a new road 
and it bisects your property and it was agriculture at 1 dwelling unit per 20 acres and there is now 
less than 20 acres, then you would be allowed to have one residential dwelling unit on each part of 
the divided parcel because of that condemnation. 
 
She then said Policy 1.4.5 dealing with the Compatibility Analysis.  It shall be submitted by the 
applicant for any proposed land use change contiguous to existing land designated Rural 
Residential on the Future Land Use Map.  She said she wanted to protect areas that were not 
residential that were non-conforming AG or AG I subdivisions or AG I Residential and AG II 
Residential.  Ms. Gutcher said it would be easier to implement if they stated Agriculture. 
 
Commissioner Henderson asked if anyone wished to speak. 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 10 of 11 
 

 
Dan Winchester, 842 Richbay Road, Havana, FL appeared before the Board.  He said in July he 
presented a Conservation Community concept and at the last meeting last month he was 
instructed to work with staff to integrate the Conservation Community Concept into a Master Plan 
Community definition. When he proposed the concept, it was for the Rural Residential.  He said he 
took the pages he drafted tried to integrate it into the Master Plan Community Category.  He said 
the first option dealt with the net/gross density issue that was talked about earlier.  He said one 
thing that could be done in lieu of potentially adopting a conservation community would be to 
allow gross density in all land use categories.  He said in allowing net density or gross density in all 
land use categories like AG I, II and III would allow more density in those areas where they were 
trying to establish residential.  He then went through Option 2 of what he presented to the 
Commissioners. 
 
Commissioner Henderson stepped out at 8:03 p.m. 

 
He distributed a plat of Centerville Conservation Community to the Commissioners and made 
comments regarding same. 
 
Commissioner Henderson returned at 8:06 p.m. 

 
There was discussion between Ms. Gutcher and Mr. Winchester regarding the land use element. 
 
Commissioner Henderson said she was not sure if it was appropriate to discuss what he wanted to 
do on a particular development and that was something that would be approved when he was 
ready to propose it.   
 
Ms. Gutcher said for him to look at his document at Table 4111 that was where the standard was 
for the density depending on whether he had connections. 
 
Commissioner Lasley asked him if his lots were 1 acre plus and he said what he presented was a 
model from another project.  She asked if there was some reason he could not create a subdivision 
in Gadsden County on a basic subdivision plan and do that he wanted if he had a land use that 
allowed rural residential.  He said possibly, he had proposed a specific conservation subdivision 
policy, he said this was not a specific development plan, it was a model.  Commissioner Lasley said 
her problem with gross density on one acre lots was that there would be people with wetland and 
septic tank issues just because developers were not going to care for all that.  She said one of the 
properties on the lake was 50% wetlands and if they had been allowed to do a gross density they 
would have had twice as many lots on half of the property they could have built on all on septic 
tanks in scattered wetlands and that would have not worked.  She said she appreciated his concept 
and thoughts but there were a lot of vehicles there that people would have to choose from, from 
the basic subdivision that had a wetland in the middle that they could cluster.  He said he would 
like to do a project, or work with someone that wanted to do a project such as what he had.  He 
said he would work with Ms. Lex on this and see if he could come up with something that was 
better. 
 

6. Chapter 4, Land Use Categories (Legislative) LDR 2018-05)-Discussion of amendments to Chapter 
4, Land Use Categories of the Land Development Code 
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission 
February 14, 2019 Workshop 

Page 11 of 11 
 

There was a consensus to schedule discussion of Chapter 4 at another workshop.  
 
Ms. Lex passed out a FEMA update. 
 

GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
7. Planning Commissioner Questions and Comments 

 
8. Director’s/Planner Comments 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD, THE WORKSHOP WAS 
ADJOURNED AT 8:22 P.M. 
 
       GADSDEN COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Edward J. DIXON, Chair 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
NICHOLAS THOMAS, Clerk  
 



Page 1 of 47 
 

AT A WORKSHOP OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
HELD IN AND FOR GADSDEN COUNTY, FLORIDA ON 
MARCH 14, 2019 THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDING WAS 
HAD, VIZ:  

 

Present:  Regina Davis, At Large - acted as Chair  
Douglas Nunamaker, District 3 

  Lori Bouie, District 5   
  Marion Lasley, District 5  
 

Absent:  William Chukes, District 1 
  Antwon McNeil, District 1 
  Libby Henderson, District 3  

Steve Scott,  School Board Representative 
 
Staff Present: David Weiss, County Attorney  

Suzanne Lex, Growth Management Director  
Jill Jeglie, Senior Planner  
Ellen Andrews, Planner 

  Allara Mills Gutcher, Consultant  
  Muriel Straughn, Clerk‘s office  
 
 
Expired Terms:  

John Youmans, District 2  
  Gerald McSwain, District 2 
  Ed Dixon, District 4  
  Dr. Gail Bridges-Bright, District 4  
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
Ms. Davis called the meeting to order and led in pledging allegiance to the US flag.  
 

2. Introduction of Members and Roll Call  
 
Each member present stated their name for the record.  The attendance was recorded as listed 
above.  
 

3. Approval of the Agenda  
 
No action taken 
 

4. Disclosures and Declaration of Conflict  
 
No action taken  
 
 

jillj
Typewritten Text
#4-c



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 2 of 47 
 

5. Chapter 4, Land Use Categories (Legislative) (LDR 2018 -05) Discussion of the Proposed 
Amendments  
 
Consultant Allara Mills Gutcher introduced the proposed new Chapter 4 of the Gadsden County 
Land Development Code.  She explained that the existing chapter will be deleted in its entirety 
and a new chapter will replace it.   
 
She pointed out the following:  

 The proposed Land Development Code introduces zoning districts, which is a concept 
that has not been implemented in Gadsden County previously.  

 She referenced Page 4 – 1 Section 4100 which lists the various zoning districts.  

 The current Future Land Use Map (FLUM) shows three different categories of 
Agriculture lands (1, 2, & 3.)  The next version of the FLUM will show only one 
agriculture land use.   However, the agriculture lands will be broken down into zoning 
districts on the “zoning map.”  

 The same concept as listed above is true of Industrial.  The Industrial category will 
become just one category on the FLUM, but, will have two zoning districts to 
implement the “light” and “heavy” industrial zoning districts.  

 The Neighborhood Commercial and General Commercial will remain in place just as 
before.  

 There will be three separate residential categories specifically mapped for 
development.  They are Rural Residential (RR), Suburban Residential (SR) and Urban 
Residential (UR.) They will not exist on any map until an application is made for that 
zoning category.  It will be brought to the Planning Commission and Board of County 
Commissioners for a rezoning request via a Map Amendment.  

 The following categories will closely resemble what they are at the present:  Historical 
(H), Conservation (CSV), and Silviculture (SIL). Recreation (REC), Public/Institutional 
(P/I). 

 The new zoning districts are named Nature Center (NC) and Mixed Use (MU).  Those 
will be used to implement the new Future Land Use Map categories discussed at the 
last workshop.  These will be included in the Comprehensive Plan at a future meeting. 

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Are there going to be applications for a Land Use Change and also applications for 
zoning separately?  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes.  When somebody wants to apply for a completely different category, they would 
have to change the FLUM and the Zoning Map.  
 
If they are looking at a residential category on the FLUM and only want to change, for 
example,  go from RR to UR, they would only be asking for a Zoning Map Change 
because they would already have the future land use that they would need to develop 
in that parameter.  It depends, but, essentially, if you are going to a completely 
different category, then yes.  You would have to do a FLUM Change and a Zoning Map 
Change.  If you are going within the same category, you would only need a zoning 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 3 of 47 
 

change. 
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Will both of those activities be noticed in the paper and will the public be able to have 
input? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:   Yes  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

Will there be applications and fees for both of those? 
 
Ms. Gutcher: 
There are currently fees for applications for Future Land Use Map Amendments, so I 
can only anticipate that there will be Zoning Map Amendment fees also.  That will be 
up to the County Commission for them to change their fee schedule.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

So, if someone has a piece of property that is zoned RR, whatever applies to RR, will it 
still stand? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  Correct.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

And the same for the AG and for the Industrial?  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  Yes. 
 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Right now, the agricultural lands are by far the greater portion of the county.  So, AG1, 
AG2, and AG3 are now going to be combined into one Agriculture category?   
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
On the FLUM, but, the Zoning Map will have the three (3) separate ones.  Zoning will be 
AG1, Ag2 and Ag3.   On the FLUM, we just need one Agriculture category.  

 
Jill Jeglie:  

That will become the zoning map and the FLUM will change to combine colors.  That 
will allow 1, 2, and 3 in a combined residential.  (Urban, Suburban & Rural Residential)    

 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

Are you going to allow any adjusting in the ones, twos, and threes or are we are going 
to leave it crazy like it is?  

Jill Jeglie: 
Someone can come in and make an application to change it.  I will let Allara explain 
that.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 4 of 47 
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
At this stage, we are not changing any property on the map.   

 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

So, when we have a piece of property that has three categories, it will stay. 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Yes.  It will just be the zoning.  It will depend on what it is categorized as.  But, if it has 
AG1, 2, & 3 on the FLUM on the same property, it will have one agriculture Future Land 
Use category, but with AG1, 2, &3 zones on the same property.  We are not changing 
any boundaries.  We are moving it to the Zoning Map.  
 

Jill Jeglie: 
We are putting forward a policy that allows an interpretation on those boundaries, 
though, to allow some flexibility.  I can’t remember what the amounts were, but, 
within so many feet on so many acres, you could adjust the line.   
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
Is it generally going to be to the least restrictive category in the parcel? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Not any longer.  Not if you adopt the language that we talked about at the last 
workshop.  It gave a way to measure how you would look at the maximum 
development potential of a parcel that had more than one category assigned to it. 
 

 

 HISTORICAL ZONE – PAGE 4-1 
  Subsection 4101 Historical Zone 
 Ms. Gutcher:  

Some of these are very similar in nature to the Future Land Use categories.  One of 
those is the Historical Zone.  The intent is the same.  It gives an idea of what we are 
looking for to categorize as historical on the Zoning Map.  It could be a property on the 
National Register.  It could be a listing by the Florida Department of State, Division of 
Historical Resources or it could be a locally designated historical property by the Board 
of County Commissioners. 

 
Each of these zoning districts – each subsection is broken down in the same order in 
how we are describing them.  The first portion of the subsection is just a general 
overview of the zoning districts.  Then, we have the As, Bs, Cs and Ds of each of these 
subsections.  The General Character, Allowable Uses, Bulk Regulations and 
Development Restrictions.  It is similar in order in how we proceed looking at each one 
of these zoning districts.  It is consistent throughout the document.  It is easier to read 
that way.  You can go to a specific zoning district and know that “A” is talking about 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 5 of 47 
 

General Character and that “D” is talking about Development Restrictions.  
 

If there is any sort of density or lot size requirements, it would be listed inside of the 
table that is listed in each of those subsections.   
 
In the Historical Zone, we tried to leave it open because we want to be able to keep the 
historical aspect of the development on site.  It may not have the Code Setback or 
whatever the Code might state for other zoning districts.  So, we are trying to keep 
with the historical aspect of the historical site as far as this zoning district.   
 
So, this one is probably the least regulated category zoning district because we want to 
retain what is existing so that somebody can maintain the historical structure and not 
be worried about being nonconforming.  

  
 

 Commissioner Davis:  
Commissioners, do you have any questions regarding the Historical zone?  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

I have questions on pretty much every issue.  My first question is on Section 4100, 
which, is the Zoning Districts.  In all the other categories, you have broken down the 
zoning.  For Agriculture – you have 1, 2, & 3.   In Residential, you have Suburban 
Residential, Urban Residential and Rural Residential.   You have broken those out.   
 
In “O”, you have just listed “Mixed Use,” of which there are two categories that are not 
listed now on this.  They are the Nature Based and the Urban Mixed use.  To be 
consistent, I feel like you need to list those.   When we get to those sections, I feel like 
they need to be broken down and not created under an umbrella type thing.  I think 
their uses should be broken out and listed separately.   

 
 
 
 
Commissioner Lasley referred to Page 4-16 Subsection 4111.  Mixed Use Zone 
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

So can we put that in the parking lot and address them when we get to that point? 
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Well, at “O”, I think you should substitute that with “Nature Based” then add “Urban 
Mixed Use.” 

  
Ms Gutcher:  

In the Urban Residential, you mean?  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 6 of 47 
 

No.   
 
Chair Davis:  

She is looking at “Mixed Use.” 
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Then over here where you have them in a table together.  Mixed Use Zone.  “The 
Master Planned Community and the Mixed Use Zone…” 
 

Chair Davis:  
O.K. Can we discuss that when we get to that specific area? 

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Well, this is that first section.  It is just- 
 
Chair Davis:  

If it applies, then we can go back and put it in as that.   
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
O.K.  That is fine.  
 
In that same section, the second line of the paragraph following the list – the 
Board….permits manufactures… there is a typo.   

 
Jill Jeglie:  

That should also read “Florida Statutes” – there is typo there, too.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

On that same page under Historical Zone, “The listing on the federal National Register 
of Historic Places.”  I have a question as to whether federal be capitalized?  
 

Chair Davis:  
It does.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

That is all I have on that page.  
 
Page 4-2:  In B.  Allowable Uses.  I see it as a place for having public meeting houses for 
the community and I don’t know if we can work that language into there.  Something 
like that.   And, I would like to add language “and/or” other historical uses because that 
is not included as an allowable use.  

 
Chair Davis:  

So, do all of those need to be listed?  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 7 of 47 
 

I think maybe what we need to look at and remember is that this category is a very 
small percentage of that map.  It is really intended to – and even in the future when 
anything becomes historical – to preserve what is on the ground.  This is not about 
developing something used.  This is about preserving what is on the ground.   
 
We can easily broaden part B and say as we did in the Table, “As historically 
established.” 

 
Chair Davis:  

Yes.   
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

O.K.  
 

 Chair Davis:  
Bulk Regulations:  (No Changes offered.) 

  
 Table 4101. Bulk Regulation Standards:   Are they O.K. with everyone?  (No response) 

 
 Next is Development Restrictions.  (No Response) 
  
 Alright, we are now to Conservation Zone. 

 
 Page 4-2 Subsection 4102.  Conservation Zone. 
  
 Ms. Gutcher:  

This zoning district is also very similar to what the Future Land Use Map states and 
allows for.  This is to preserve lands that are environmentally sensitive. Land and water 
resources and habitats.   
 
The first part, where the bullets are, are just general characteristics of the lands that 
are in the conservation zone.  If you have a conservation easement, one of the 
advantages of listing it in a conservation future land use category and as a conservation 
zoning district is because it is easier to regulate what goes on in there.  Sometimes 
conservation easements are in a commercial zoning district.  Sometimes they are in an 
industrial zoning district.  To know where those boundaries is a little harder to 
determine unless you have personal knowledge of them when they are not mapped.   
 
Having a developer or whoever to have the ability to put it into the Future Land Use 
category or a Zoning district, then you actually have it on the map and it is easier for 
staff to notify anybody coming forward whether there is an conservation easement or 
some other sort of preservation tool on the property.   
 
Allowable uses include those which are passive in nature.  Again, this language is very 
similar if not identical to the Future Land Use category.  So, it is allowing hunting clubs 
and activities which are considered active recreation.  Walking trails, observation 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 8 of 47 
 

points, open space for walks and the like. The only residential density that is allowed is 
one dwelling unit per forty (40) acres, which is also shown in Table 4102. It shows you 
the setbacks, the minimum lot frontages, etc.  
 
Then finally, the development restrictions are impervious surface must be limited to 
that which supports passive recreational activities.  Then, the parking restrictions.  

 
Chair Davis:  

O.K., Commissioners.  Comments, questions, concerns? 
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

I have comments on page 4-3.  Under “A” General Character.  “The preservation of the 
natural environment is the desired effect here.  The lands within subdivisions and other 
developments meant for open space.”  Are they going to be reclassified as 
conservation land?  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Not necessarily.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Are they going to be zoned Conservation? 
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

As the developer comes forward or the land owner comes forward and wishes to 
develop the property. It is not mandatory right now that they put any of that into a 
conversation land use category.  If they want to have a conservation easement, that is 
up to the County or whoever the receiving agency is to accept that easement and how 
they want to work on that easement.  But, no, it is not considered a requirement when 
somebody is coming in with a residential subdivision to put in that open space.  The 
open space might be considered more of a recreational use.  It needs to be looked at 
on a case by case situation.  It could be an open park.  It just depends on the plan for 
development. 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
So, in “B” – Allowable uses.  I think there are plenty of opportunities for hunting camps 
that have active recreation, which I am assuming will be ATV usage and things like that.  
There are several other land use categories where this can be allowed.    
 
My statement is that the protection of environmentally sensitive areas and critical 
habitats and active recreation.   They (Conservation and ATVs) do not go together.  
Active recreation is definitely more destructive and is not set up to protect and 
preserve lands.  So, I would like to see that part struck out of there.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Just so that you are aware, that area down by the lake (pointing to the FLUM on the 
wall) - that big brown conservation area where Joe Budd is located – they do hunt in 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 9 of 47 
 

there.  So, that is mainly the reason why this language is the way that it is.  Also active 
recreation includes something that you are doing like hiking, single tracts for the 
bicycles – that is active recreation.  A lot of that happens down in that area also.  You 
just need to think about that when you are forming this language.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:     
I personally don’t have a problem with passive hunting with people.  Your definition 
here is that passive uses are …walking trails, observation points, open space, and 
boardwalks.  I personally don’t have a problem with that.  The impacts to the 
conservation lands are going to come when ATVs are allowed in there without any 
regulation. 
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Well you can mention something about motorized vehicles then.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
That would be good.  I would be much more inclined to that in conservation.   Restrict 
it to passive recreation.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

I agree.  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

I would suggest that we put that as a development restriction under Part D. 
 

Commissioner Lasley & Commissioner Bouie:  
O.K.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
I have a very minor grammatical error to point out.   Page 4.2.  Second to the last 
sentence where it says “federally-owned” lands.  I would get rid of that hyphen.  I know 
that it is superfluous. 
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
O.K.  

 
Chair Davis:  

Is there anything further in Section 4102? 
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
I do have a question on the Bulk Regulations here.   
 
In our last meeting, you mentioned that variances are only going to be allowed for 
these Bulk Regulations in these tables.  Does that mean that someone could actually 
put more dwelling units in there if it is approved?  

 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 10 of 47 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
The density of the category is limited first to what the Future Land Use Map is limited.  
Then if there is a difference and it is more restrictive, then it would be limited to the 
more restrictive zoning type district.  So, if the Future Land Use allows for one dwelling 
unit per five acres, but the zoning says that it has to be one per ten, then that would be 
the limitation.  One per ten.   
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
In this Conservation Table 4102, the Maximum is one dwelling unit per 40 acres in the 
Land Development Code here.   
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Correct.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Does that conflict with the Future Land Use Element?  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

It is exactly the same.   
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

So, this is situation where a variance is not allowed?  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
You cannot get a variance on density.  

 
Chair Davis:  

Development Restrictions.  Any Concerns other than adding ATVs to this area?  I am 
sorry, motorized vehicles.   
 

Growth Management Director Lex:  
If I may suggest another qualifier in there is “anything that would require extensive 
facilities or development.”  Again, that type of recreation usually requires extensive 
facilities and development and you would want to restrict that also in your 
conservation.  For your consideration.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

That is a good point, but I would want to quantify that.  We would want to know what 
“extensive” is.  Do you want to limit the number of square feet a building can be?   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
 Isn’t it already limited to a maximum of impervious surface of .05? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
That is not very large.  

 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 11 of 47 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Good.  

 
Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  

I think that would limit it.  
 
Chair Davis: 

Was there anything else in that section?  
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

I am through.  
 
 

 SUBSECTION 4103.  Silviculture 
 

 Chair Davis: 
We are now on to Silviculture.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Silviculture is very similar to what the Future Land Use category is.  It is pretty much the 
harvesting of trees.  There is not a whole lot of this category in Gadsden County, but, it 
is primarily on the south and southwest side of the county boundary.  These are 
planted pines, generally.  They grow until they harvest.  The allowable uses include 
silviculture uses, agriculture uses, other operations to protect Gadsden County 
streams, lakes and other water bodies.  It does allow for hunting clubs and similar 
activities and limited residential at one dwelling unit per 80 acres.   
 
Then we go down to our Table 4103.  That talks about setbacks, lot sizes, lot frontages, 
the density, there is no maximum building height proposed.  The development 
restrictions refer to the best management practices for silviculture which is the latest 
adopted version in 2008.  It states that residential uses shall be constructed only if 
necessary to support the silviculture or agriculture use on the site.   Then just another 
silviculture restriction.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
Would that house be like for a caretaker? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Yes, something like that.   

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Then again, it is only one per 80 acres?  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Yes, that is correct.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 12 of 47 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I have some grammatical things on page 4-4.   
 
In the last sentence of the first paragraph the word “be” should be added at the end of 
the sentence.  
 
In the sentence that follows – it should read, “Lands “that” actively…. 
 
Under “A” the second sentence should read “typically consist “of” planted trees… 
Also under “A” the word Silviculture is spelled wrong.  (the one that is not underlined)  

 
Under Allowable uses, I am comfortable with hunting clubs as an activity.  I think that is 
an appropriate use.  
 
My next comment is on the next page – according to the footnote, the maximum 
building heights are unlimited with the exception of a house that shall not exceed 36 ft.  
So, I guess my question is – Why would they be allowed to have unlimited heights?  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Because of the Forestry towers. 
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
You sort of opened the door for everything based on one particular example and I am 
not comfortable with that.  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
But, they would be limited to what is allowed in that category in that district.  They 
can’t put anything commercial in there.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

My next comment is going to be No. 2.  “Residential uses shall be constructed only if 
necessary to support the Silvicultural or Agricultural uses on site.”  How are you going 
to monitor that?   
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
When they come in to get a building permit for the residential structure.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
How does that work? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
I will let Suzanne answer that question. 
She is asking how you would determine that the residential use is dependent on the 
silviculture activity.  At one dwelling unit per 80 acres.  
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 13 of 47 
 

I think that you would have to look at the application and the restriction that would be 
placed on that application in terms of if they had somebody there as a manager.  Again, 
I would think that you would need a lot of acreage to want to do that.  It would be 
permitted for that purpose, but, I don’t think that we have ever had such an 
application and I would not anticipate that.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
I don’t it is going to be an issue.  I think that is a lot of land to use it for something other 
than the intended purpose.  
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
I do have some concerns about limiting the dwelling number.  I am imagining that there 
are a lot of small farms that will need managers that will want to have dwelling places 
for them.  
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 
 That is exactly what I am thinking of in terms of you may have somebody whom you 
want to manage that activity, just as you have agriculture and silviculture activities 
similar to that.   
 
Do you think it should be less acreage?  
 

Commission Bouie: 
I would guess or some type of allowance for more than one dwelling. I don’t know just 
how you would do that.  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
It is one dwelling per 80 acres, so on those dark blue charts, I am sure there are more 
than 80 acres.  You could have quite a few houses in there.  
 

Jill Jeglie: 
They are owned by only about five corporations.   
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
So, if there is 386 acres for sale,  I guess I would have to divide 80 into 386 acres to see 
that I could only have 5 dwellings on my property to house someone to care for it.  Is 
that correct?  Then I would have to have the houses spaced out for every 80 acres?  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Yeah.  These are pine plantations though.  It is not like it is an agricultural activity that 
requires a lot of maintenance.  They take 15 years before the trees can be harvested 
from the time they are planted.  
 
Just as another note, if you are looking at changing this number, we will have to change 
it in the Comprehensive Plan also because that is the density that is listed in the plan.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 14 of 47 
 

Commissioner Bouie: 
I am just leery of restricting the number.  I am from a rural area agricultural zone.  I 
remember the day when there were houses on the properties, but, O.K.  I will come 
back to it. 
 

Chair Davis: 
Anything else, commissioners?  (no response) 
 
O.K. then we will move to Recreation.  
  

 SUBSECTION 4104.  Recreation Page 4-5 
 
Chair Davis:  

O.K.  Let’s move on to Recreation.  
 
Ms. Gutcher: 

This district is intended for where we can have areas for outdoor recreation, indoor 
recreation for visitors and residents of Gadsden County.  It is not a category that we 
really limited to a location where it can be.  It can be located anywhere throughout the 
county and adjacent to both residential and non-residential development.   
 
Allowable uses are applicable to those that you would consider as a Recreational  
Zoning.  Activities would consist of  parks, playgrounds, sports fields, courts, dog parks, 
swimming facilities and the like.  We would also allow tent, cabin, and RV sites in this 
category.  Hunting clubs and activities and temporary vendors to offer food and 
beverage to recreational users (food trucks.) “Temporary” is defined as a period of 
three (3)  days or less during a thirty (30) day period for those temporary vendors. 
 
The Bulk Regulations are listed in Part “C”.  There is no density in this category unless 
there is an on-site management operator that needs to stay there overnight.  
 
There are other bulk regulations listed in the table.  
 
Other restrictions include those that apply to a  Recreation Vehicle Park, which we have 
in another part of our Code, which you guys recommended adoption back in January.  
We talked about RV parks and what those requirements would be.  That would be in 
Chapter 5 of the Land Development Code.    
 
It talks about residential uses shall be dependent upon the management of the on-site 
use.  
 
Parking requirements shall be what is contained in other portions on this Code.   
 
The sports facilities and fields shall be limited in their hours of operation just so that it 
is not a nuisance to adjacent residential uses.  

 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 15 of 47 
 

Chair Davis:  
O.K., Commissioners.  Comments, questions or concerns?  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
I have comments on Page 4 – 5.  So, again, my question is – Are these going to be 
labeled on the zoning map? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Yes.  Just as they are today on the map on the wall there.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

O.K. But, not within a subdivision when a subdivision has a recreation area or a mixed 
use.  Master planned community developer decides it is going to have a recreation 
component.  Is that going to get labeled on the map?  
  

Ms. Gutcher: 
If it is a mixed use development, the whole project will be done as mixed use.  It won’t 
have separate pockets of different types.  There will be a mixed use and it will be 
approved as what we call a “planned development or planned unit development.”  
That will be different.  You will look at the whole overall development of the things.  It 
won’t be piece-milled.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
So, we have a house and we have facilities.  We’ve possibly got swimming pools with  
changing areas and a pump station for pool.  We’ve got maintenance facility buildings.  
We’ve got camp sites.  We’ve got RV sites.  We’ve got a hunt club, which, I am 
assuming can’t have a structure unless it is the management facility one and the same. 
Bathroom facilities.  So, we’ve got all this, but, there is no mention of water or sewer 
being necessary to house these.   
 
To make them operate successfully and to provide amenities for our tourists that come 
into the county,  I feel like we need to have some requirements since we are dealing 
with the water supply and the waste that is going to be created from this endeavor.  
That could be passive.  It looks like there are some impacts here that are going to be 
happening.  
 

Commissioner Bouie: 
Would that be maintenance facilities and accessory to the primary use? (Page 4-5 B) 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes.  They would be dependent on the use on the site. 
 
When we talk about things like the RV parks and swimming pools – those specific 
development regulations for that type of development will be located in Chapter 5, 
which is the general development standard.  That is what RV parks are.   So, this is what 
is allowed overall.  Overall setbacks and overall restrictions, but, when you are talking 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 16 of 47 
 

that specific, it will be in another section of the Code.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
So, you have somewhere in the Code where there are restrictions about how 
swimming pools are going to be designed and regulated?    
 

Ellen Andrews, Planner:  
That is in the Building Code.  It is covered in the Florida Building Code as well as the 
Florida Statutes.  There are a lot of swimming pool regulations and many of them have 
to do with not only how they are built, but, Department of Health regulations.  The 
Building Code is pretty specific about you can and can’t do with swimming pools.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Looking at the table, we have one housing facility per site.  That is my interpretation. Is 
that correct?  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
That is correct.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
The next page, Page 4-6.  “The maximum impervious surface” for this site is going to be 
a maximum of 20%.  Is that correct? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
So, that is going to limit the intensity of the development.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Yes.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:   
At the bottom of that table, there is a footnote about the maximum building heights 
are unlimited again.  Explain why that is.  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

There are certain types of uses that I don’t personally know of any reason we would 
want to regulate them.  There are only a certain number of things that can occur in this 
zoning district that are hard to predict from a recreational aspect.  Again, we are not 
allowing industrial uses; we are not allowing general commercial uses.  You have to 
think about what is allowed inside that zoning district.  As far a recreational activities, 
you might have forestry towers; you might have viewing tower in a park or something 
similar.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 17 of 47 
 

Couldn’t they apply for a variance for a structure?  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

I don’t know right off the top of my head; I thought we had a provision in the Code that 
didn’t allow you to get a height variance.  

 
Commissioner Lasley: 

Well, they didn’t think they did on a cell tower. 
 

Jill Jeglie:  
That is a different code.  There is a specific code that you all adopted several years ago 
regarding cell tower heights.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I remember that.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
If you look at Section 1500 on variance procedures.  Part A of that section says in the 
last sentence, “The height of the structure is excluded as part of this definition for what 
you can get a variance from.”  You would not be able to get a height variance. 

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Are you saying there is no height restriction?   
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Not in this recreation category.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
So, somebody could build a 100 ft. tall bungee jumping platform? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
And the RV Parks - again, in the other part of the Code that we dealt with last time, I 
believe that there can be eight RVs per acre or something like that.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Right.  If there is water and sewer. Those are not usually hooked up to central sewer.  
They are usually pumped out at a pumping station.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

The next question I have is on no. 4 under “D”, Development Restrictions – page 4-6. 
“Sports facilities and fields shall be limited in hours of operation when abutting 
residential zoning districts.”  I would feel more comfortable if it stated something like 
residential dwellings or something.   



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 18 of 47 
 

 
Again, there are AG1 Residential subdivisions.  As long as they are included in that, that 
is fine.  But, it doesn’t look to me that AG1 or even AG2 subdivisions will be protected 
by this.  So, should they be adjacent to this?  
  
The next statement is, “The hours of operation shall be between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 
p.m., and shall include the operation of the outdoor lighting.”  I am wondering if 8 a.m. 
isn’t better than 7:00 a.m.    
 
Then, is it only for Rural Residential?  Urban Residential?  Suburban Residential?  In 
which case, again, the AG subdivisions and highly developed areas that for some 
reasons might not be zoned residential – do they not have unlimited hours?    
 
The way this reads is that the hours shall be limited only if they are adjacent to 
residential zoning districts and if they are adjacent to anything else, the hours of 
operation are non-descriptive.  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
That is the way it is stated.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I think that the sports fields, there are times when things need to be, you know, we 
need to set a time and then just follow it.   
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 
I want to just caution you. If I had an agricultural piece of property and I built a 
recreational facility on it and someone comes along and builds a home next to it,  are 
you  going to retroactively say that I have to shut down at 9 p.m. if it abuts residential 
zoning.   
 
If someone else builds a house that is adjacent to my property where I built my 
recreation facility first, it would restrict the recreational use that had already been 
approved and developed.   I would recommend that you not use “abutting residential 
use”, but, “subdivision.”   
 
If you are in a rural residential or in a residential area and you come in for a zoning 
district, those zoning districts exist already.  So, again, you have your rural residential, 
so you are not really changing anything that you have now.  If it abuts rural residential, 
those are the hours of operation.   
 
I would also say as a parent of a teen that plays ball,   9 p.m. is really early.  These kids 
are playing until 10:00 p.m. typically.   Another thing about starting at  7:00 a.m.  You 
can start construction at 7:00 a.m. by the noise ordinance.  You may want to consider 
opening the facility at 7:00 a.m. because you can start buzz sawing at that hour as well.  
I think this would be a lot less intrusive than construction.   Just wanted to bring those 
facts to light.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 19 of 47 
 

 
Chair Davis:  

I play tennis at 7 a.m. It is not too early.   I am out there playing tennis and I get it.  
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 
Some kid sports start at 6 a.m.  Kids go to  swim practice before they go to school right 
next against residential areas.  Typically, if you want a recreational facility to really 
serve your community.  You are going to allow it to serve the community and the needs 
of that community and it is early and it is later.  That is my experience in both urban 
and more rural areas.   

 
Commissioner Lasley: 

If you look at eastern part of the county towards Havana, I believe that all that land is 
AG2 or a lot of it is AG2.  So, I guess I have problems with the wording “when abutting 
residential zoning districts” by limiting it to just that category.  There may be other 
residential dwellings nearby that might have a problem with it also.  If they set the 
criteria, it is going in next to you and the folks are not going to have any say-so in this.   

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

I think the original idea was that in an agriculture district, you have greater acreage on 
which to build a house. So, there is likely more vegetation to help buffer any noise.  
Like Suzanne mentioned, you generally want these things near residential areas so the 
kids can get to them.  

 
Chair Davis:  

How do you other commissioners feel about the wording of “abutting residential 
zoning districts?”  Does it need to be expanded or does it need to be just “residential 
zoning districts?” 

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

I actually think that they need more time.  People typically work out late and early at 
sports facilities.  You wake up early to get to a sports facility.  I go at midnight to 
exercise a lot.  To limit the hours – I think that will be taken care of in the application 
process.  You know, when we ask the citizens to come forward with their concerns.  
But, to actually put a number in there – I don’t think it is fair to the facility.  It is too 
restrictive.   
 
I am O.K. with having some consideration for the residents, but, I don’t think we need 
to get to the point of numbers and all of that.   
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 
I just examined this issue for the St. Hebron Park.  If you have a residential dwelling 
unit, there are buffer requirements and they are more dense because you have that 
residential unit proximate to it.  So, there is additional buffer required.  It is a 20 Ft. 
buffer.   There is more screening that is required.  So, there are measures in the Code 
already that provide for that buffering with recreational uses adjacent to residential 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 20 of 47 
 

units versus zoning districts.   Again, I have incurred recreational facilities where people 
live in the residential zoning districts.  

 
Chair Davis:  

Commissioner, (speaking to Commissioner Nunamaker) do you have any thoughts on 
it?  (pause)  I guess not.   

 
Commissioner Bouie:  

I was waiting for something profound to come from him.  
 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

Good luck.  
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

Again, I am not so worried about the hours of operation as I am about the outdoor 
lighting that might impact people that live around in that area. 
 

Commissioner Nunamaker: 
In that zoning category, doesn’t it say that the lights go out at 9:00 p.m. also? 
 

Commissioner Bouie: 
What about football games?  Will they just have to cut the game off because the lights 
need to go out? 
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
Part of the problem with that is when you have a public or private facility for 
recreation, they want those lights to go out at night because they don’t want kids 
sneaking in there and jumping into the pool or sneaking around or whatever. 

 
Chair Davis:  

Are you speaking from experience?   
 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

I heard about it.    
 
(Laughter) 

 
Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 

You may want to limit the lighting that is directly related to the type of recreational 
facility like the big lights that are for ball fields.  The type of lighting that you are talking 
about typically are not so intrusive (swimming pool or tennis courts.)   You would not 
want to have those tall lights (ball fields) on beyond the need for them to support the 
activity that was going on.  I would think.  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

Perhaps we could have it shielded away from the residential areas.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 21 of 47 
 

 
Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex: 

That is additional language, but, again, I would recommend that if you want to, to 
restrict the lighting.  I think the most intrusive lighting is the lighting that you use for 
ballgames – football and baseball.  Therefore, you may want to specify that type of 
lighting in terms of compatibility. 
 

Chair Davis:  
O.K.  I am going to take this in three parts.  The first being whether or not the 
commission would like to change the wording as it relates to abutting residential 
zoning districts.   Can I get a feeling from you all?  Commissioner Lasley has indicated 
that she would like to see it changed.  You have indicated that you have no problem 
with it.  That leaves one other.   

 
Commissioner Bouie:  

My concern is that this is something that should be considered as a case by case issue.   
I am having issues with the hours of operation.   
 

Chair Davis:  
That is the second part that I was going to take up.  I would like to narrow it to one 
issue at a time.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

I am o.k. with giving consideration to residential properties.  However, I am concerned 
about putting numbers to it.   
 

Chair Davis: 
You are saying, leave the “residential zoning districts.”  Take out specific operating 
hours.   
 
How do you feel about the outdoor lighting – being as specific as you can be? 

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

There should be adequate buffers for the height and lighting.  Will that satisfy, Ms. 
Lasley?  How can we provide a buffer for it?  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
For a football field – I can’t imagine.  There is no way.  You can’t buffer those unless 
you’ve got dense 30 yr. old pine trees around it.  I would hate to live in a house and 
then have a ball field come in next to me and have to have those lights on all the time 
when I used to be able to sit out in my yard and enjoy to stars.  To me, that just doesn’t 
all go together.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

I understand, but, somehow we need a place for children to play.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 22 of 47 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I am not going to sacrifice somebody’s personal home at the expense because this is an 
inappropriate location for this.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

I hear you and I am saying that it should be considered by a case by case basis.  At that 
time, we would have the citizens come before us and state their concerns and weigh it 
out there.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
There will be public hearings.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I am fine with that, but, there are things written in here so that if somebody wanted 
this on their property, there is not going to be any public hearing.  
 

Chair Davis:  
Why don’t we stop at the first sentence, and then follow with, “The hours of operation 
shall be what?” 

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

“…outdoor lighting operations shall be dependent on a qualified lighting study.” 
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

What is that?  Someone to come out and tell you what? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
How the lighting is going to spray. 

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

I am sorry, I can’t buy that.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Consider it on a case by case basis?  
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
Yeah, because you will have given the citizens the opportunity to come and state their 
concerns.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

 That is not what she just said.  
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

O.K. then, let’s add it.  
 
Commissioner Lasley: 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 23 of 47 
 

So, you did not state that the citizens were going to be informed of this qualified study, 
correct? 

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

The citizens will be informed just like they are today when they go through the public 
hearing process.  
 
If it is a development order that is required to go through the public hearing process, 
that  is the time they (citizens) would come forward to voice their opinions.  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
These are all allowable uses that you are setting up here, correct? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes.  That is why I feel that if you talk about a lighting study and then we get a section 
of the Code that talks about what is acceptable in lighted facilities adjacent to 
residential zoning districts, that might help you.  I understand that lighting is a concern, 
especially when they are 80 ft. off the ground.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
But, it is also my understanding that these are allowable uses.  When someone comes 
into the Planning Office and says, “There is some recreation property here and I want 
to put this in.”  Then you are going to say, “O.K., pay your money and let’s see your 
application.”  Is it going to be approved in the office or is it going to come to the 
Planning Commission? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

We are working through that in Chapter 7.  It is in the chapter that it is coming forward 
to you.  It is in Chapter 7 as to what the thresholds are for administrative approval and 
what has to go before the County Commission for approval.  
 

Commissioner Bouie: 
So, with lighting, can we say that it has to come before the board?   Would that satisfy?  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
You can make that restriction, yes.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

I think that would satisfy on the case by case basis and it would have more… 
All lighting over sports facilities and fields.   
 

Jill Jeglie:  
What about the low lights that light the walking trails?  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

You might just say lighting over 20 ft. in height has to be considered with a lighting 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 24 of 47 
 

study and come before the commission.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Yes, use sports facilities and fields.  
 
Mr. Gutcher:  

Lighting over 20 ft. in height that accompanies a sports facility field must have a 
lighting study.  We will get to who reviews it when we get to Chapter 7. 

 
Commissioner Lasley: 

Why do you have to say over 20 ft.? 
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Because if you are on a walking path and the light is 6 ft. high, it is probably not 
obtrusive to somebody that is 50 ft. away in their home on the next block.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

But that is not a sports facility or a field.  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Right.  
 

Commissioner Bouie: 
I guess what she is saying is that we don’t have to include the height.  O.K. 
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
It sets a criteria.  It is like you can put 20 ft. in there and you can leave them on all night 
long and nobody has to study it.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

We like criteria because it is defensible and it is easy to interpret. 
 
Chair Davis:  

Would the commission like to see a height specific or no?  
 
I hear one “no”.  Now two.  So, there will not be a height number placed in there.  
 

Clerk Straughn: 
May I have some clarity?  I understand that if it is a sports facility with fields  

 
Chair Davis:  

And fields.  
 
Clerk Straughn: 

And Fields.    And or And/or? 
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 25 of 47 
 

Chair Davis:  
And/or 
 

Clerk Straughn:  
I know that the new sports facility plan has sports fields, swimming pools, walking 
trails.   
 

Chair Davis:  
And/or.  
 

Clerk Straughn:  
And/or it is.  

 
Chair Davis:  

Shall be limited in hours of operation when abutting residential zoning districts and the 
next sentence I will defer to Allara.  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

This is just a workshop, so this is just the language we are discussing.   
 
Clerk Straughn:  

You are going to require a lighting study 
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

We don’t know that yet, we are just talking it through.  This is going to come back to 
them either next month or the one after that.  

  
Clerk Straughn:  

And you are going to put in buffering considerations between a facility and the homes.  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

That already exists.  
 
Clerk Straughn:  

And they will be considered on a case by case basis.  Is that language going in there?  
 
Ms. Gutcher: 

No. 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
What about the outdoor lighting for the sports facilities and fields, we want to be able 
to consider that on a case by case basis.   

  
 

 PUBLIC INSTITUTIONAL ZONE– Section 4105.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 26 of 47 
 

Chair Davis:  
We are going to move quickly to Public Institutional Zone. 

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

This is no different than the Future Land Use category.  It speaks to uses that are 
generally public and/or institutional such as government buildings, hospitals, schools 
anything that you would associate with institutions.   
 
If you want to try to move on a little quicker, if you have any questions, because this is 
pretty much identical to the Future Land Use category.  I guess we can go now to 
address specific questions now.  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
I do on page 4-7.  In my opinion, all of these uses that you have listed here need to be 
type 2 reviews so that the public and the boards can have input.   
 
Medical facilities, utilities, sanitary sewer, gas, landfills.  So, is it written in here that it is 
a use by right?   
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Yes, it is a use by right.  Anything that is listed inside the zoning district is a use by right.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
So, if it is a use by right, does it get approved in the office at the planning department 
and does it not come before the planning board and the board of county 
commissioners? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

We are going to look at that when we get to Chapter 7. 
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

How can you make decisions on this when we don’t have that information?   
 
Ms. Gutcher: 

That is a different process.  What we are looking to do here is to determine what is 
allowed inside that zoning district and what the setbacks and the building envelop is.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

O.K.  So, then if that is the case, since I don’t have that information, I feel that they 
need to be presented to the public who is going to be living near them or affected by 
them – the landfills and utilities and medical facilities, government buildings, prisons, 
rehab – They need to be a type 2, Class 2 hearing where people are informed and have 
the opportunity to come out and give input.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
O.K.  But, right now, we are trying to decide if these uses fit into the Public/Institutional 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 27 of 47 
 

Zoning District.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

O.K.  I get it.  
 

Chair Davis:  
It is two parts.  As long as you make the note, when we get to that section, placement 
of facilities should be brought before us for review and a public hearing before  the 
people.   Then we can go forward and say, “they are allowable  uses in 
Public/Institutional zoning districts” as long as you make note of what the 
commissioners want when we get to that section which state further restrictions.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Sure.  But, the other thing that we need to think about is if we don’t want them in this 
category, which category would you like them to be in? 

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

I think that is a good category.  
 
Chair Davis:  

I don’t have a problem with them being in this category.  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

That is what we are looking for at this level - agreement that it should be in  
Public/Institutional Zoning District.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

The only one that you mentioned that specifically is going to be a type 2 hearing is a 
prison.   

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Just to let you know, we are getting away from “Types” and we are getting more and 
more into administrative or whether it goes to a public hearing.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

I am using the only language that has been presented to me.  So,  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Yes, I agree.  I understand what you are saying.  It is just for context.  We can only do so 
much in one meeting.   

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

I have a comment Section “D”, Development Restrictions, no. 1.  “Uses associated with 
the “incarnation” of people.  (laughter)  We need a better word.  Inundated, etc.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 28 of 47 
 

Yes, thank you.   
 

Incarceration  (laughter) 
 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

Are you talking about incarceration or jail?  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes. 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I am still at the top of page 4-7.    
 
The utilities.  So, my question is:  Should they be in industrial or commercial zoning or 
land use basically?  And sanitary sewer and gas and electric?  Again, the location is not 
restricted.  I am a little concerned about that.  The landfills – I don’t know where they 
need to be. 
 

Chair Davis:   
But can they be in Public/Institutional zoning districts?  That is the question, correct? 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Yes.  Not here, because Gadsden County does not own a utility, but, sometimes a city 
owns their utility, their own wire, owns their own sewer, owns their own garbage.  So, 
they would want to use their own property, which is a public land which would be the 
Public/Institution category and zoning district to be able to operate these facilities.   
 

Chair Davis:  
So, the question once again is whether or not if it is publicly owned, is this something 
they can put on their land?  Is it an allowable use?  Not, whether or not it could be in 
another section as well, but – 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Yes. 

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

What about landfills?  I don’t know where you are going to put them, but, industrial or 
commercial. 
 

Chair Davis:  
I say that it does.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

I am not sure that you would want it in commercial because you think about retail 
shopping centers and you probably don’t want a landfill close to those.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 29 of 47 
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
If the county chose to purchase its own landfill, you would you require the county to be 
commercial.  
  

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
Does it fit into that category is the question.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

O.K.  So it is not commercial.  What about Industrial? I am just saying that you’ve got 
public lands already and when you write this in here, it is like somebody (inaudible) 

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

I am just trying to help.  Even if you made it an industrial category, it doesn’t really 
matter in the broad scheme of things.  It would have to be in the Industrial Future Land 
Use category in order to put a landfill there.  It is really about location – I think that is 
what you’re concerned about rather than what land use category it is allowed as.  
There is really not that much public/institutional on that map today.  
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  
You are safer to keep it in Public/Institutional.  It you start putting it in commercial and 
industrial, that opens the opportunity for private providers to come and say, “I want to 
take my industrial land and build a landfill or a transfer station.  I think if it is under the 
public and the institutional, there is less of that, as she said, plus, I think there is less 
likelihood for that invasive use or perhaps what you would consider an incompatible 
use.  If you want landfills to be looked at with a certain criteria, we can reserve that 
look at that in and of itself.  They are usually the most contentious public use.  So, I do 
understand your concerns, particularly about that, but electrical facilities, your 
substations, you need these so people can get out.  You don’t usually put your 
transmission lines right through a neighborhood, but these substations, you do need to 
be able to have these water facilities to serve your customers.  Landfills, you may just 
want to have a separate criteria for review.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
In this same section 4105, I am not sure that the setbacks are enough depending on 
what they are adjacent to.  What type of land use is next to them?   

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

These are like residential setbacks.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Some of these are going to need bigger setbacks.  There are too close for residential 
protections from utilities and landfills or prisons.   
 
The other thing is because the impacts to residential life could be pretty big if you are 
next to something that is in this category.  I would like to see some protections for the 
residences that exist or have this land use next to them. 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 30 of 47 
 

 
In “D” 2 at the bottom of the page (4-7), “Class III Utilities are subject to a compatibility 
analysis.” Again, we are back to the issue of – Does that need a public hearing? 

 
Ms. Gutcher:   

Do you mean the compatibility analysis?  
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

Yes.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
The compatibility analysis in and of itself is not subject to a public hearing.  It could be 
the type or the level of development type that you are used to hearing, that would be 
dependent on whether it goes before to the County Commissioner.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Well, because we don’t have any definitions, the things that I listed before that I am 
concerned about that I think need to be type 2, I would like to reserve judgment on this 
whole section because I think we need additional criteria that defines. 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

O.K. Let me ask you – Whether or not it is a type 2 – how would that relate to whether 
or not it is allowed in this zoning district?  I mean it’s got to be located somewhere.  If 
not in this zoning district, what district would you like to see it in?   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Well, the other thing is if you don’t mention it, then they have to apply for a special 
exception and then I know we are going to have a public hearing.  As far as I can tell in 
these rules and regulations, the public may not be able to have input on anything 
where changes are going on in the county.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
That won’t be the case, but, you know, you have to allow for a waste water treatment 
facility to go somewhere.  This is not whether it is going to be a type 1 review or a type 
2 review.  It is where do you want it to be? 

 
Chair Davis:  

Where do you want it?  What zone do you want it in?   I think we are getting into the 
weeds and not looking at - 
  

Commissioner Bouie:  
This is only about outlining the categories and not necessarily all of the requirements.  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
The Land Development Code is supposed to be the rules of how the county functions.  
You have said that about the Comprehensive Plan – that it is basically the overarching 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 31 of 47 
 

structure and so now we are down to the Land Development Code and this is where 
the rules are supposed to be and you are telling me now that these are not the rules.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

No, they are the rules.  I never said they weren’t.  
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
There are two different –  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

There is another chapter that talks about specific types of development. 
 
Growth Management Direct Suzanne Lex:  

May I suggest though, if you are concerned about the specific uses of Class III Utilities 
and the landfills, you may want to include those uses as well under No. 1 and No. 2 so 
that all are subject to a public hearing and specifically call out those three things.  
Those are biggest issues that trigger compatibility - Utilities, jails and landfills.  That is 
just a suggestion.  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
I would be o.k. with that.  Landfills, transfer stations, you know, I don’t how big the 
category is, but, if landfills cover everything, that is fine.  If prisons cover rehab & half 
way houses, fine.  I am o.k. with all of that.  But, if you have to list everything 
separately, then, let’s list them all separately.   
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
Well, incarceration would be somebody who cannot leave a facility.  A half-way house, 
if you have six or fewer residents, then you can be in any residential zone, by State 
Statute.   

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Some incarcerations can leave and come back.  They have working permits and passes 
and stuff like that.   

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

We might want to define incarceration.  We haven’t.   
 
Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  

I think that is subject to the operation of the facility. 
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

You are saying that everything is pretty much subject to the facility? 
 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Right.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 32 of 47 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
You can’t require certain electrical facilities.  Substations are required by Florida 
Statutes to go anywhere and you can only regulate them in conservation and historical 
districts.  
 

Chair Davis: 
Commissioner Lasley, as I am hearing you, “D – 1” on page 4-7, “all allowable uses shall 
be subject to” is that what you are saying?  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
I don’t know that you want it to go that way.  Do you want a government owned park 
to be required to be approved by the County Commission?  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 

Sure. 
  

Commissioner Bouie:  
Yeah.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

I would say Utilities and the landfills and the incarceration of people.  
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

So, Government-owned and quasi-public properties are coming before the county that 
owns them and for permission.  
 

Chair Davis:  
So, the last two bullets, you would definitely want.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

For what is currently described as a type 2 hearing. 
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
For government owned properties, you are going to regulate your own government.  
So, the county commissioners are going to say, “We want this new park and we are 
going to have to have a hearing?”  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

We were talking about the incarceration of people, utilities and the landfills.  
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

Those are government owned?  
 
Chair Davis:  

Right.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 33 of 47 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
The people live here in the county and are going to be affected by these developments 
and they need to have the opportunity to come into this room and talk to the Planning 
Commissioners and the County Commissioners about the things that are going to be 
happening next to them.   
 

Chair Davis:  
O.K.  Alright.   

 
Commissioner Bouie:  

How will we word it?  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Any more questions about Public/Institutions?  
 
No Response.   
 
 

 Subsection 4106.  Agriculture Zones  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  
Moving on to Agriculture zones.  
 
 

 Chair Davis:  
I am going to ask if we have any questions about agriculture zones so that we can move 
a little bit faster, please.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I have a question.  
 

Chair Davis:  
Go ahead.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

In “A”, the second paragraph there, well it is really the last line of the first paragraph, 
“Parcels within this district are low density.”  I did not find a definition for that in the 
definitions.  
 
The next section, “the location of any Agriculture district shall be limited to the rural 
areas of the County, not adjacent to a City limit.”    That exists pretty much everywhere 
in the county.  So, how do you address that?  There are agricultural districts adjacent to 
every city in the county.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker: 
Just take it out.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 34 of 47 
 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

You are correct.  We certainly can take that out.  
 
Chair Davis:  

You said you were taking it out?  Is that what I heard?”   Are you taking out the entire 
sentence?  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

The entire second paragraph.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

In “B” 1 – “Allowable uses are those which are related to agriculture activities….”  My 
question is what happens if a property is zoned Ag and there are not Ag products being 
prepared there like exist today?  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
They will be allowed to continue.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

Then somebody would regulate in the future?  The activities on those properties to 
make sure that they don’t  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Start a farm?  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

That anything in the Ag area that is newly created will be producing an agricultural 
product. 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

They would be allowed to continue on.  
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

What is the purpose of that?  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

The purpose of that is because the intent is to try to encourage residential uses to be in 
a residential district.  So, if anybody has 20 acres and they want to plat a subdivision to 
have them become residential on the Future Land Use Map and whatever residential 
zoning district, they would need to suit their development plan.    
 
Just as you are concerned about obtrusive uses adjacent to obtrusive uses, there are 
certain types of agriculture activities that are obtrusive to a residential land.  To 
preserve the agricultural uses.   
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 35 of 47 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
No. 2 is that, “The residential uses as the primary residence is for the person or family 
conducting the activities on that site.”  I question who is going to monitor that?  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Just like other activities that may go on a property that are not allowed by the Land 
Development Code.  It is a Code Enforcement issue.  It becomes a Code Enforcement 
issue.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
No. 3 – Agritourism/Agrotourism – I went to the definitions and it sent me to the FL 
Statutes.  Why don’t you just list the items in the definition that relate to 
Agrotourism/agritourism, which are horticulture, floricultures, forestry, dairy, livestock, 
poultry,……in the Chapter 2 definition of it so that people don’t have to go to the 
Florida Statutes. 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

You can certainly do that.  The reason why we like to refer if there is a Florida Statute 
definition to the Florida Statutes is because when that changes, somebody has to be on 
it to know that the definition changed that year in that session then come back to 
amend the Code.   

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

You could also say something like, “such as,” or “examples are” and then list these 
things.  I am just saying that it is just not up front.  It is like, o.k., I have to go to my 
computer and I have to find this Statute and I have to read what it says before I can 
even understand what this says.  I am just sorry to see that.   
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
Why is Agritourism reiterated?  
 

Chair Davis:  
Yeah, that part I didn’t understand.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
I may have to go back and look, but, I think it is mentioned both ways in the Statute.  

 
Commissioner Bouie:  

You could use “and/or” instead of the symbol.   
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

They are actually the same.  It is actually terminology.  
 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

It is the same spelling.  
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 36 of 47 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
One of them is supposed to be Agrotourism and Agritourism.   One of them is 
misspelled.  
 
Then the private air strips – No. 4. – I understand that this is where it is going to be and 
there is location criteria then have a certain amount of area that they need to be on.  
Again, I am back to the issue of – I personally believe that neighbors need to be 
notified.  I want to make sure that this is part of the type 2 notification.   

 
Chair Davis : 

Again, that would be in another section.  This is specifically stating allowable uses.  
What other zoning would you put private air strips and airplane hangars if not here.   

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

This is meant to capture the person who provides the service to spray crops.  They 
need a place to take off and land from.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I understand that.   

 
And the deleted stuff.  All this that has been deleted that we are getting rid of, there 
are all kinds of light industrial uses that calls for class 1 review; I mean class 1 and class 
2 are listed all through the document you are getting rid of.  
 
I am not creating something out of nothing.  I know what this is replacing.  I know that 
there are some things missing.  So, there is no, “Yes, this is o.k.  This is o.k.”  The public 
is presented with the opportunity to speak against it.  That is not in this document, 
O.K., and that is what I have a problem with.   
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
O.K.  

 
Commissioner Bouie:  

I am thinking that this is just outlining where these categories are.  
 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

What is allowed inside of them?  
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
And so, other locations in the Statutes would tell me what the restrictions are.   Is that 
right?  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

No.  In our Code.  There is another chapter that will talk about the development of an 
airstrip or the development of an RV park or mobile home park.  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 37 of 47 
 

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

And whether or not they would be subject to a public hearing?  
 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Yes.  How they are going to be processed. Yes.   
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
Perfect.  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Are you good? (speaking to Commissioner Lasley) 
 
Commissioner Lasley:  

I want to see it. I am not sure which part comes first, but, this doesn’t answer all my 
questions.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

Does the chicken cross the street or does the street move?  
 

Chair Davis:  
Might I suggest this?  Perhaps, in the future, if she has questions where she needs to 
see both parts, if you (Commissioner Lasley) could contact them and you all provide 
her with both parts so that she can compare them instead of us going through it this 
way.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
That is a standing offer.  It has been made available all along.  
 

Chair Davis:  
I am getting older, so, I don’t remember everything that I suggest.  

 
That would certainly help her in her process of understanding what is here.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker: 
Everybody has questions about how this is going to be processed and how it is going to 
be developed.  Hopefully, that will come out in Section 7.  Is that right? 

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Yes.  
 
Chair Davis:  

My suggestion is that if you are working of Section 7 and you have a rough draft, go 
ahead and provide that to the commissioners so that they can go back and forth.  

 
Commissioner Bouie:  



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 38 of 47 
 

We agreed a couple of years ago that we would get our concerns back to you all before 
the meeting so that when we come to the meeting, it is streamlined.  So, we need to 
get back to that, perhaps.  
 

Chair Davis:  
Yes.  I have something that I need to leave to do at 8:00 p.m.  So, I don’t know if we 
should continue this.  
 

Ms. Gutcher: 
Not with 3 people.  I don’t think that would be effective.  

 
Chair Davis:  

We can continue it when the commissioner also has the Section 7, which she wants to 
see both of and can ask her questions to the staff.   I think that will be better served for 
everyone if the commissioners agree.  
 

Commissioner Nunamaker:  
I am sure it is a good suggestion, but, all we are trying to do tonight is  
 

Chair Davis: 
Dr. Phil says when you say, “but,” I strongly listen to what comes after.  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Exactly.  Thank you.  We are just trying to see if these categories for these items fit into 
these categories.  That is all we need to do tonight.  How and where and how it goes 
about and whether there is a hearing or not will come later, if I understand it correctly.   
So, let’s just get these in the right category and move on.  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

There really isn’t much deviation from the Future Land Use Category language.  So, if 
you want to amend something in here, then we are going to look at the Comprehensive 
Plan language to make sure that we are not being inconsistent with the Plan.  

 
Chair Davis:  

O.K.  So, do you want to try and get through it or should I – let me defer to 
Commissioner Lasley.   In order for you to get through the allowable uses, are you of 
the opinion that you would still need to see Chapter 7?  If so, then we need to - we are 
about to lose one member.   
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
Yeah, like on page 4-9; D; 3 – It is talking about private airstrips.  I am going to know 
how that is dealt with before I can say that this use is o.k. in this zoning district.  I don’t 
know if it can go somewhere else.  This may not be the language that I want to put in 
here.  If it is going to be a “use by right,” people who have agriculture land and they 
come to the planning department and say, “I want to put an air strip in.  I have enough 
room and the Airport Authority said I could.  So, it is approved at staff level and the 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 39 of 47 
 

neighbors go, “I’ve got these planes coming in here all the time.” 
 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

But, there are restrictions in Section 7.   
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

It says, “only allowable as an accessory use to agriculture use.”  That means that it 
would have to be proven that there is an agriculture use and the State would have to 
approve it.  So, it is not like they could just walk into Gadsden County alone.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
That is not what it says.   
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
It says as an accessory use.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

It is happening now with no review level.  There are airstrips throughout this county.  I 
can’t tell you where they are at.  

 
Commissioner Bouie: 

This Restriction states that, “only allowable as an accessory use to a primary agriculture 
use….” 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
..Silviculture or…. 

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Or as residential Fly-in facilities.  So, if you wanted to have a Fly-in subdivision, it would 
be allowed in the Agriculture zoning.  
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
But, that would be 10 houses that come together as a subdivision and agree that they 
would all have private planes come in on this landing strip.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Exactly.  
 
And, like Jill said, a lot of this is trying to address what is already happening without any 
review without any parameters of what is allowed. So, we are trying to capture some 
of that in this revision.   
 

Commissioner Bouie: 
Again, the issue is, “Is this a zoning district where this should be placed?”  Right now, 
there is nothing wrong with that.    
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 40 of 47 
 

This is the recommendation of the staff and this is the zone where they have it 
currently.  It does not ill-effect anyone to have it in this zone.  There may be 
procedures that can be added to Chapter 7, but, it can be in this zone.  

 
Chair Davis:    

What is the will of the commission? 
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
I have twelve (12) minutes that I can stay.  
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
I would suggest that we finish with the Agriculture and get to a stopping point.  

 
Chair Davis: 

I don’t know if you were at “D” or not.  Were you above “D and still on the allowable 
uses as it relates to bed and breakfast and lodging?” 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Yes, I do have a question on that.  Again, does the B & B lodging as an agrotourism use.  
I assume that is going to be decided by someone in the office.   

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Yes, it will be reviewed by someone in the office, yes.  
 
The applicant will propose a use and it will be reviewed by staff.  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

I am just curious now, but, would that be like for a “Dude Ranch?” 
Bed and Breakfast?  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

It can be. People are traveling for experiences more recently.  They will come in and 
work on a farm for a week and stay at the B & B then go home.  
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  
It is a 5 acre minimum.  

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

Yeah, o.k.   They want to work on a farm?    
 
Commissioner Bouie: 

And they will pay me to work on my farm?   Hot diggity! 
 
Commissioner Lasley: 

So, on page 4-9, in the Table, the maximum building height is 30 ft. in all three of the 
Ag zones.  Again, in the others (Recreation and Silviculture), you had no limits.   So, I 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 41 of 47 
 

would just like to hear the logic of this.  
 
Ms. Gutcher:  

Just as we talked about earlier about the possibility of having forestry towers or 
observation towers that you would possibly want to be taller than 36 ft.  Trees are 
taller than that.   

 
Commissioner Nunamaker:  

They used to be.  (laughter – a reference to the recent damages to trees from 
Hurricane Michael) 

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

In “D.1” you have, “The Immediate Family Exception will only apply to lands in Ag 2 & 
3.”  What if you have an Ag1 piece of property that is, we will say 6 acres.   

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

You have to have a certain number of acres (and I would have to go back and review), 
but, you have to have a minimum number of acres to even be able to use this 
provision.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

It is 6.  3 for the parent and 3 for the other parcel.  
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
I will need to go read it again, but, there is a reason why I wrote it this way and I just 
can’t recall it at the moment.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

So, again, my question is, “What if you have a piece of Ag property that has the 
acceptable number of acres to divide it up, why is it not allowed to do that?” 
 

Ms. Gutcher:  
I will have to go back and review.  I can’t recall why I wrote it this way, but there was a 
reason.  

 
Chair Davis:  

She will get back with us on that one.  D-1. 
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
On D-2, the third line, “zoning districts that are not classified as agriculture….” I think 
that agriculture needs to be capitalized.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

O.K. 
 
Commissioner Lasley: 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 42 of 47 
 

Again, the compatibility analysis comes up.  You have already verified that it is not 
necessarily a type 2 hearing, so – 

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

A compatibility analysis is a report.  It is a review of what is proposed against what is 
existing.  It is a study.  

 
Commissioner Lasley:  

It is still a part of the type 2 hearing process currently.  
 
No. 3.  D-3.  “Private airstrips are only allowable as an accessory use to a primary 
agriculture use, silviculture use, or residential subdivision in this zoning district.”  
 
The word, residential subdivision needs to be defined a little bit better than that.  That 
is (inaudible) I am not comfortable with that.  

 
Ms. Gutcher: 

Can I get clarification on that?  Your understanding.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Grammar-wise, in the second line, it should read, “these zoning districts.”  

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

“In this zoning district”  “this” refers to – Oh, I get it - any of the three zoning districts.   
 

Commissioner Lasley:  
Then the next line “that provides for fly-in facilities,” instead of “provide”, I would use 
“fulfill the criteria for fly-in facilities” or something like that.   Provides, I don’t think, is 
the right word.   

 
Again, I question the residential subdivision.  (Definition)  require an application for a 
private air strip.    
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
 There will probably only a handful of people who could afford to have a subdivision 
with an airstrip.  
 

Commissioner Lasley: 
But, if it is a residential subdivision airstrip, air traffic is going to be heavier and, again, 
it needs to be presented to the public so that they can have input.  

 
 
Commissioner Bouie:  

I accept that.   
 
Commissioner Nunamaker: 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 43 of 47 
 

Let’s get it in the right category.  
 

Commissioner Bouie:  
Then with restrictions, you can outline them in another area.  Then you can state that it 
needs to come before a hearing or whatever.   

 
Chair Davis:  

That completes that particular section.  We will adjourn.   
 
Attorney Weiss:   

I think we might want to have a couple of minutes for public questions? 
 
Chair Davis:  

I do apologize.   Do we have public input on this thus far? 
 

Sara Johnson, 1666 Talquin Ave.  Quincy, FL:  
Where do you see the RV parks that are in existence already such as Ingram’s Marina, 
Talquin Lodge, and Whip-O-Will – under recreation or under Nature Center?  By 
reading it, I am unclear.  There is so much of the same in both of them.  So, my 
question is where do we fit in?  
 

Chair Davis: 
I will defer to staff.  
 
Do you mean currently?  

 
Sara Johnson:  

Well Yes, or where are you going to place us?   
 
Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  

You will stay where you are.   
 
Sara Johnson:  

Good.  
 

Jill Jeglie:  
But, I would see Nature Tourism as being the best fit rather than Recreation.  It will 
depend on the criteria we go with.   

 
Ms. Gutcher:  

You are allowed in Recreation.  
 

Sara Johnson:  
I was reading all the commercial things – the house, the boat rental and all of that, 
which we already have over in Nature zoning.  We are just a blend.  That will work.   

 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 44 of 47 
 

Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  
If there is a zoning district that you think better fits you, then you can request a zoning 
change.  That is a review process. You kind of got what you got, but, if there is anything 
you want to change, you can.  
 

Chair Davis:  
Is there anyone else? 

 
Growth Management Director Suzanne Lex:  

I just want to report that I did write a letter and reached out to all the commissioners 
to let them know that there are vacancies and requested appointments to the Planning 
Commission Board.   Thank you.  

 
Chair Davis: 

Any other comments from the attorney or staff?  
 
O.K.  Then we are adjourned.  
 
Again, please share Chapter 7 and also I encourage the commissioners to contact the 
staff so that we can ask our questions as it relates to  this chapter and any others.   
 
 

  
             

             

       Regina Davis, Acting Chair           Date Approved  

ATTEST: 

 

            

Nicholas Thomas, Clerk  

 

 

 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 45 of 47 
 

 

Zoning District Sub-
section 

Page Questions/Concerns/ Suggested 
Changes 

 

Conclusion 

Mixed Use (MU) 4100 4-1 Break this out into both subcategories 
“Nature Based Mixed Use” and 
“Urban Mixed Use”   
 

Revisit this later  

Zoning Districts 4100 4-1 Paragraph following the list of zoning 
districts – second line:  correct the 
spelling of Statutes & manufactured  
 

Corrections noted  

Zoning Districts  4100 4-1 Capitalize Federal in the first bullet 
following the first paragraph  
 

Correction noted  

Historical Zone   4100 B 
Allowable 
Uses  
 

4-2 Broaden part B to add “As historically 
established.”   

Correction noted  

Conservation  4102  4-2 First bullet at the bottom of the page, 
remove the hyphen between 
federally owned lands.   
 

Correction noted 

Conservation   4102 B 
Allowable 
Uses  

4-3 Add language to restrict use of 
motorized vehicles on conservation 
lands.  Restrict conservation lands to 
only passive recreation as a 
restriction in Part D rather than 
change Part B.  
 

Add restrictions in Part D 
regarding motorized 
vehicles.  

Silviculture  4103  4-4 Add the word “be” to the end of the 
last sentence of the first paragraph. 
 

Correction noted  

Silviculture  4103 4-4 In The first sentence of the first bullet, 
add “that” following the first word 
(Lands.) 
 
 
 

Correction noted  

Silviculture 4103 A 4-4  Second line:  add the word “of” after 
typically consist  
 

Correction noted  

Recreation 4104 D 4 4-6 Recreation facilities that have ball 
fields, swimming pools and walking 
trails, etc.   
 
 
 

Consensus to add language 
that will require developers 
of sports facilities and /or 
ball fields  that require 
outdoor lighting to have  a 
lighting study done and the 
study must be approved by 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 46 of 47 
 

Zoning District Sub-
section 

Page Questions/Concerns/ Suggested 
Changes 

 

Conclusion 

the planning commission 
and the county commission 
in a public hearing.   

Recreation 4104  D4 4-6   
Discussion regarding the wording, 
“abutting residential zoning districts.”   
 

 
There was a consensus to 
leave the wording as 
written with Commissioner 
Lasley objecting  
 

Recreation 4104  D4 4-6 Hours of operation of the recreation 
parks  
 
 

Extensive discussion, but no 
consensus was reached to 
change them.  
 

Recreation 4104  D4 4-6 Is the Recreation Use the correct 
zoning in which to place the described 
facilities?  
 

Yes 

Recreation  4104 D4 4-6 Review on case by case basis  
 
 

No consensus was reached 

Public/Institutional 4105 4-6 Is the zoning district acceptable  Lengthy discussion: 
Consensus – yes  
 

Public/Institutional 4105  D; 1.  4-6 Correct the spelling of incarceration  Correction was noted 
 

Public/Institutional 4105 B  
Allowable 
Uses 

4-7 The last 2 bullets of Allowable Uses 

 Any facility related to the 
provision of utilities including 
potable water, sanitary 
sewer, gas or electrical 
power 

 Landfills, subject to state 
permitting process 

 

Add utilities and landfills to 
No. 1 and No. 2 to require 
public hearings and 
compatibility analysis.  
 

Agriculture Zones  4106 A  4-8 The  term “low-density” does not 
appear in the list of definitions in the 
code  

Add a definition to the list 
of definitions elsewhere in 
the Code  
 

Agriculture Zones  4106 A  4-8 The second paragraph of A. does not 
appear to be a correct statement.  
Any property that is adjacent to a city 
limit would be considered rural.  
 

Delete the entire second 
paragraph  

Agriculture Zones  4106 B  3 4-8 Duplication of 
Agritourism/agritourism  

Change the spelling of one 
of the words to be 
Agrotourism 
 



Gadsden County Planning Commission  
March 14, 2019 Workshop 
 
 

Page 47 of 47 
 

Zoning District Sub-
section 

Page Questions/Concerns/ Suggested 
Changes 

 

Conclusion 

 

Agriculture Zones  4106 B 4 4-8 Is this the correct zone to place air 
strips and airplane hangars?  

After a lengthy discussion, 
there was not a consensus 
to change it to another 
zone.   
 

Agriculture Zones  4106 B 5 4-8 Is Agriculture the appropriate place to 
list Bed and Breakfast lodging as an 
agrotourism use  
 

There was a consensus that 
the Agriculture Zone is 
appropriate  
 

Agriculture Zones 4105 D 1 4-9 There was a question as to why Ag1 
would be exempted from the 
Immediate Family Exemption  (if it 
had adequate acreage) when Ag 2 
and Ag3 were not.   

Ms. Gutcher stated that she 
could not remember why 
she wrote the language in 
the manner that she did, 
but she would come back to 
them with the answer.  
 

Agriculture Zones 4105 D 2 4-9 D2; third line; the word agriculture 
should be capitalized.  

Correction was noted.  
 
 

Agriculture Zones 4105 D 3 4-9 The term  “residential subdivision” 
needs to be defined a bit better. 
Grammar wise,  the phrase, “this 
zoning district” should  say, “these 
zoning districts” because it refers to 
more than one.  
 
Also, the term “provides for fly-in 
facilities.”  It was suggested that 
“provides” is not  the right word to 
use.  “fulfill the criteria for fly-in 
facilities” was suggested as a 
substitute.  
   

Correction and suggested 
language was noted.  

Ms. Gutcher  and staff were requested to provide each of the commissioners a copy of Chapter 7 (where the 
restrictions are to be placed on zoning districts) so that comparisons could be made between it and Chapter 4 
where the zoning districts are described.   
 
In addition, Chair Davis requested that the commissioners consult the staff before the meeting time to address 
their questions so that the meeting could be more productive.  
 

     

     

 



AGENDA ITEM #6 

  Gadsden County Planning Commission 
Agenda Request 

Date of Meeting: August 22, 2019 

To: Honorable Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission 

From: Jill Jeglie, AICP, Senior Planner 

Subject:  Public Hearing (Quasi-Judicial) – Midway Business Park Final Plat (FP 
2019-01) 

 
Statement of Issue: 
Consideration of an application for final plat approval for the Midway Business Park Subdivision 
described by Tax Parcel Identifications #4-16-1N-2W-0000-00140-0000 (Anderson Columbia, 
168.23 acres), 4-16-1N-2W-0000-00140-0100 (City of Tallahassee (Utility), 0.31 acres), 4-15-
1N-2W-0000-00233-0000 (Anderson Columbia, 14.49 acres) and #4-15-1N-2W-0000-00233-
0200 (Smyrna Concrete Ready Mix, 6.78 acres) (Attachment #1 & 2).    

Background: 

This subdivision is comprised of four (4) parcels owned primarily by Anderson Columbia, 
(168.23 and 14.49 acres), Smyrna Ready Mix Concrete (6.78 acres) and City of Tallahassee 
(0.31 acres) (utilities, gas). Anderson Columbia Co., Inc., represented by Carlton Fields, Moore 
Bass Consulting, Inc., and Melvin Engineering has submitted an application for a final plat of the 
thirty-three (3) lot subdivision (Attachments #1 & 2). The BOCC has approved conceptual and 
preliminary plats and the infrastructure was constructed (2009).  The final plat is required by 
Florida Statutes to be recorded in the records of the Gadsden County Clerk of Court (Attachment 
#5).  

Analysis & Findings: 

Section 6200, ‘Major Subdivision Plat Requirements and Procedures’ of the Land Development 
Code (LDC) outlines the three step process and requirements for a major (platted) subdivision: 
Conceptual, Preliminary and Final Plat. The Conceptual and Preliminary Plat have been 
approved by the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC).  All infrastructure has been 
constructed to plan specifications as certified by Melvin Engineering (Attachment #2 & 3).  

The applicant has filed for Final Plat in accordance with Subsection 6204 of the Land 
Development Code (LDC) and Chapter 177, Part 1 Platting (ss. 177.011-177.151) of Florida 
Statutes. 

 

 

 



  #6 

2 
 

Jurisdiction: 

A portion of the roadway at the southeastern corner of the plat is located within the municipal 
boundaries of Midway.  Midway has executed an agreement to allow this plat to be heard by 
Gadsden County (Attachment #4). 

Final Plat Requirements (Subsection 5207 & §177 Part 1 Platting, Florida Statutes (F.S.)): 

The purpose of §177 Part 1 Platting, Florida Statutes (F.S) is to establish consistent minimum 
requirements, and creates additional powers in local governing bodies, to regulate and control 
platting of lands.  It also includes minimum requirements for platting and does not exclude 
additional provisions or regulations by local ordinance, laws, or regulations (Attachment #5).  

Pursuant to §177 F.S.: 

“The recording of any plats made in compliance with the provisions of this part shall 
serve to establish the identity of all lands shown on and being a part of such plats, and 
land may thenceforth be conveyed by reference to such plat.”   

§177.091 F.S. outlines the requirements for plats made for recording. As required, the plat 
offered for recording has been prepared and signed and sealed by a professional surveyor 
(§177.061 F.S.).  Prior to approval by the county, the plat must be reviewed by the County 
surveyor and evidence of review must be placed on the plat.  Before a plat is offered for 
recording it must be approved by the appropriate governing body and evidence of such approval 
must be placed on the plat. Plats to be recorded must also contain an executed dedication by the 
owner or owners of record (§177.081 F.S.).  Due to the expiration of the original preliminary plat 
and the delay between the time the infrastructure was completed (2009) and the this final plat, 
the Midway Property Owners Association must execute and record a ‘Release, Waiver and 
Indemnity Agreement’ with Gadsden County prior to recording the final plat (Attachment #3). 
 
After the approval, the plat shall be recorded by the circuit court clerk upon submission. The 
circuit court clerk shall maintain a book of the unfolded plat(s). A print or photographic copy 
must be filed in a similar book and kept in the clerk’s office for use of the public §177.111 F.S. 

Public Notice Requirements (Subsection 1304, LDC): 

A public hearing notice was mailed to property owners within 1000’, an advertisement was 
placed in the three (3) local papers, and a sign was posted on the site (Sub. 1304).  

Procedures (Subsection 7202): 

This is a quasi–judicial action in conjunction with the advertised public hearing per Subsections 
1303 through 1305 of the LDC. The Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the 
Board of County Commissioners based on findings of fact that are available to all parties 
involved and shall specifically state the reasons for denial of an application or request.  The 



  #6 

3 
 

development order for the site plan may be denied when the proposed development does not 
comply with all applicable standards of the LDC.  

Planning Division Findings Summary: 

The Planning Division finds that with conditions, the four (4) sheet final plat set is consistent 
with the preliminary plat and meets the requirements for a final plat per Subsections 6204 and 
6205 of the Land Development Code (LDC). 

Options:  
 
1. Recommend that the BOCC approve for signature the Midway Business Park Subdivision 

Final Plat (SD-2019-01) prepared by Moore Bass Consulting, Inc. with the following 
conditions: 

a. On the Plat, Name of Subdivision at top of sheet 1 – add “and lying in part within the city 
limits of Midway, Florida” 

b. On the Plat, Certificate of Approval by PC – change to the form required under 
Subsection 6204(G) of the LDC and change “Preliminary” to “Final” 

c. On the Plat, Certificate of Approval by BOCC – change to the form required under 
Subsection 6204(G) of the LDC.  The statement that approval of the plat does not 
constitute or effect an acceptance of the dedication of any area should be added.  Since 
the County is not accepting anything, the language should be modified to state that the 
County will not accept the dedication of any area. 

d. On the Plat, all of the property owners within the plat boundary need to execute the plat 
dedication, and any mortgagees need to execute either the plat dedication or a separate 
joinder. The title opinion letter from First American dated June 20, 2019, the attached 
representation authorizations indicate that Midway Park, Inc., City of Tallahassee, and 
Smyrna Ready Mix Concrete, LLC all owned property within the plat boundary at the 
time of authorization and therefore would all need to execute the plat with Anderson 
Columbia if that is still the case.   

e. On the Plat, General Note 6 – change “Leon” to “Gadsden” 
f. On the Plat, include the required certification by a licensed engineer that all 

improvements have been installed in accordance with the provisions of the preliminary 
plat approval per 6204(F)(4). 

g. Record and provide copies of the executed ‘Release, Waiver and Indemnity Agreement’ 
by Midway Business Park Owners, Inc. for the benefit of Gadsden County.    

2. Recommend that the BOCC deny the Midway Business Park Subdivision Final Plat (SD-
2019-01) prepared by Moore Bass Consulting, Inc. and provided findings.   

3. Discretion of the Planning Commission. 

Recommendation:  

 Option #1. 



  #6 

4 
 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 
2. Final Plat &  Application w/ Support Documents* 
3. ‘Release, Waiver and Indemnity Agreement’ 
4. Midway Business Park Platting Agreement  
5. §177 Part I Platting Florida Statutes 

 
 

*Due to their length, the ‘Title Opinion’ prepared by First American Title Insurance Company 
(File #2061-3819652) and the ‘Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Easements and 
Restrictions’ for Midway Business Park are available for review with the subdivision 
application file at the Planning Division.  



 
 
 

  #1 
 

 
 
 

Midway Business Park Final Plat 
FP 2019-01 

           LOCATION MAP 

 
South side of Brickyard Road, west of Blue Star Highway and south of Interstate 10. 

 
 

 
 
Tax Parcel Identification #’s -  4-16-1N-2W-0000-00140-0000,  
 4-16-1N-2W-0000-00140-0100,  
 4-15-1N-2W-0000-00233-0000 &  
 4-15-1N-2W-0000-00233-0200 
 



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



116194565.1 

MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
4-15-1N-2W-0000-00233-0000 
 
4-16-1N-2w-0000-00140-0000 
 
4-16-1N-2W-0000-00140-0100 
 
4-15-1N-2W-0000-00233-0200 
 
4-15-1N-2W-0000-00300-0000 
 
 
 
 
 



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#2



RELEASE, WAIVER AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

This Release, Waiver and Indemnity Agreement is made as of
2019, by MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida
corporation not for profit (the "Association") for the benefit of GADSDEN COUNTY,
FLORIDA (the "County").

Recitals

(A) The Association is the entity maintaining and responsible for maintaining the
Infrastructure, as defined below, and certain common facilities and in charge of various other
aspects of Midway Business Park pursuant to that certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions,
Easements, and Restrictions for Midway Business ,Park made by Anderson -Columbia Co., Inc.
dated , 2019 and recorded , 2019 in Official Records Book

, page , of the public records of Gadsden County, Florida (the "Declaration").

(B) The Anderson -Columbia Co., Inc. (the "Developer") constructed or had
constructed the roads, water, sewer, stormwater management and other facilities located in the
Midway Business Park property subject to the Declaration (collectively, the "Infrastructure")
many years ago under previous approvals from the County that have now expired. However, the
Developer never submitted and the County never approved the final plat and the County never
accepted the Infrastructure.

(C) Melvin Engineering has certified that the Infrastructure located in the Midway
Business Park property subject to the Declaration have been constructed to meet the
requirements of the Gadsden County Land Development Code that was in effect at the time of its
construction. Melvin Engineering's certification is attached as EXHIBIT 1.

(D) The County has approved, but not accepted, the Infrastructure based upon the
certification by Melvin Engineering that the Infrastructure as constructed meets the County's
Code that was in effect when the Infrastructure was constructed on the condition that the
Association, its successors and assigns, maintains and is responsible for the maintenance of the
Infrastructure and other common facilities and provides this release, waiver and indemnity in
favor of the County.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Association agrees as follows:

1. The recitals set forth above are accurate and hereby incorporated into the substantive
body of this Agreement.

2. The Association, its successors and assigns, shall maintain and be responsible for the
maintenance of the Infrastructure and other common facilities located in the Midway Business
Park property which is the subject of the Declaration.

-1-
116385961.v1

jillj
Typewritten Text
#3



3. The Association, its successors and assigns, on behalf of itself and the Owners, as
defined in the Declaration, hereby releases, waives and discharges any and all claims and causes
of action they have or may have in the future against the County resulting from or relating to the
Infrastructure and other common facilities located in the Midway Business Park property which
is the subject of the Declaration or the County's approval of the Infrastructure, which is based
upon the certification by Melvin Engineering.

4. The Association, its successors and assigns, on behalf of itself and the Owners, as
defined in the Declaration, hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County from and
against any all actions, causes of action, claims, loss, costs, damages, attorneys' fees, expenses
and liability of every kind and nature arising out of or otherwise relating to the Infrastructure and
other common facilities located in the Midway Business Park property which is the subject of the
Declaration or the County's approval of the Infrastructure, including without limitation, any
litigation related to the Infrastructure and any loss, costs, damages, attorneys' fees or expenses
incurred in actions brought to enforce this Agreement.

5. The Association, its successors and assigns, on behalf of itself and the Owners, as
defined in the Declaration, shall provide for the defense, at Association's expense, on behalf and
for the protection of the County in all litigation or proceedings arising out of or otherwise
relating to the Infrastructure and other common facilities located in the Midway Business Park
property which is the subject of the Declaration or the County's approval of the Infrastructure.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date first

above written.

MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK OWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida corporation not for profit

&nits President

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Nancy G. an, Attorney for Midway Business Park Owners Association, Inc.

1r //)

David J. Weiss, Gadsden County Attorney

-2-
116385961.v1

jillj
Typewritten Text
#3



Exhibit 1

jillj
Typewritten Text
#3



DAVID IL MELVIN, INC.
I

Consulting Engineers

April 10, 2018

Attn: Ms. Jill Jeglie, Planner
Gadsden County Board of County Commissioners
9-B East Jefferson Street
Quincy, FL 32353

RE: Anderson Columbia - Gadsden Station Midway Business Park Subdivision

Dear Ms. Jeglie;

On April 4, 2018, Melvin Engineering staff inspected the Midway Business Park. The roads within the park
were constructed in 2003. The roads and drainage systems all appear in good condition. Some traffic
markings and signage are not present.

We hereby certify the subdivision roads and drainage system have been constructed in substantial
accordance with the construction plans and specifications as prepared by our firm.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or if additional information is needed, 850-718-
4201 or davidmelvin@melvineng.com.

s:0311111,,
,.,\,c1oliiiiap-4",0
whf1 NO.

*
David H. Melvin, P.E. #38734 7' *

1, SVATE OFPresident
yPF '.4-0.1te/Cs.-

fetis$%

Ifnili111

Reply To: RI 4428 Lafayette Street P. 0. Box 840  Marianna, Florida 32447  (850) 482-3045
CI 2541-1 Barrington Circle  Tallahassee, Florida 32308  (850) 671-7221

www.melvineng.com  info@melvineng.com

jillj
Typewritten Text
#4



GADSDEN COUNTY NICHOLAS THOMAS Recording Fee: $61.00
Instrument: 190006621 Recorded: 08!08/2019 4:51 PM

OFFICIAL RECORDS: 1 of 7
Book: 865 Page: 1681

MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK PLATTING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN GADSDEN COUNTY AND THE CITY OF MIDWAY

This Midway Business Park Platting Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into on the last

date it is executed by and between Gadsden County, a political subdivision of tl~e State of

Florida ("Gadsden") and the City of Midway, a municipal corporation under Florida Statutes,

("Midway') in order to comply with a statutory requirement for platting land in two adjacent

local governments; and

WHEREAS, in 1987 the Gadsden Station Development of Regional Impact (DRI),

which includes Midway Business Park ("the Park") consisting of 213 acres of Industrial land use

on the south side of Highway 90 and south of Brickyard Road, was adopted by Gadsden. The

amended Park Master Plan was included within the DRI as Map H2 in the Gadsden DRI

Development Order adopted in September, 2001, and is incorporated herein as Composite

Exhibit 1. Anderson Columbia is the current owner/developer of the Park; and

WHERCAS, while Composite Exhibit 1 depicts only the Aark in Gadsden, language in

tl~e amendment to the DRI required the extension of the loop road shown in Exhibit 2 to be

constructed by Anderson Columbia on 1.43 acres within Midway at the same time as

construction of the Gadsden roadway. The roadway has been constructed and in place for years;

and

WHEREAS, Anderson Columbia has now received Gadsden's Conceptual approval of a

plat of its property and has been advised by Gadsden that the 1.43 acres within Midway must be

platted because it completes the roadway loop and assures both local governments that it will be

p►•ivately maintained. Gadsden has also determined that the entire roadway should remain a

private roadway and not be dedicated to the County, and

~ ~~,~~~~~s>> ~ ~~ ~,~T{FIF~ ATRU~ COPY
tin ̀  ' ~.S ~ iICH~~LP.S THE!: AS,CLERK t~ CIRC.UIT CURT



OFFICIAL RECORDS: 2 of 7
Book: 865 Page: 1682

WHEREAS, since the platting process has commenced in Gadsden and is currently on

hold pending the platting of the roadway, it would be faster and more efficient for Anderson

Columbia to plat al] of the property in Gadsden and the owners of the 1.43 acres in Midway are

aware of this procedure and, by separate documentation, must file consents to inclusion of their

properties within the Gadsden plat and receive corrected easeme~~ts over the roadway currently

built within the Park so that they can legally access their prope►-ties which include many more

acres located in Midway; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17"1.071, Florida Statutes. Gadsden may only consider

Anderson Columbia's application for plat approval including I.43 acres within the jurisdiction of

Midway if both governing bodies agree that a plat by Gadsden is mutually acceptable to both

Midway and Gadsden; and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to take such action so platted lots will be available

for sale and development in this area to foster economic development and to provide jobs to

citizens of both local governments.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants,

promises, obligations, and benefits set forth herein, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

Gadsden and Midway hereby agree as follows:

1. Midway agrees that the 1.43 acres shown in Exhibit 2 within Midway may be

included in both a Gadsden Preliminary and Final Plat. Further, Midway agrees to legally

recognize the Gadsden plat, once final, over the 1.43 acres within its jurisdiction.

2. Gadsden agrees, upon the approval and execution of this Agreement by both

parties, and written consents of the three owners of the 1.43 acres of property in Midway, to

consider Anderson Columbia's completed applications for plat approval, including Anderson

2
i io~aisz~ i



OFFICIAL RECORDS: 3 of 7
Book: 865 Page: 1683

Columbia's property in Gadsden and the 1.43 acres of property in Midway. Nothing herein shall

obligate Gadsden to approve Anderson Columbia's plat applications and Gadsden shall only

consider app~•oval upon receipt of completed applications submitted with all required information

and documentation pursuant to and in accordance with the Gadsden County Comprehensive Plan

and Land Development Code.

3. This Agreement leas been adopted by both Midway and Gadsden County on

publically advertised governing body agendas and, following full execution, shall be recorded in

Official Records of each local government.

4. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Section 177.071, Florida Statutes, for

the sole purpose of authorizing Gadsden to consider the plat application of Anderson Columbia

which includes the 1.43 acres of private prope►•ty that is a portion of the loop road and is located

within the jurisdiction of Midway. Nothing herein shall alter the rights, responsibilities, duties,

or obligations of the parties with respect to the property located within their respective

jurisdictions. By entering into this Agreement, neither Gadsden nor Midway is accepting any

interest in or maintenance responsibility fo►• any portion of the loop road, which will be privately

owned and maintained. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of Gadsden and Midway, and

no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, or for the benefit of any third

party. Nothing in this Agreement, either express or implied, is intended or shall be construed to

confer upon or give any person or entity, other than the parties he~•eto, any right, remedy, or

claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions hereof.

WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, through their duly authorized

representatives, have executed this Platting Agree►nent as of the last date set forth below.

3
i io~oiszs i



OFFICIAL RECORDS: 4 of 7
Book: 865 Page: 1684

Attest CITY COMMISSION OF MIDWAY

By its P

•ances Harrell
City Clerk

Date:

Attest GADSDEN COUNTY BO 12D OF COUNTY
,~$~~o~~ ~oti~ COMMISSIONERS ~

G~~A .~ *, ,

~y, ,~ . By its Chair:

'' , ~~' ctncv'~'~ 
c.1

t~(~~~e Q1'Q Date: ~(~v ~~~f ~
Nicholas Thomas e~!~~ T
County Clerk ~ v

4



_ ~ ~w
W

'~'~"t

~q9

#~

g

ORDS: 5 of 7
~: 1685

~ OFFICIAL REC
Book: 865 PagE

W.~w W
~~ry ~ 1}

•t. 
~' lil . 

~~(

r ° ~ iii
4

1Y~;
~~a fK., Mw.~ W

~ N

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 1



OFFICIAL RECORDS: 6 of 7
Book: 865 Page: 1686

~ (: .,l,

i •~ ,w.~,. .~ ```~~ ~'; ~: u 1 goo'

d ~ 1„~'.~,̀}~ SfAI F

~ .
is \

~~ l~1`_

i C ~ ,~ .~ ...w, 
i

1 ~ .w 
,/i

~ "\ •~ '~

~ ~ w . .

Ik ~'~bp wrrum ix~i
f Ii~t~uCu~r t•Ni. 1~ t+ ♦~~~,Iv~T

_ ~ _... RAv.M1W.' ̀;DUI INIA4 ~ ~~AM.,iIAMMMFF~,y,~:
PMLNIMp SItlI:1Vp~N I .. A' Mf ~MIILLI R lU1Jll1~ wU~X p MICr.YUYI WYU w G/01kV t:pW'~ IuMCN
C~'i`~~Mt~ i:,r ~yvu ;r~; ~,( ̂  r(~[ i~~~) ~~/ ~ / 1~~)R,~ Af t1 ,` M'MKYMA C%MMteo M 4i a41S~ +RSn o~Ax aA 'N h MiK

k ..•...• .. I~'91ufJ kAY:YLN1 ~ 1.~L f'1~77..ILV ~~~.IV~~.1\~I 1~'7 ~11V I, A~ ~.JH IV 11WDW!1MN4M IONNIM:M.9 CM 91i fb~N1 g41A101~]1l K.A6 YI1.
~~ A 51~ I YtiUMIY N01'lM~ 

YMY N4M ~~~0' MWM1Dl,IIOM S'~W4 
(IM

i W~a~.T~;x r.. ~d«,~ .•,•. - ~.~ w4 ttfAV u4
'~ \i~ 1AM' IPC~'h4 p~~Y (~ R~M11`.NC

~ ~':. '. .. Y "f . w: 
I ' .. .IUI.~' 

1
... ` M~ x-r:.~, nu~rc~: A:dl:k°(t'~,F:IYEt~...N9.fl{iATLI'~

y ~ au... ,. w,, ~~ .~.w~x..,aeinEs w,... wnF •n~.nWs r~ i~+ h~n~ rxu wu n~ a wxno.nn :o uM
y .. Iti'~~~• ~N'+~"ihui (N\: ~~tM,'V' 1ki:., 

C~h14u W<A:F ~A' INffA MM' 4N fW NtlAM Aq. Ui NMrryM) AMU i

:: i11 A, .~.:: •' RA'A ~i:i^~. Wo:. -r`.II'nl .~. r til!.11 NMx ~.N.dt,. i u ~w d'ail"„ pYM. GNtI'• M~[~ +vfC WI': :ry. ~:7,•

•µ"~ •i J. 4'~~:~:N'Nf:41 Nlf, 
fll W CJkx{'(,Q 1.~ "1 14 ~'~1 Ali"~1~ `,.lF:ti' WMkU I~i'1~y. ~t Y[

~ ~
C.:~Sl"i\ i:l ~1NIN ~1: ~'kl.✓ ~d~a 

Y~Y.y .g:V 0' Y"1'~'yK. N: 1(i MYr 1:} MrMWI NI

3
•0 a wr W~ . y'•~- .. ..~ ... .. .. ..
' I ~ ~ k I. I r~Ht 

U~VID Il MF'(.VIlV,,,~,,,,,~,~Mt' ~ ~ 1-'~~~u~s11 E3J>I1~Cya ~' ~ ,wW ~ cM
.̀ . . I .. ,. ̀,. .. 

.i+W;fw:,r,..,., r:b^ 
~I I' ~rt r !t~ ~ ! 7J  as• o~ 

Yf;~ - ._ ..~. . . . ., ... i.
uA j~tti 

w~'«, ..,....,.,, I ~y
n f I r~. .`n. t:n ^.

i ~ ~ Ii~Ff'.F%y ••. K*'•.•,". yMuxNe Na,111 AWO IAllANl4itE 71Y 71~ ~ nY~ ~ ~ ~G.~H"



OFFICIAL RECORDS: 7 of 7
Book: 865 Page: 1687

"̀ ` _`'~` 18 
15 ..

i ~~~-..'-~; ...'...Y..~ ^~...~̀~y~N.`.._. _M•••^Vcu.c~ w~ nm ancna v ua.ew~ iTarcH TWO MtGClS OF LAND YWG BfNG SITUATED u HfP v 4A i~~_~~.,~~~-' 
ro... ~....,ww~.tr a~v~orw •w.~

BRICKYA 't'•-- ~1̂ ~ 
wn~o r ~n,~a, rw... ~ar,nas

.̀...., RD ~ "~~.,.--_.. ̂̀ ^-.. ~MO.~e~~ia.rn~~A"*a'°r01'

SOU~X H/yi OF SECTION IS,''1'N, R~2•W.
GPDSOEN COUNTY. CLOR1~~1w. ROAD

1M1 N • IIM11°P~''~POB~~ t~,_ '~'-~. +k %v~ir.rw r~iw~"sI KKK rws :o~~r i~ii~a•
` M 

~+.,.
90UNDpRY SURVEY

~~1 NN1 
IM,~X.N,»~

~~~
`l~:91?di•h. ~ a~w.~w~e.. mrra~ .. °+x raF,̀..,~.

~ ~' '9' ~`

a~v~o ro~

' ~ ~ "
~ {"~°""'=~ 

CUYTE P. McCORD, 111
='~~'"~ ~ ~~.,x+rc`~--,~'C`iSi81~'r'! ~ "-w.nnw :;an:~~,r'^~,' ~ ̂ ~, o

MIDWAY HU91N655 CENTER, LLC

M t ~ ""••"'O""' "~~ ~~ _•ti„ .

MIDWAY AARK.INC.
JAMBS A. STILES, Itl

'1.~ 

`

~ < ~~~ii~~3t<a • nu~.oi~.r~ir

~J11f9t;ri!.66~C^4 ry.. x

~ ~~1~1i ~..) ~ i~w ~. u3u I~1(I' ~~ ~^t,j. ~,..~ y':w H~:i<i•. ~~
~ x.,.. w.., ~ '

:ỳw aa~•n~ Ihj
~ x~~rs~

. ..orw.. . •11 ~. . ..

1 1. __ 
p.~.nn • ~vw~

~ ~~<xa0 •~~Y'~S,Yti°:i.~r~~

~

`~'liy~

~i
\ ~11 i<~iP~nM Y,~

~i

e 
~~..a~I 'µ~N; ..

'Ai'li~ili' ~ ~.~ ~.eu•a~~a ' tyl''~ ~n l ,q~.~'qr.,̀

\:~~

~~`b
V~M1+11+MWN~K 1~}~

~~~:s •:A t ~~C~F: i7A;
~ ~ r

M~ win wa .7~ ~ n i~wa m
~~ ~ ~nru w. Aiiaia in „~•.~,t ~•.e

~ ~~;~ ~ i 4

~ ~~\ u. k: t.Mw 6vuM\ 1~~" u:N11gSiS~~ 5~;,~1
~ fS'n'Qi~'T'~~.\~̀ 1~Ri`N.~ •'CrSi3" ai'~i0eui. ii~~eii { i`~'1~ih,S~°`~'~ 

.SP7o".6 i3'4U;~ 6 `4
~ • .1 j~.. ~.~ ~ ce~~i ~ ' '~POB ~ ri nn : nii ~i•w~ ~• ~ 1

~..

.. Douglas N. Nunamaker, m,~„ '
P ehaba./brrypr r~e,f M ~Prr

h. I' , Id 
ant~.Iixf~I~l~ihprwl~~FilNJ

~.s~a~ti~~~r.r.yeram ~

LEGEND

~~

~•~ str ve ao~ eM ~ eN ~.om
d IpW IIW OM.IMfff NOl{0
-0~ IOv9 ~• Cp~Nltt u(vy;xi

a
W: f4elMY Ylvq{t
ml Sul D{[OS q ROIK ~[CO~D

i'~4 au oPOvcana wutK:
AM MG1 p MA!

~0 0.~....pfgN NMS OOpI~ .o...
o... a nc n+~4 ~tcM W

Wmaa+.caua~..~w~.~.B~qJ'

r". ioo- ~~`

voc vowr a cowcxca[Nr
roe vo«r a' uanxw

w•Vt Y YO~~Y ~M~. K.xrc,.,.., .orc~ str enw.c axc[o ra uak ntaviws

nao.iwao ~..wa~ pp - ~ n~. ~ ~o~m~ • uN~~ ,

'"~.' '"wµ1b;; 'fd"~i'+ , ~,; ~.. ,;..,~~ c~.+d•~.~ww-~ .~w~wnwao ~'- .1isv
NK ~wu ~ „~

4N 1 N~IIH 1111~1q ~ ~~, ~ ~ [AILMiNT ~ ~~'iti,~S~'t .~ •~•'N, 
~~+1it~gi~'~ ~ R ~~ •~ ~, ~~ tl ~.. ~~'7

~~t~ nn~,u~a~~u>r "Y'1~i16i ~i, .~~ uu Km
~~+t ~ w il•hN•i \111

i~t ~ r w•aa• [ w.u~

i ~
.t~ ~mwrl wl~ i y~
,x~ .~~u»~~am
w. .n•na•~aa y~~l
\K1 •f~'N}I•l illf
W• •q~~E4~'i Nl/' Y
~i.{ O w t'~/'il' i 4i~11' { ~I
lI(~ •.Ftl'J~•I N1H•' ~~
~Mb x~1•~Tn.t 11f
INY xN~M'11'(NIi!'

i Ns w n ~PU1r~ a~ne~
Nf 0 M II~N11' [ lxp~
K r • v ~~+r ~ ~xn•
1~R A x N•~~9~ i 111.0•

~(e \eN~M`I wnu
lKW ilp'hP{~1.N'
lK N t ~T~1t1•I KMl•
1M rl t N~4'1~ t ~Mn•
i.tu ~romrcwir p0C

~,
u~ .~i ~~~ t~ ~ ~K r~

w~~:i 51~~ii 1 `~'.•'~M RAIiMSNT i-. •. ..K w „d--..
ea-e ~~~~i:- war ~.av~: .~,~~ra•s+

~ _ ...._.. ......~ ~K p. X•~ i

\`~~
~ ~

1 r.. ~\~

IM t~ ~ /a NN i 1111 ..{q
i lM I~ M q'7Yn'i Mt4 1MMF/ I~~ i

K 71 M ~PfYM• i INY ;~xM f i~  ~µ~~ {1Cr p.

IK :1 f 11~IIII'r ~I.11' ~ip~p{F 4ph11. ~f1 ip1~
11.

" 2t 2?

1....--.,~.....,.. .tee-.- ..,. ........._:.,_.~._.

. wyrov ~ w. u is

PARCEL 1
w(~ R~MN iw~wl l+f

X1.11 KII~ ~r( 1~
I~M

w~i.r~il~M M~~ 
LAS ~ ~Y

1N 1\/

1N ~'~.y.'' !

~•b. b,~~,w N -•M~wR ~Me NE 1/A SE 1/A
~ ~ w.. 

ww ~i~w
V~~

~ ~'~ ~:

•- " 1,~ }~~
ins 

~iK'

•e

_.'

1 ~~

t ~!.

~xx w+ a ,Mtnr.! '.

KK%e0fw~y~Miw~IM~~1~
.~i.• ~ ~
r•

p ~ PARC6L ~ ~,

`¢ yp 111 ~p(~ i1~•:~

^ ` M W~il ti~ Nq, 4

r
Sw 1/a SE 1/4

SE I/4 6E 1/4

SAT ~~ 
~~ \

r~ ra!~li2i~~ .a.A
1 A~~ ~ 1

c7K TP~xIW~1ATlaN q~ItAOAP -~...w

SHEC' ND- fIE1.0 BOOK
ww+ue ....~~':.ww3,T:h7— ~':~~ry, ~ ~a ~ K I i5

PRpJECT NU.

1524

Exhibit 2



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5



jillj
Typewritten Text
#5




































































































































































































































































































































































	PC_AGENDA_08_22_19
	Item 4 PC Minutes Binder
	20190117PCMIN
	20190214PC_unbound
	20190314Planningworkshop

	Item 6
	# 6 PC AGND RPRT Midway Bsnss Park Final Plat
	Gadsden County Planning Commission Agenda Request
	Date of Meeting: August 22, 2019

	#1 LOCATION MAP
	2 Attacments Less Plat
	2 Attacments Less Plat
	#2a  ATTACHMENTS BINDER LESS PLAT
	2 App Ltr 071219
	2a Final Plat Application to be replaced


	PARCEL ID NUMBERS_(116194565_1)
	2 Attacments Less Plat
	#2a  ATTACHMENTS BINDER LESS PLAT
	2b Auths to represent

	#2 MIDWAY JOINDER
	#2a  ATTACHMENTS BINDER LESS PLAT
	2c  Melvin Eng 041018



	2b Final Plat FP 2019-01 Midway Bsnss Prk
	#3 Release Waiver and Indemnity Agreement
	#4 Midway Platting Agreement
	#5 Ch 177 Part 1 FS

	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11



